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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS, HERE :

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (each, a “Director”) of IDT Intemational ~ A AZRKREHBEBEER AT ([ AQF ] -
Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group” or “we" or  EREMBARIAHEAI AEE K[ F M)
us"), | am pleased to present the Group’s annual results for the year ended 3| December 2 EH(R[EFZ)e([E2g)MARER
2020 (“FY2020” and for the year ended 3| December 2019, “FY2019"). SEEE_ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HULEFE
(ZZ2_ZFFEIRBE_Z-NEFTA
=St—RUEFEIZZ-NFFENZFEX

FINANCIAL RESULTS M RE

The Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 was amounted to ~ HE_ZE-"ZF+ " A=+—HILFE - $

approximately HK$55.4 million (FY2019: approximately HK$270.4 million), which was due % & ﬁ“ BRERNRBESARETL(Z

to the global impact of the COVID-19, leading to the economic downturn. —NEFE : HBE7048ETT) - Eel \Q
AEI%‘IM@COWD I9ERHNERBTE
G LliBa
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Gross profit totalled approximately HK$5.6 million (FY2019: approximately HK$30.5
million). Gross profit was decreased by approximately 81.6% for the year ended 3|
December 2020, the Group continues to face with the challenges with the unprecedent
impact of the COVID-19 in 2020, the reduction of overseas sales leads to a decrease in
gross profit. The gross profit margin was decreased from approximately | 1.3% for FY2019

to approximately 10.1% for FY2020.

The Group continued to execute stringent cost controls and streamline organisational
structure and operational procedures. Total operating expenses of the Group, including
research costs, distribution and selling expenses and general administrative expenses,
amounted to approximately HK$91.5 million (FY2019: approximately HK$124.9 million).
The total operating expense was decreased by approximately 26.7% since the distribution
and selling expense has dropped for approximately 57.5% which was attributable to the

decrease in tumnover. Further, general administrative expense reduced by 19.1%.

Other income during the year was mainly come from subleasing of right-of-use assets/
rented premises amounted to approximately HK$10.9 million (FY2019: approximately
HK$11.8 million). The other losses, net during the year was recorded as approximately
HK4.7 million (FY2019: approximately HK$7.7 million), and it was mainly attributable to (i)

provision for losses on litigations and (i) exchange loss.

Charge of loss allowance on trade receivables was recorded as approximately HK$18.2
million (FY2019: reversal of approximately HK$7.7 million) due to increase in credit loss of

of trade receivables.

Loss for FY2020 was approximately HK$95.8 million (FY2019: approximately HK$83.1

million).
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRES

OUTLOOK

Despite the uncertain global economy and the COVID-19 pandemic will continue to
have a considerable impact on the growth of the Group, nonetheless there are still
opportunities. The COVID-19 vaccine has been put into use and the president of the
United States of America ("USA™) has changed, we believe the situation will be improved

in 2021. The Group remains confident in 2021.

While focusing on the steady growth of overseas business, the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC" or “China") market will be our focus area in the future. We project steady
growth as overall and remarkable growth in China. Smart leaming and health care products

will still be the key category in the Group.

OREGON SCIENTIFIC (“OS”)

The market demand for Smart Learning & Immersive Technology (the “SLIT") are still
trendily strong. A series of new SLIT products will be launched and this category will
continue to be the main product category of the OS business. The upcoming products will
also come with even stronger and interactive Augmented Reality technology to enhance
the learning experience. Strategic partnership will be formed with Intellectual Property
Publishing House which is under the National Intellectual Property Administration, the PRC
with focus on promoting the smart learmning products into the targeted channels includes

school with joint promotion effort.

For SLIT business in overseas market, we project a steady business as overall. Japan is our
focus market with our engaged long term partner to work closely in the market. Regarding
the channel development, we will continue to look for the distribution partners in North

America to expand the sales network.

Regarding the Connected Home and Communications (“the CoH") category, we are
negotiating with a strong partner in Italy and another one in America for new channel

distribution.
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VALUE MANUFACTURING SERVICES (“VMS”)

Based on accumulative experiences and advantages through year's development, we are
entering into the era of smart health. Sports, Fitness and health (the “SFH") continue to be
the key product category of the VMS business.

Our VMS business and customers both focus on digital health products, including activity
tracking, blood glucose monitoring, heart rate monitoring, blood pressure monitoring etc.
All these products are related to the big data concept. As such, our customer and strategy
partners will work with us to analyze and utilize these data to develop products which
could suit better the consumers’ need and bring new business opportunity to grow the

business.

The Group has started the association with a leading hospital and sleep science institutes
in Jiangsu province, China for the sleep improvement and health tracking projects, such will

take an important part in the SFH category particularly for the China market.

Apart from working on the existing customers and developing the new ones, our focus
includes continuously improving the efficiency of product developments and manufacturing
operation. We continue to innovate with our VMS customers and achieve the largest
results at the lowest cost. As such, our customers would gain more resources to be

invested into new products and make us more competitive and grow together.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRES

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to express my gratitude to all shareholders
and business associates for the continuous support. Our deep appreciation also goes to
the management team and staff members for their hard work and dedication in the past

financial period.

Zhu Yongning
Chief Executive Officer

30 March 2021
Hong Kong
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Directors and Senior Management of the Group

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Zhu Yongning

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, aged 52. Mr. Zhu graduated from Fudan
University of Shanghai with a master degree in international finance, and is a senior
economist. He has over 30 years of working experience in the financial sector. Mr. Zhu
is the director of Christine International Holding Limited, whose stock code 01210, and
Jiangsu Nandasoft Technology Company Limited, whose stock code 08045. Since 1990, Mr.
Zhu served successively of the intemnational business department of China Construction
Bank in Jiangsu province, president of a sub-branch of China Investment Bank under its

Jiangsu branch, sub-branch of China Everbright Bank.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Cui Xiao

Non-Executive Director, aged 43, joined Hongtu SanPower Advanced Technology
Limited* (“"Hongtu Sanbao"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jiangsu Hongtu High
Technology Co., Ltd.* (“Jiangsu Hongtu™) in 2001 and served as Hongtu Sanbao’s director
of information department, network maintenance department, and is currently working at
the human resources corporate governance and administration centre of Hongtu Sanbao.
Since 28 February 2020, Mr. Cui is a supervisor of Jiangsu Hongtu, a company established in
the People’s Republic of China with limited liability, whose shares are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600122). He obtained a bachelor degree in economics and
administration management from Nanjing Politics College of People's Liberation Army of
China in 2012.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Directors and Senior Management of the Group

FEEEERESREEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhou Meilin

Independent Non-Executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee, a member
of nomination and corporate governance committee and remuneration committee of
the Board, aged 54. Mr. Zhou is a Chinese practicing lawyer, Chinese certified public
accountant (Non-practicing), tax agent, and part-time teacher of Nanjing University of

finance and economics.

From January 2016, Mr. Zhou joined Jiangsu Deging law firm as lawyer. Before that, Mr.
Zhou worked for Nanjing Xuanwu Tax Bureau from July 1985 to December 2015, took
the different positions including tax administration, tax collection and management, financial
management, tax audit (from 1995 to 1996, Mr. Zhou worked for Nanjing Shicheng
Accounting (Tax) Firm). During the period in the tax bureau, Mr. Zhou was employed as a
part-time teacher in tax system, participated in the compilation of provincial and municipal
tax system risk platforms and inspection guidelines for many times, and participated in
dozens of enterprise bankruptcy, reform, restructuring and merger and acquisition work.
By virtue of his profound business skills, Mr. Zhou has won the title of tax system business
expert for many times. Mr. Zhou is an independent non-executive director of Jiangsu
Nandasoft Technology Company Limited* whose share are listed in Hong Kong with stock
code 08045 since 3 December 2020. Mr. Zhou is an independent non-executive director
of Jiangsu ZhongQi Technology Company Limited* (stock code: SZ300575) since 22 April
2021.

Mr. Zhou has extensive experience in accounting, internal control, financial statement
analysis, tax planning and related laws; he is good at enterprise initial public offerings,
reorganisation, merger and acquisition, bankruptcy, tax dispute settlement, tax risk
prevention and tax planning. Mr. Zhou holds a bachelor's degree from Nanjing Normal

University.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Directors and Senior Management of the Group

Zhou Rui

Independent Non-Executive Director, the chairman of the nomination and corporate
governance committee, and a member of the remuneration committee and the audit
committee of the Board, aged 35. Mr. Zhou Rui is the vice president of China Galaxy
Securities from 2015 up to present, mainly responsible for business development and
providing investment, fund-raising consultant service to public and private company. During
August 2012 to February 2014, Mr. Zhou Rui worked in Beijing Hony Future Investment
Advisor Ltd as a senior manager, responsible for finding right investment project, executing
due diligence and investment and after investment management. During August 2009
to August 2012, Mr. Zhou Rui served as a supervisor of China International Capital
Corporation Limited, responsible for securities trading system’s design and testing. Mr.

Zhou Rui holds a master degree in Mathematics from Nanjing University.

Xu Jinwen

Independent Non-Executive Director and the chairman of the remuneration committee
and the nomination and corporate governance committee and the audit committee of the
Board, aged 55. Mr. Xu is the chairman of the board, chief executive officer and executive
Director of Changjiang Securities International Financial Group Limited, and independent
non-executive Director of Shenzhen Zhongheng Hwafa Co., Ltd, the shares of which are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (SZSE: 000020 and 200020). Mr. Xu served as the
deputy general manager of China Construction Bank Hubei Provincial Trust and Investment
Corporation (1 Bl % #R17#3L & {5 5E1% & 2 7]) from December 1990 to October
1995. He worked in Guotai Securities Limited Hubei Branch* (BIZRZE 5B R A 711t 5
A7) as the deputy general manager, and Guotai Junan Securities Limited Jiangxi Branch*
(B HZBRIFRMDERABIIE D A F)) as the general manager from October
1995 to November 2002. Mr. Xu worked as president in Golden Sun Securities Limited*
(BIB%7& 5 A IR 2 Al) from November 2002 to April 2006. Mr. Xu served as the chairman
in Changjiang BNP Paribas Peregrine Securities Co,, Ltd. from April 2006 to May 2007.
Mr. Xu was the executive vice president and the secretary of the board of Changjiang
Securities Company Limited from May 2007 to March 2016. Mr. Xu has over 30 years
of experience working in the financial industry, and he particularly worked in the area of
securities for more than 20 years. He is very familiar with China and overseas financial
markets and products, with extensive experience in the management of financial institution
and investment. Mr. Xu holds a doctorate degree in Management Science and Engineering

from Huazhong University of Science and Technology.

*  For identification purpose only
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2020, the overall purchase momentum particularly in the consumer electronic business
is much more sluggish due to the COVID-19 pandemic together with the trade war
and overall unsteady global economy. The Group continued to place significant effort in
re-shaping the product development direction, customer base and commercial terms, and
streamlining its organizational structure, operation processes and administrative costs. The
Group has achieved the sales revenue amount of approximately HK$55.4 million and gross

profit totaled at approximately HK$5.6 million in 2020.

SLIT and SFH are still the main product categories and the Group already found ways
and now is working on new product development in such area. At the same time, the
management carried out several measures to enhance the lean manufacturing, streamlining
manpower and implementing business model change in overseas operations. The Group
also focused on developing projects with good quality key customers and no low-or-

negative margin project policy remained.

The Group closely monitors the cash flow through re-shaping the customer base and
re-negotiating the commercial terms with business partners. The accounts receivables
amount was decreased by approximately 97.2% to approximately HK$0.8 million as
at 31 December 2020 (2019: approximately HK$28.8 million). The streamlining of the
number of Stock Keeping Unit (“SKU") for more effective inventory management led to
lowering inventory level to approximately HK$7.1 million as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
approximately HK$16.8 million).

Value Manufacturing Services (“VMS”)

In FY2020, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the global market and the overall purchase
momentum from customers particularly in the consumer electronic business suffered a
tremendous impact. The sales revenue of the VMS business in FY2020 was approximately
HK$24.7 million (FY2019: approximately HK$181.1 million), which accounted for

approximately 44.6% of the Group's total revenue.

Despite the lower sales revenue, the Group re-shaped the customer base and
re-negotiated for the more favourable commercial terms with most of the VMS customers
with an aim, to improve the gross margin and accelerate the account receivable collection.

This assisted to set a healthier base for future business development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR M

To maintain the leading role in technology and market competitiveness, the VMS
research & development team continuously establishes strategic partnership with global
innovative technology partner. The co-operation with various strategic partners such as the
co-developed solution of E-ink watch, PWTT Smart blood pressure monitor, heart rate

variability measurement will bring new business opportunity to grow the business.

OREGON SCIENTIFIC (“OS”)

For FY2020, sales revenue of OS business totaled approximately HK$30.7 million (FY2019:
approximately HK$89.3 million), representing an approximately 65.6% decrease compared
to that of last year which was mainly affected by COVID-19 pandemic, accounting for
approximately 55.4% of the Group's total sales revenue for FY2020. SLIT and CoH were
still the main product categories, health care will be another product category we focus on

in coming days.

The market demand for SLIT are still trendily strong. The Group is working with the
Intellectual Property Publishing House of China for the strategic partnership and started
the tailor-made product development to meet the tremendous consumer demand of the

smart leaming products in China.

The market demand for health care products are increasing, the Group has started the
association with the leading hospital and sleep science institutes in Jiangsu province China
for the sleep improvement and health tracking projects, such will take an important part in

the SFH category particularly for the China market.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the overseas sales were impacted greatly. The Group still
secured the business relationship with reputable distributors and the strategy of working

with the strong distributors to develop the overseas markets remained.

WORKING CAPITAL

The inventory balance as at 31 December 2020 was approximately HK$7.1 million,
decreased by approximately 57.7% compared to approximately HK$16.8 million as at 3|
December 2019. The inventory turnover days increased to 87 days (FY2019: 70 days).
Trade debtor balances as at 31 December 2020 was approximately HK$0.8 million,
decreased by approximately 97.2% compared to approximately HK$28.8 million shown as
at 31 December 2019. Trade debtor's tumnover days were increased to 97 days (FY2019:
44 days).
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Management Discussion and Analysis

The finance lease receivables relate to the subletting of factory and office space to
prospective independent third party tenants to generate revenue of the Group. It is a
reclassification of the “rights of use of assets” previously recognized by the Group as
a result of entering into the lease agreements for these properties and the expected

discounted income from the sub-leases for the remaining term of the sub-leases.

Such subleases maximise the Company’s resources from the operation perspective,
increase the Company's cash inflow and hence are in the interest of the Company and its

shareholders.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The net liabilities value of the Group as at 3| December 2020 stood at approximately
HK$221.3 million (FY2019: approximately HK$125.1 million), approximately 76.9% higher
than that of 2019. As at 31 December 2020, there was 2599,993,088 issued and fully paid
shares with HK$0.1 each. The net liabilities value per share as at 31 December 2020 was

approximately -8.5 HK cents (FY2019: approximately -4.8HK cents).

GEARING RATIO

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group' total assets amounted to
approximately HK$9 1.7 million. Total liabilities amounted to approximately HK$313.0
million, the Group expresses its gearing ratio as a percentage of borrowings over total
assets which was approximately 181.4% (FY2019: approximately 106.2%). The decreases in
turnover and increases in the loan from a shareholder for financial support of the Company

resulted in the increase in the gearing ratio.

LIQUIDITY AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT

As at 31 December 2020, bank balances and cash of the Group, including restricted bank
balances, amounted to approximately HK$13.1 million (31 December 2019: approximately
HK$18.0 million). During the year, the Group generated its funds mainly from operating
or financing activities. The net cash position (bank balances and cash) as at 31 December
2020 amounted to approximately HK$13.1 million (31 December 2019: approximately
HK$18.0 million).
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED

i

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

At 31 December 2020, there were no finance charges on the Group’s assets.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31 December
2020 amounted to approximately HK$0.3 million (FY2019: approximately HK$1.0 million)

which was all used for business operations and product development. Source of funds

were financed by internal resources and loan from a shareholder.

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies

in the course of the year ended 3| December 2020.

DIVIDEND

The Directors of the Company do not recommend any dividend for FY2020 (FY2019: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES/LITIGATIONS

@

20

During FY2020, there was a litigation initiated by a supplier of the Group in Hong
Kong claiming the allegedly due and unpaid balance of purchase orders against a
subsidiary of the Group in Hong Kong in view of unilateral cancellation of purchase
orders by the subsidiary of the Group for a sum of approximately US$334,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2.6 million). In respect of the aforesaid due and
unpaid balance of purchase orders amounting to approximately HK$0.3 million
which had been recognised in “Trade payables” as at 31 December 2019 and
2020, the management of the Group having consulted the legal advice from an
independent legal counsel, estimated that the Group will likely be liable to pay
for the total and, therefore, the Group further recognised a provision for loss
of approximately HK$2.3 million in profit or loss for FY2020. Subsequent to 31
December 2020 and up to the date of approving these consolidated financial

statements, the litigation is still in process.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Management Discussion and Analysis

During FY2020, the Group received a notice from a Court of Arbitration in the
PRC stating that a service provider of the Group in the PRC has initiated legal action
against a subsidiary of the Group in the PRC by claiming the allegedly due and
unpaid balance of services fees from the Group. Pursuant to the judgements made
by the court in the PRC, the Group was ordered to make immediate payment
amounting to approximately HK$0.2 million and therefore a provision for loss of
HK$0.2 million was made in profit or loss for FY2020. Subsequent to 31 December
2020 and up to the date of approving these consolidated financial statements, the
Group has settled approximately HK$0.2 million in respect to the settlement of this

case.

During FY2020, the Group received a notice from a District Court in the PRC
stating that a supplier of the Group in the PRC has initiated legal action against
certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC by claiming the allegedly due and unpaid
balance of subcontracting fees from the Group. In respect of the aforesaid due and
unpaid balance of subcontracting fees amounting to approximately HK$5.5 million
which had been recognised in “Trade payables” as at 31 December 2020. Based on
the legal advice obtained from an independent legal counsel, the management of the
Group considered no further provision for litigation was required to be made for
the year ended 31 December 2020. Subsequent to 31 December 2020 and up to
the date of approving these consolidated financial statements, the litigation is still in

process.

During FY2020, the Group received a notice from a District Court in the PRC
stating that a former employee of the Group in the PRC has initiated legal action
against a subsidiary of the Group in the PRC by claiming the compensation of
the dismissal of labour contract in view of breach of the terms in employment
agreement by the Group. Pursuant to the judgements made by the court in
the PRC, the Group was ordered to make immediate payment amounting to
approximately HK$0.8 million which had been recognised in ““Provision for losses on
litigations™ in “Other losses, net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
FY2020. Subsequent to 31 December 2020 and up to the date of approving these
consolidated financial statements, the Group has settled approximately HK$0.8

million in respect to the settlement of this case.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR M

Other than the disclosure of above and elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
at the end of the reporting period, the Group was not involved in any other material
litigation or arbitration. As far as the management of the Group was aware, the Group
had no other material litigation or claim which was pending or threatened against the
Group. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group was the defendant of certain non-
material litigations, and also a party to certain litigations arising from the ordinary course
of business of the Group. The likely outcome of these contingent liabilities, litigations or
other legal proceedings cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty at present, but the
management of the Group believes that any possible legal liability which may be incurred
from the aforesaid cases will not have any material impact on the financial position or

results of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 428 employees. The Group fully recognises the
importance of its employees who contribute significantly to its success and continues to
maintain and upgrade the capabilities of its workforce by providing them with adequate

and regular training.

The Group’s remuneration policy is to provide compensation packages at market rates
which reward individual's performance and attract, retain and motivate high quality
employees. The compensation packages offered by the Group are comparable with
other organisations of similar size and business nature and are reviewed annually. The
components of employee's remuneration package consist of base salary, double pay,
fringe benefits including pension scheme, medical insurance, life and personal accident
insurance, employee compensation and business travel insurance as well as incentives like

discretionary cash bonus.

In Xixiang, Shenzhen, China where the Xixiang facilities are located, staff welfare rates
are set with reference to the prevailing labour laws in China. Accommodation and leisure

facilities are also provided to local staff at Xixiang facilities.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group's remuneration philosophy for senior executives is based upon creating a

strong link between performance and reward in accordance with the following principles:

Fixed salaries and benefits are set at median-market level against comparable
groups of companies selected on the basis of similar size and business nature and

benchmarked with the prevailing market conditions; and

2. Performance-related bonus is linked to the achievement of pre-defined performance
targets including financial targets, performance index and pre-agreed management

objectives.

The emolument of the Directors is recommended by the remuneration committee with
reference to companies of comparable business type or scale, and the nature and quantity
of work at both Board and Board committee (“Board Committee™) levels (including
frequency of meetings and nature of agenda items) in order to compensate Directors
reasonably for their time and efforts spent. The Directors’ emolument is approved by the
Board pursuant to the mandate granted by the shareholders at annual general meetings.
Remuneration are paid to a Director for appointment as a member of a particular
committee. Non-Executive Directors receive no base pay, benefits, bonus or pension
except reimbursement for expenses incurred in connection with their directorship of the
Company. No individual Director is allowed to participate in the procedures for deciding
his/her individual remuneration package. Full details of the remuneration of and fees paid
to the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 10 of to the

consolidated financial statements.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Corporate Governance Report
TEERREE

The Group is committed to achieving a up to stipulated standard of corporate governance
to safeguard the interests of all shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020 under review, the Company
has applied the principles and complied with all code provisions and where applicable, the
recommended best practices prescribed in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”)
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), save for the deviation
from the Code Provision A2.1 and A.6.7. This report describes its corporate governance
practices, explains the applications of the principles of the CG Code and deviations during

the year ended 31 December 2020 under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board

During the period between | January 2020 and 28 February 2020, the Board comprised
five Directors of whom one is Executive Director and one is Non-Executive Director and
three are Independent Non-Executive Directors. For the period between 28 February
2020 and 31 March 2020, the Board comprised of four Directors of whom one is
Executive Director and three are Independent Non-Executive Directors. For the period
between 3| March 2020 to 16 July 2020, the Board comprised of five Directors of whom
one is Executive Director, and one is Non-Executive Director and three are Independent
Non-Executive Directors. For the period between 16 July 2020 to 25 August 2020,
the Board comprised of four Directors of whom one is Executive Director, three are

Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Brief biographical details of the Directors appear in the Directors and Senior Management
of the Group section on pages | | to 3. An updated list of Directors of the Company and
their respective roles and functions are posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the

Company's website.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Corporate Governance Report

Appointment, Re-election and Retirement of Directors

The nomination and corporate governance committee of the Board (“NCGC") reviews
the profiles of the candidates and makes recommendations to the Board on the

appointment, re-election and retirement of Directors.

The Company recognises the importance of having the appropriate board composition. In
deciding the board composition, the attributes, skills and expertise among the Directors
are considered appropriate to effectively lead and control the Group, taking into account
the scope and nature of its operations. The Directors have a mix of core competencies
in areas such as accounting and finance, business and management, industry knowledge
and marketing strategies. The size of the Board is conducive to effective discussion and
decision-making and has an appropriate balance of independent Directors to exercise

independent judgment.

In accordance with the Company's Bye-Laws, at each annual general meeting (“*AGM"),
one-third of the Directors shall retire from office. The Directors to retire in every year shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last election or re-election. Further,
any Director appointed by the Board as an additional Board member or fill in a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election
at the AGM immediately following their appointments. The new Directors shall not be
taken into account in determining the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at
that annual general meeting. Election and re-election of Directors will be done by separate

resolution,

The names and biographical details of the Directors who will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM will be set out in the circular accompanying the notice
of AGM.

TEERRES

EECZE BEERER

EEERARGEEATAR(RARLE
ERERRARERENREAZEER
BEEEE EERRRIIETNEERH
e -

ARERHARARENEFEHACER
EERESEHAMNEEL  HAKECE
BRERMEEMNS ESMAGEZIHE X
RENERRMA RS HRERBRL S B RE
EAGE - EFRARZR T EMNEG T KT
BAEMEE  ERANBLTERBEES -
ESEZABREREARZTRIRE [
B EFETEBUEFERRENT
o DAEH BRI HIE -

REARAZRAY REERRBFA g
((RRBFARG L =npz—EFLER
- BFEZERIEZAANSTE LREES
BEUKRERARRE - BE  KEFEZ
TERMEESEXEIEAMESTETRCE
ER—ERE BEEARATEBRRBEA
SR WARRERSERTRZBRE
FAGLEEET NETHRBEFAE L
AWESECEZTARE - BAFZHE
EX EELBEEEEHUBIRZRRT
B o

BREERRBFAS LBRECEZ LM

LRBRERERENRREFAeRE 2B
B

Annual Report 2020 £ 25



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Corporate Governance Report
TEERREE

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a Board diversity policy setting out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Board diversity will be considered by the
Company from a number of aspects, including but not limited to cultural and educational
background, experience, skills, knowledge, length of service, age and gender. The Board
composition is reviewed, considered and discussed by the NCGC on an annual basis and it
will make recommendations to the Board after the review. The Company's business needs
will also be taken into account in determining the optimum composition of the Board. In
reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board as well as selecting candidate(s),
the NCGC will consider all diversity elements according to the policy and also devised
guidelines for ideal board size, optimum number of executive and non-executive directors
and board membership criteria. The policy and those guidelines shall be reviewed and

revised periodically to meet business needs of the Group.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Newly appointed Directors of the Company will receive induction and reference materials
to enable him/her to familiarise himself/herself with the Group's history, mission, business
operations and board and company policies. Each Director is briefed and updated from
time to time to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under Statutory
and common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal and other regulatory requirements and

the governance policies of the Company and latest Listing Rules and legislation.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development so as to
refresh their knowledge and skills for discharging their duties and responsibilities. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, relevant reading materials including regulatory update,
seminar handouts and latest regulatory case selection etc. have been provided to the

Directors for their reference and studying.
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Corporate Governance Report

A summary of training taken by the Directors since | January 2020 up to 3| December

2020 is set out as follows:
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Training activities including in-house
activities/briefings, seminars/talks held
by professional organisations and/or

reading materials on relevant topics

BIED(BEAARNDEE,

g% BXAfERomHe

Directors B= BER,/AEERRE M)
Executive Director: HITES:
Zhu Yongning RoKE y
Non-Executive Directors: #iﬂ,ﬁﬁ? :
Song Rongrong (Resigned on 28 February 2020) RRR(N_Z_ZF_A-+/\BEHE) v
Wu Qing (Appointed on 31 March 2020, REM_Z_ZF=A=1t—REZE"

resigned on 16 July 2020) RZZ_TF+ A+ HEHE) v
Cui Xiao (Appointed on 25 August 2020) ERRV_Z_ZF/\A-_THBEZT) y
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BAFHITES :
Zhou Meilin BEM V
Zhou Rui B v
Xu Jinwen REB3C v
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER FERITHRAR

According to the Code Provision A2.1, the roles of the chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer (the “CEQ") should be separate and performed by different individuals to ensure a
balance of power and authority so that power is not concentrated in any one individual.

After the retirement of Mr. Xu Chiming, the then chairman, on 26 June 2019, Mr. Zhu
Yongning, the CEO of the Company, took up the responsibilities of both the chairman and
CEO of the Company. The Board understands that the roles of the chairman and the CEO
should be independent, and hence, the Group will recruit a suitable person who has an
extensive understanding of the Group's business as soon as possible to manage the day-to-

day business.
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Responsibilities of the Board and delegations to management

The Board is responsible to the shareholders for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company and its businesses

by directing and supervising the Company's affairs.
The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular attention paid to the
growth and financial performance of the Group. The principal functions of the Board are

to:

. establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

. determine the broad policies, strategic plans and performance objectives of the
Group;

. monitor management performance;

. approve financial plans and annual budgets, major funding proposals, key funding and

investment proposals;

. oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk

management, financial reporting and compliance;
. approve the nominations of Directors and appointment of key personnel; and
. assume responsibility for corporate governance.
The Board delegates daily operations of the Group to Executive Directors and senior
executives, while reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of the Board are

communicated to the management through Executive Directors who have attended at

Board meetings and circulation of minutes of Board meetings to the management.

28 Annual Report 2020 £

EZEREREEERIK

ESEpAERERARRARRAR - ¥
BEBREREEARAZEY  HRAR
REARNBREEE 2K

S

BEEIINBBREIRE  LHEIA
EEZEREUBRE - EFG 2T B
mr

o BIRIARB RS ARER

« REAKBETBHECK - KESEEI KRB

Bz

N

- EFEEEECRH:

- HAMBEEIRFERE EXEFR
# IERENERERS

- ERANERRTRANFGEE &
e  BIBERLTRIER

« HWERBREERZETIBAR R

« BERELRREERE-

EZEZRMTESRARATRARRER
FEEREH  HEREMEETERSFEREZE
Fl- E2Q@ZAEERLFETEEH LY
TEE R —$E@E@ﬁ§$§§%2@
FACER MEREIRE



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Corporate Governance Report

The Board has adopted a set of guidelines to clearly divide the responsibilities of the
Board and the management. Matters reserved for decision and consideration of the Board
include, among others, all matters of strategic importance, corporate governance practices,
legal and regulatory compliance, internal control and risk management, corporate strategy,
operating and capital budgets, statutory financial reports, changes in Board members,
major transactions and investment commitments and remuneration policy of Directors and
senior management, financial authorisation and approval limits for operating and capital
expenditure, the procurement of goods and services, and the acquisition and disposal of

investments.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds, the Independent Non-
Executive Directors of the Company have shared their valuable experience with the Board
in the interests of promoting the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company have made significant contribution
of their skills and expertise to the Board Committees. All Independent Non-Executive
Directors are appointed for a fixed term of three years and are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by shareholders at the AGM of the Company in accordance with

the Company's Bye-Laws.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of the Directors of the Company. The functions

of Independent Non-Executive Directors include, but not limited to:

. participating in Board meetings to bring in independent judgment to bear on
issues of corporate strategy, corporate performance, accountability, resources, key

appointments and standard of conducts;

. taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;
. serving on Board Committees, if invited; and
. scrutinising the Group’s performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and

objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment of at least three Independent
Non-Executive Directors including at least one Independent Non-Executive Director
with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or relating financial management
expertise. In assessing the independence of the Directors, the Board has examined the
different relationships identified under the Listing Rules that might impair the Directors’
independence and objectivity. The Board considers that all of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are independent and are satisfied with the Directors’ ability to act with
independent judgment. Furthermore, each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
has provided to the Company an annual confirmation of independence required by Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all its Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent. Each Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Any further re-appointment of an Independent Non-Executive
Director, who has served the Board for more than nine years, will be subject to separate

resolution to be approved by the shareholders of the Company.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules that the Independent

Non-Executive Directors are representing at least one-third of the Board.

RELATIONSHIP

There is no financial, business, family and other material relationship among other members
of the Board.

There has been an effective and balanced Board collectively responsible for the Company's
activities and affairs. The Board members are free to discuss issues properly put to the
Board meetings and express their views and concerns. No individual or small group can

dominate the Board'’s decision-making process.
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If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will
be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than a written resolution of the Board.
The Board will take into account the exceptions to the general voting prohibition, as set
out in the Listing Rules when considering whether a director shall vote on any board
resolution approving any matters in which he has material interests or shall he be counted

in the quorum present at the meeting.

MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly at least 4 times a year and holds additional meetings as and
when the Board thinks appropriate. Board Committees also hold regular scheduled
meetings to discharge their duties. Meetings via telephone or video-conference are
permitted under the Bye-Laws of the Company. Attendance record of the Board and
Board Committees meetings during the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out on pages
33, 36,37 and 41.

All Directors have access to the company secretary who is responsible for ensuring that
Board/Board Committees meeting procedures are observed and advising the Board/Board

Committees on compliance matters.

In an attempt to accommodate the competing time commitments of Directors who sit on
multiple boards, dates of Board/Board Committees meetings are scheduled well in advance
at the beginning of every calendar year. The Company has given at least 14 days’ notice
for regular Board and Board Committees meetings. For all other Board/Board Committees
meetings, reasonable notices are given. Draft agendas for Board and Board Committee
meetings are circulated to all Directors for comment before the meetings. The Directors
were given the opportunities to include matters to be discussed in the agenda for all Board

and Board Committees meetings.
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The agenda accompanied by detailed Board papers (prepared in such form and manner as
will enable the Board to make an informed decision on matters placed before it, including
but not limited to, background or explanatory information relating to matters to be
brought before the Board and internal financial information such as quarterly management
accounts, forecasts and budgets with material variance between projections and actual
results explained) are circulated to all Directors in a timely manner and at least three days

before the date of scheduled meeting.

Minutes of Board/Board Committees meetings are recorded in detail regarding the matters
considered and decisions reached, including concemns raised by Directors or dissenting
views expressed. Draft minutes are circulated to relevant Directors/committee members
within a reasonable time after the meetings for comments and will then be approved
by the Board/Board Committees at the following meeting. Minutes of Board and Board
Committees meetings are kept by the company secretary and are open for inspection at

any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Directors are provided in a timely manner with complete, adequate explanation and
information about the Company and its subsidiaries, its activities, performances and its
projects particularly including any significant variances from a planned course of actions to
enable them to make an informed decision or assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects and to discharge their duties and responsibilities. In case when
the Directors have queries, they are provided with the names and contact details of the
Group's senior executives for separate and independent access to them and they are able
to obtain more information than is volunteered by the management. Senior executives
are from time to time brought into formal and informal contact with the Board at Board

meetings and other events.

The Board and Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to properly
discharge their duties including access to independent professional advisers under agreed

procedures, upon reasonable request, at the expense of the Company.
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The Board held a full board meeting each quarter.

Details of the attendance of the meetings of the members of the Board during the year

under review are as follows:

TEERRES

SFEHEEOEF AL A RS DR
mT :

2020 BOARD
MEETING 2020 AGM
—$-%F  -3-%F
Directors = EEXeeE RRBEAS
Executive Director: HITEE
Zhu Yongning RoKE 4/5 /1
Non-Executive Directors: FHITES !
Song Rongrong (Resigned on 28 February 2020) RRR(RZZ_ZTF_A_+/\BEHE) 0/5 /1
Wu Qing (Appointed on 31 March 2020, REM_Z_ZF=A=1T—REZE"
retired on 16 July 2020) RZZ-ZEL A+RARE) 0/5 o/l
Cui Xiao (Appointed on 25 August 2020) ER(R_Z_TF\A-THBEZE) 0/5 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BAEHITES .
Zhou Meilin JEZEM 3/5 0/1
Zhou Rui JEH 4/5 /1
Xu Jinwen RPN 4/5 o/l

In addition to the above regular Board meetings during the year, the members of the
Board of Directors followed the principles of good corporate governance and the best
practices of the relevant code provisions and recommendations of the CG Code as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and maintained a continuous dialogue with
shareholders, especially through the AGM or other plenary meetings to communicate with
the shareholders. Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, Independent Non-
Executive Directors and other Non-Executive Directors should attend general meeting.
However, Ms. Wu Qing, the Non-Executive Director and Mr. Zhou Melin and Mr. Xu
Jinwen, the Independent Non-Executive Directors, were unable to attend the 2020 AGM

due to their other prior engagements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To maximise the effectiveness of the Board and to encourage active participation and
contribution from Board members, the Board has established four Board Committees,
namely the executive committee, audit committee, NCGC and remuneration committee
with specific written terms of reference that clearly deal with their authority and
duties, to oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs, assist in the execution of
the Board's responsibilities enable the Board Committees to perform their functions
properly. Board Committees report to the Board on their work and findings. They
adopt as far as practicable, the principles, procedures and arrangements of the Board
in relation to scheduling and conduct of meetings, notice of meetings and inclusion of
agenda items, recording and availability of minutes. The written terms of reference of the
audit committee, nomination and corporate governance committee and remuneration
committee, which are in line with the CG Code, are available on the website of the
Company and the Stock Exchange and will be reviewed from time to time. The quorum

necessary for transaction of business of each Board Committee is two.

Executive Committee (“EC”)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the EC comprised of all Executive Directors.
The EC meets as and when required to oversee the day-to-day management of the Group
and has all the general powers of the Board except those matters specifically reserved for
the Board.

The principal duties of EC include:

. managing the business and investments by overseeing the Group’s operations,

projects, assets and liabilities, budgets, compliance obligations and financial

performance in accordance with the policies and directives of the Board;

. making recommendations to the Board as to the Group’s overall policies, strategies
and financial objectives in the development of its business and ensuring their

implementation and execution; and

. providing leadership to staff and management and nominating key personnel and

ensuring appropriate levels of authority are delegated to them.
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Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee (“NCGC”)

During the period between | January 2020 and 31 December 2020, the NCGC is chaired
by Mr. Zhou Rui, an Independent Non-Executive Director, and comprised another two
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Xu Jinwen and Mr. Zhou Meilin. The
NCGC meets at least once a year. As at 31 December 2020, all NCGC members are

Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The principal functions of the NCGC include:

. making recommendations to the Board on all new appointments or reappointments
of Directors, the establishment of a succession plan for Directors, in particular the

chairman and CEO and the composition of the Board;
. identifying and nominating qualified individuals, subject to the approval of the Board,

to be additional Directors or to fill vacancy in the Board as and when they arise;

. reviewing on an annual basis the Board structure, size and composition and the

independent element of the Board;

. developing the criteria for selection of Directors;
. assessing the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors;
. developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate

governance and make recommendations to the Board;

. reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

. reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;
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. developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if

any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

. reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the

Corporate Governance Report.

The chairman of the NCGC will report to the Board on its proceedings and

recommendations after each meeting.
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During the year under review, two meetings were held by the NCGC. Details of the CEFN  RERCEERZEGHET
attendance of the NCGC meeting are as follows: a2 /'X E - EFHFERELAGEERZE®
BELCHHBOT

Attendance
Directors o HERE
Zhou Rui (Chairman) B (EE) 12
Xu finwen 1RERX 112
Zhou Meilin ZES plp)

The main works performed by NCGC during the year ended 31 December 2020 included
reviewing the structure and composition of the Board, assessing independence of existing
Independent Non-Executive Directors and putting forward recommendations to the Board
on re-election of retiring Directors as well as reviewing the updated board diversity policy

and recommending the same to the Board for approval.

Remuneration Committee (“RC”)

During the period between | January 2020 and 28 February 2020, the RC is chaired by
Mr. Xu Jinwen (an Independent Non-Executive Director) and comprised two members,
namely, Mr. Song Rongrong and Mr. Zhou Meilin. During the period between 28 February
2020 and 31 March 2020, the RC comprised one member, namely, Mr. Zhou Meilin.
During the period between 31 March 2020 and 16 July 2020, the RC comprised two
members, namely, Mr. Zhou Meilin and Ms. Wu Qing. During the period between |6
July 2020 and 31 December 2020, the RC is chaired by Mr. Xu Jinwen (an Independent
Non-Executive Director) and comprised two members, namely, Mr. Zhou Rui and Mr.
Zhou Meilin. As at 31 December 2020, all RC members are Independent Non-Executive
Directors.
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The RC consults the chairman and the CEO about its proposals relating to the
remuneration of other Executive Directors and has access to professional advice if

considered necessary. The principal functions of the RC include:

. recommending to the Board on the Company's policies and structure for the

remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Group;

. recommending to the Board the remuneration packages of all Executive Directors

and senior management; and

. reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration proposals with reference

to the Board's corporate goals and objectives.
The chairman of the RC will report to the Board on its proceedings and recommendations,

where appropriate, for the Board' s consideration and/or approval.

During the year under review, two meetings were held by the RC. Details of the

attendance of the RC meeting are as follows:
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Attendance
Directors BE= HERE
Xu Jinwen (Chairman) RE(EE) 12
Zhou Meilin Jﬂ%ﬁ 22
Song Rongrong (Resigned on 28 February 2020) REL (R -_BE-EF-F -+ N\HEHT) 0/2
Wu Qing (Appointed on 31 March 2020, RBEM_Z_ZF=A=+—REEE"
retired on 16 July 2020) RZZ-TF+ A+7NEME) 012
Zhou Rui (Appointed on 16 July 2020) B#H(R_E_TFL A +XAREE) 112
The main works performed by RC during the year ended 31 December 2020 ZMEEeNEE S -SF+-_fF=+—

included reviewing the annual remuneration of Directors and senior management and

recommending the remuneration of newly appointed Directors to the Board of Directors.

A general description of the Group’s emolument policy and long-term incentive schemes
as well as the basis of determining the emolument payable to each Directors for the year

ended 31 December 2020 are disclosed on pages 22 to 23 of this annual report.
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Audit Committee (“AC”)

During the period between | January 2020 and 31 December 2020, the AC consisted
of three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Zhou Meilin (chairman), Mr.
Zhou Rui and Mr. Xu Jinwen. The Board is of the opinion that the majority of the members
of the AC possess accounting and financial management expertise or experience required

to discharge their duties.

The major duties of AC include:

. considering and recommending the appointment, re-appointment and removal of

external auditor;

. approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of external auditor, any

questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

. reviewing and monitoring external auditor's independence and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable standards;

. discussing with external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations before the audit commences;

. developing and implementing policy on the engagement of an external auditor

to supply non-audit services and making recommendation of any measures for

improvements to be taken;

38 Annual Report 2020 £

ENZEE((ERZEEE))

R_E_EF-A-HE_Z_TF+_H
—t+—BHE ERZEeH =B
TERMAK - BAXMELE(ZR) - AL
i&fﬁ%xf‘ﬁi EEERR KEOEZ
ZEERBOREAMB et MY BERER
B - BT S 2B -

. EERBESZT EERERINEZE
B

« BAESNEREERCEM - BAGTNZ
REEMBHE L BUR 2 EIFE -

« BEEREEEMRERINEZEMZ
BUEREEE  UREERFZEXR
e

« RARETREARINEZ N RE
BB E M EEMARET

o BEBINEZEENIREIFEZRAEGIET
REBER UREEREzEEREL
TR



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Corporate Governance Report

monitoring integrity of financial statements, annual and interim reports and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgment contained in them. In this regard, the AC
reviews the interim and annual financial statements and the annual and the interim

reports before submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

() any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concemn assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards;

(vi)  compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal requirements in relation to

financial reporting; and

(vii) any matters that have been raised by the Company's staff responsible for the

accounting and financial reporting function or auditors;

reviewing the Group’s financial controls, internal control and risk management

systems,

discussing with the management the system of internal control and ensuring that
the management has discharged its duty to have an effective internal control
system including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company's accounting and financial reporting function, and their training

programmes and budget;
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considering major investigations of findings on internal control matters as delegated

by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s response to these findings;

reviewing the internal audit programme, ensuring co-ordination between the internal
and external auditors, and ensuring that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company and reviewing and

monitoring the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

reviewing the external auditor's management letter, any material queries raised by
the auditor to management in respect of the accounting records, financial accounts
or systems of control and management's response and ensuring that the Board will

provide a timely response to the issues raised;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices;

reviewing the arrangements the Group’s employees can use, in confidence, to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The AC should ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair and

independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up action; and

reporting to the Board on matters set out above and to consider other topics, as
defined by the Board.

The AC has explicit authority to investigate any matter under the scope of its duties

and the authority to obtain independent professional advice. It is given full access to and

cooperation of the management. It has been provided with reasonable resources to

discharge its duties properly. In the course of reviewing the Group's financial information,

the AC members liaise closely with the Board and the chief financial officer to gather

relevant information.
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During the year under review, three meetings were held by the AC. Details of the

attendance of the AC meetings are as follows:
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Attendance
Directors = HERE
Zhou Meilin (Chairman) EEM(ER) 23
Xu finwen (E31:5°¢ 2/3
Zhou Rui [ 23

The major works performed by the AC during the year ended 31 December 2020
included the review and consideration of the announcements relating to the Group’s
interim and annual results; interim and annual reports; significant accounting and audit issues
arising from annual audit of the Group's financial statements; budget; periodic reports from
internal audit department; internal audit plan; external auditor's audit and non-audit fees as
well as the assessment and recommendation of re-appointment of auditor for the coming

year.

Full minutes of the AC are kept at the Board office. Draft and finalised minutes of the
AC meetings are circulated to all members of the AC for their comment and records

respectively, in both cases within reasonable time after the conclusion of the meetings.

Securities Transactions by Directors and Officers

The Company has adopted a code of conduct by Directors and officers of the Group
on terms no less favourable than the standards set out by the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, save as disclosed above, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.
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The Board members have been reminded of their obligation to comply with the Model
Code.

Directors as well as officers of the Company who are in possession of unpublished inside
information in relation to the Company or its shares are prohibited from dealing in shares

of the Company and are also prohibited from dealing in shares during the black-out period.

INSURANCE

The Group has appropriate insurance cover in place in respect of any legal actions against

its Directors and officers.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and results of the Company and of the
Group. Their responsibilities have also been stated in the section headed “Independent
Auditor's Report” on pages 93 to 95 of this annual report. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently and made accounting judgments and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable in the circumstances. With the assistance of the
finance department, the Directors ensure that the financial statements of the Group are
prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and appropriate financial reporting
standards.

Management recognises the importance of providing the Board with appropriate and
relevant information on an accurate and timely basis. Quarterly business review and
financial reports comparing the Group's actual performance with budget and highlighting
major relevant issues are provided to the Board to enable it to make an informed assessment
on the Group’s performance, position and prospects. Under the CG Code, monthly

updates are required to be provided to all Directors.
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The Board endeavours to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
of the Group's position and prospects to extend to the Group's financial reporting
including annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as

information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

The Company publishes its interim and annual financial results and reports in accordance

with the requirements under the Listing Rules.

External Auditor and Auditor’s Remuneration

The external auditor of the Company is Mazars CPA Limited ("Mazars”). The AC is
responsible for considering the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors. The Board has no disagreement with the AC's view on the re-appointment of

external auditor.

The statement of Mazars, the independent auditor of the Company, regarding their
reporting responsibility on the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 3|
December 2020 is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages
93 to 95 of this annual report. Representatives from Mazars met up with the AC meeting

to answer questions.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, fees paid or payable to the auditor of the

Company, Mazars, by the Group are as follows:
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective risk management and
interal control systems of the Group, and for reviewing their design, operational adequacy

and effectiveness.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems encompass their policies,

processes, tasks, and other aspects of the Group that taken together:

. facilitate their effective and efficient operation by allowing it to respond appropriately
to significant business, operational, financial, compliance and other risks with a
view to achieving business objectives. This includes the safeguarding of assets from
inappropriate use or from loss and fraud and ensuring that liabilities are identified

and managed;
. help ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal or external reporting; and

. help ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations, and also with

internal policies with respect to the conduct of business.
The risk management and internal control systems are designed to provide reasonable,

but not absolute, assurance of no material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than

eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group's objectives.

44 Annual Report 2020 £

EREERAPEE

EEeRAfEARER2NBHNARE
BRAREEHE  WRERBRT - B1E
MDA ©

ﬁﬁlZH VEERABEENERSH
R T ERAREEMEE

4
CH

Z_—E :

RTHBEHWRERER 28§
% aRkEMEREIEELER
RESB 2 MERKBAZED XK B
B BEREEESX THENFR
SBANGER - WARBETEIUET
NgEig

- BERERFZENGICEARERASEL
IEHEHA .:Bﬁﬁﬁ HEINER &

- BERETHEBEDIRETE  AREET
1ETT VBT ARPER

RBREERAREENERAEEFBY
R BEAERBALIER - UREE
BEMIPAREENERE 2R - NER
AEBEZBR-



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Corporate Governance Report

The key procedures that the Board established to provide effective risk management and

internal controls are as follows:

. A distinct organisation structure exists with defined lines of authority and
responsibilities. Division/department heads are involved in preparing the strategic
plan which lays down the corporate strategies to be pursued in the coming year for
achieving the annual operating plan and the annual operational and financial targets.
Both the strategic plan and the annual operating plan lay down the foundation for
the preparation of the annual budget by which resources are allocated in accordance
with identified and prioritised business opportunities. The annual operating plan is
submitted for approval by the EC subject to regular review. The strategic plan is
presented to the Board by management subject to regular review and the annual

budget is approved by the Board yearly;

. A comprehensive monthly management reporting system is in place providing
financial and operational performance indicators to the management, and the
relevant financial information for reporting and disclosure purposes. Variances against
budgets are analysed, and explained, and appropriate actions are taken, if necessary,

to rectify deficiencies noted; and

. System and procedures are in place to identify, measure, manage and control risks
including legal, credit, market, operational, environmental, behavioral and system

risks that may have an impact on the Group.

The Group’s internal audit department (“IA") performs audit reviews of the risks and
key controls of the Group. IA plays an important role in monitoring the Group's internal
governance, evaluating the quality of the risk management and internal control systems
and informing the Board whether sound risk management and internal control systems are
maintained and operated by the management in compliance with agreed processes and
standards. To preserve the independence of the internal audit function, the head of IA

reports directly to the AC on audit matters and to the CEO on administrative matters.
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Using a risk management-based approach audit, IA plans its internal audit projects annually
in consultation with, but independent of, management. The audit methodology and
process adopted by IA include understanding and analysing the business, determining risk
areas within key processes; analysing and evaluating the process control effectiveness and
communicating results and follow up. Independent reviews of different financial, business
and functional operations and activities will be conducted with audit resources being
focused on higher risk areas. Ad-hoc reviews will also be conducted on areas of concem

identified by the AC and the management.

The Company has established written policies and procedures on daily operations, covering
process flow, methodology adopted, reviewing process and reporting system. Division/
department heads will be notified of the control deficiencies noted for rectification, and
IA will follow up with the implementation of audit recommendations. Significant internal
control weaknesses are brought to the attention of the AC and if necessary to the Board,

and to the senior management for remedial actions.

During the period under review, the Board, through the AC, has conducted reviews on
a regular basis, of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems covering all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, and risk management functions and gave due deliberation/consideration to the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience of the accounting and financial

reporting function.
Furthermore, the whistleblowing policy has been adopted by the Board for the Group's

employees, customers and suppliers to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible

improprieties in any matters related to the Group.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT

Shareholders Communication

The Company strives to convey to shareholders pertinent information in a clear, detailed,
timely manner and on a regular basis and to take into consideration their views and inputs,
and address shareholders' concerns. Their views are communicated to the Board as a

whole.

The Company communicates with its shareholders through the publication of annual and
interim reports, results announcements, other announcements and documents required
to be published pursuant to the Listing Rules, and press releases. All shareholders’
communications are also available on the Stock Exchange's website at www.hkex.com.hk

or the Company’s website at www.idthk.com.

The AGM of the Company provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views
with the Board. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of AC, NCGC and/or RC,
or in their absence, members of the Board Committees are generally available to answer

shareholders' questions.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual directors. Votes cast on each resolution at the general

meetings are properly counted and recorded.

At each general meeting, the shareholders will be informed of the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll and answers will be provided if there are any questions from the
shareholders. The poll results are posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the

Company's website.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING (“SGM”)

The Directors of the Company, notwithstanding anything in its Bye-Laws shall, on the
requisition of shareholders of the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,

forthwith proceed duly to convene a SGM of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionists and addressed to the company secretary and deposited at the Company’s

principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company's share registrars and upon their
confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the

Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the SGM.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of

three months from the said date.
Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders who want to put forward proposals at an AGM or SGM should submit a
written notice of those proposals with their detailed contact information to the company
secretary at the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong. The request will be
verified with the Company's share registrars and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in

the agenda for the general meeting.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders’ enquiries must be in writing setting out their contact information and
addressed to the company secretary and deposited at the Company's principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Block C, 9th Floor, Phase |, Kaiser Estate, 41 Man Yue Street,

Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong,

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary reports to the Board and is responsible for assisting the Board to
follow the Board procedures and policies. Mr. Shum Shing Kei, the then company secretary
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020, had attended relevant
professional seminars to update his knowledge and skills. He had complied with the Listing

Rules and taken no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises that effective communication to investors is the key to establish

investor confidence and attracting new investors.

Measures taken by the Group include:

. Annual and interim reports are prepared and issued to all shareholders within the
prescribed period stipulated by the Stock Exchange. All results announcements and

reports are posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company's website.

. The Group regularly releases corporate information such as awards received,
product launches and the latest news of the Group’s developments on the
Company's website. The public are welcome to give their comments and make their
enquiries through the Company's website and the management will provide their

prompt response.

. The constitutional documents of the Company can be found on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange and there is no change in the Company's

constitutional documents during the period under review.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

The Group complies with the requirements of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.
During the year under review, it was committed to raising the environmental, social and
governance of the Group to a higher level, and hereby presents its Environmental, Social
and Govermance Report for the year ended 3| December 2020 prepared in accordance
with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 27

of the Listing Rules.

I. SCOPE

This report is focused on reporting the performance of the Group in promoting
corporate social responsibility during the period from | January 2020 to 3|
December 2020, mainly including the disclosure of the policies and practices which
are of material concern to key social institutions and individuals, including investors,
employees, customers, government, suppliers and contractors, communities and
the public (the “stakeholders”) as well as the key performance indicators, covering
the two business segments owned by the Group, and the daily operations of the

Group's Hong Kong office and Shenzhen factory.
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oo =7 > N
BRI HERERRE
COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS 2. HERANSH

The Group has established various channels to allow stakeholders to participate

in the Company's operations, and to understand and monitor the Company's

operating conditions, so as to promote the formation of a community of harmony

and common interest between the Group and stakeholders and realise maximum

comprehensive social interest, which includes optimal corporate revenue.

Stakeholders can participate in the Company's operations through the following

channels:

Stakeholders

BEA

Key targets and interests

IRAGREEH

Channels and means of

communication and participation

BESENANEE

ﬁ%EE%EA%W%E%ﬁ%EU
NEEET - TRMEERQRNE
AR - BEEE—EME RN
R - (e 7N 5 B S A an A MY AN AR £
% BHBREERERACERMNT
B ékﬁ?ﬁm % S AAELA T i
C2EANANE

HEDHK%

/|

S

Company measures

D EE I

Shareholders and

investors

BREEEE

Robust operations, revenue and
returns, protection of shareholders’
interest, true, accurate and timely

disclosure of information.

General meetings, investors’
conferences and site visits, disclosure
of information (including financial
statements) and contact information

of the Company.

BRRAG  REEZANER
ERRE(EMBRE) R AR
E YEN

Publication of notifications and resolutions of
the shareholders’ meetings and disclosure of
information of the Company in accordance
with rules; organisation of various investor
activities to enhance investor recognition;
publication of the Company’s contact
information on the Company's website and
reports, and ensuring communication channels
remain smooth.

BRTEMREASBANER  KELQ
AER - MRZEBIANKREETY 2
BREENAAE - ERHNREH AR
AEMEN - THERSEEREEESE ©
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Stakeholders

BEA

Key targets and interests

IREEREIR

Channels and means of

communication and participation

BESESANEE

Company measures

D EEE

Employees

i
H

Customers

Protection of basic rights,
welfare and remuneration, work
environment, development
opportunities, occupational health

and safety, realisation of self-worth.

EARERE  BAHHE
B THERE BRZH B
g AREETR -

Guarantee product quality and
delivery, long-term stable co-

operation.

EENHEaRE RO

[

\

-

il
o> EBo
o
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Workers union, communication
channels between employees and
management, feedback boxes, staff

activities, training and education.

g BTHEREAREE
Afe  BTRE  BIES

Regular visits and communication.
Strengthening of quality control,
assurance of steady production and
smooth logistic process; provision
of adequate products; entering into
long term sales agreements with
customers,

EHFED  REAEER - %R
B8R RELERTNES
B RUTEBER BEFPXE
AIRMHEE R -

Establishment of workers union to provide
workers with a platform to communicate;
payment of salaries and benefits in full and on
time; payment of social security insurance in
accordance with law; provision of a healthy
and safe working environment; establishment
of a fair promotion mechanism; caring about
our employees, organising employee activities,
trainings and leamning activities.

RUT&ME REBTRTE + kE
RBETEHMEN - REEMLERE
RERE 2N ITERR BUATH
Eft#s BEET  HPRSERT - A
BETRS  HFIREE -

A central email system, Red-Mine, has been
implemented throughout the Group, to
improve email communication and follow-
up efficiency, and a technical study into
an automatic reply smart service for our

customer email mailbox is in progress.

EESHER —FRAPREBRLG
Red-MineAIRAEH & B RIBERE « I
FENTEBREBEANASDEEZE
ZR% T ENRITRE -
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BEA

Key targets and interests

IREEREIR

Channels and means of
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Company measures

D EEE

Government

B

Suppliers and

contractors

e
N5

\)

RSN

<

T

/

Community and

the public

HEEAR

Lawful operations, payment of
tax in accordance with the law,
production safety, fulfillment of

social responsibility.

RERE  REAR - REE
E-BITHERE-

Fair bidding, long-term stable

cooperation and timely payment.

DYRE REBTEAE &
BRAAR o

Job opportunities, community
development, ecological
environment, compensation and

assistance.

RERE  HEERE EER
5 WIEREE

Site visits, inspections, work
conference and discussion, work

reports, submissions and approvals.

RSRE  kE - TIEGAN
& THERS - 3k - it -

Public bidding meetings and business

meetings, regular communications.

REREE  AUE

;Eo

B&E

Co-hosting of community activities,
charity, volunteer service and

co-construction of the community.

KRR RERE - TR
ERE - R ARED -

Conduction of operation in accordance with
the law; compliance management, payment of
tax in accordance with the law; strengthening
of the Company’s safety management;
acceptance of government supervision,
inspection and examination in accordance
with regulations, active assumption of social
responsibilities.

BARE  ARERE  OERK - 1R R
AREER  RAETRIBAEE RS
LBRSER  BRAELGERE-

Fair bidding, selection by merit, performance
of contractual obligations, strengthening of
regular communications, maintenance of
longterm cooperation with quality suppliers
and contractors.

RYRE BEEE BOETARE M
BRRLMN - BEEHEBNABHRS
R#AHE-

Promotion of community building and
development, provision of volunteer service,
establishment of communication channels for
the community and the community members;
hosting of community activities, promotion of
the building of harmonious community.
REHRERMER - REFEERSE
FELRMTRAENZRES 1B
HREE)  REERNELR o
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE 3. RiE
3. Environment 3.1 BRE
3.1.1 Emissions 3.1.1

Responding actively to the global trend of emission reduction, the Group
is committed to minimising release of greenhouse gases, wastewater, solid
wastes and other pollutants in its daily operations. Therefore, a series of
environmental policies have been developed to strengthen the control of

emissions, including;

Waste reduction

Most of the electronic waste generated in the manufacturing process,
including the scrapped circuit boards, scrapped parts and malfunctioned
components, are returned or handled directly by recycling companies. At the
same time, the Group continues to seek improvements in the manufacturing
process and technology in order to increase productivity and reduce
generation of scrapped electronic products and parts during the production

process.

To reduce the generation of waste from factory logistics, the application of
reusable boxes has been increased, reducing waste generated from the use

of easily damaged logistics equipment made of paper or plastic.

The Group conducts waste categorisation for proper disposal. Recyclables are
identified and sorting bins are placed while waste sorting training programmes
are conducted to encourage employees to actively participate in waste

recycling.

Electronic products involve application of batteries. The Group understands
the far-reaching impact of batteries on the environment and therefore has
designated old battery collection locations to promote appropriate handling

and recycling of disposed batteries.

56 Annual Report 2020 £
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Other than used batteries, the Group is also concerned with waste
cardboard. Therefore, recycling bins have been set up and recycling

companies have been engaged to handle waste papers.

The Group regularly evaluates the production process to find out the sources
of hazardous wastes, and defines action plans to reduce these wastes. The
Group also put labels to differentiate hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
to facilitate hazardous wastes being handled properly by the qualified service

providers.

Currently, the hazardous wastes produced by the Group include used
batteries, sewage sludge, oil rags and contaminated gloves; whereas non-

hazardous wastes mainly include disposed capsules and carton wastes.

The Group has demonstrated the following results in the reporting period

BB - g RERHRE

BT EEM - EEIEEFRMERN
FEE - BUE RO R A
W& BB B R E IR ©

SETHFBLEERE KA
EEEVMELNRE SRR
BAERRYMTHE  LEK
AEERNMEEEZRNENR
S NERHBERERNRA
RERNREAEELEE

BRISEXBMEENEERE
MBIEEEM  BKERENS
B omEm  BRIEANTFE
M BNEEEENIEAR
BERE - BEOEES -

BREEALERR R - &8

through the implementation of the aforesaid policies and measures for waste R & BREE e &I M
reduction: D
Total annual weight Intensity per production unit
(gram/piece)
2EHE BEEBUNEHEE
Types of wastes BEYER (/1)
2020 2019 2020 2019
—1—7q£ j-LE'E —v—vﬂi :%@—j‘hﬂi
Hazardous waste BEEEY 34 8.80 490
Non-hazardous waste BEREEY) 7.6 34.69 10.94
Reduction of wastewater discharge ALK

The Group's factory in Shenzhen discharges both industrial and domestic
wastewater. The factory has installed sewage treatment facilities to reduce
the pollutants in the wastewater, and has additional facility for re-use of the
treated wastewater. This approach not only reduces wastewater discharge

but also helps the Group to use less fresh water.

SEERINIREHEELT
RBEKREREK  THEER
AR R LR D KA )5
) BRIMRELERIZEN
BEKBRERER @ R BEKE
MR REEEE AKE -
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Reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG) emission

The Group seeks to adopt renewable or other clean energy in replacement
of coal combustion facilities in order to reduce the generation and emission
of sulphur and nitrogen oxides. In addition, the Group actively implements

other administrative means to reduce GHG emissions, including:

Reduction of business trips

The Group thoroughly understands that business trips increase energy
consumption and lead to an increase in GHG emissions; therefore, the Group
actively decreases the number of business trips to reduce GHG emissions,
and switches to other effective communication methods, including avoidance
of long-distance meetings which are replaced with telephone and/or video
conferences, as well as using bulk courier service instead of conducting

delivery ourselves to reduce GHG emissions from additional traffic.

Sourcing from local suppliers

Similar to business trips, sourcing with non-local suppliers requires additional
transportation which increases energy consumption and GHG emissions.
Preference is given to local suppliers as long as they meet the Group's
requirements. In each procurement process, the Group will firstly consider
and invite local suppliers to provide quotations and product information, and
then giving balanced consideration to factors such as raw material quality, cost
and environmental protection. Non-local procurement will be considered

only when the local suppliers fail to meet the relevant conditions.

Annual Report 2020 £

AR EREEII

SESRRATBESEMRF
AR REBEMRRE DM
W RECHEEMBEN - 1
5y REREAEMBITRT B
DRERBOIN - B

WA AR E

SERVZMALS L Z 26
TRRRE - BEURERBHMAIE
i MRS D ABRE - RE
AABmEHHRERBIN
BREMERNART S B
BERTREEE  UEFER/
FRGERNA - LANEREE
REZDHUBRKBTEE &
NRD BBINTBERNBER
RPN -

IR EERE

RRFERHEEHAREINE
BB BANERKLE  H
FEIR NBETRBRE KR ER AR A HE
WMo MERNESE R RGNS
T EBERERIHMMAERE - EF
REORERE  SEELEER
BR AR EAERERRHE
mEE - KEEFEERRY
EE A REREFHE
REEAHHERRE A
BRI - T ZRIEAREE -



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Environmental education

The Group understands the long-term impact of the electronics industry on
the environment, and hence has taken on an active role in the supply chain to
promote the importance of emission reduction. The Group has established
environmental management measures for suppliers to follow, including: for
all vehicles that enter the Group's premises, engines must be turned off and
may not be kept idle which emits exhaust within the factory's premises; the
exhaust emissions need to comply with the environmental requirements; all
persons within the factory's premises shall abide by the requirements such
as waste classification, no littering and no smoking. In addition, the Group
requires chemical suppliers and transporters to ensure that chemicals are
protected against leakage before arrival and the packaging, containers and
labels of chemicals must comply with the relevant regulatory requirements;
and the supply of materials, semi-finished products and finished products
shall not contain any intentional or unintentional addition of flammable and

explosive substances.

The Group also incorporates the concept of environmental protection
into employee’s annual training program to enhance their environmental
awareness. Environmental training topics include RoHS, ISO 14001
environmental awareness, waste classification, chemical safety and so on. For
key positions such as manufacturing and cleaning, trainings are provided to
new employees of each month to ensure that they can classify and identify
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes as well as arrange the qualified recycling

companies for handling.

BB - g RERHRE

RRHUE

SEABETEFRUYRENRE
B WHERERTEZRRGN
BB BOEERENERN
HIE TRBEREREREER
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Ek e pehh - REER(CERHE
LB R B m i E A
B R RER - ML2mNE
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HE

During the reporting period, the Group did not have any non-compliance

incidents of environmental legislations. The sources and emission volumes of

GHG are as follows:

Total consumption volumes

EHREHE - SFERAEMER
REEPIMBERELE - BE
RSB R AR EI T

Nl = DEs
/m 2 K\ f=

GHG emission volumes

(kg carbon dioxide equivalent)

BRERBHNE
GHG emission sources BRERENHER REE (AF=E{tREE)
2020 2019 2020 2019
BB —T-NF BB —T-NF
Diesel consumption from ElERE S mES
stationary sources (litres) (RF) 0 0 0 0
Diesel consumption from MEBNRE S E
mobile sources (litres) (BFH) 90 60 240.2 160
Gasoline consumption from MERE)VHFAE
mobile sources (litres) (BFH) 3,732 17,891 8,484 40,673
Natural gas consumption RARFE
(cubic meters) (SLAXK) 13,713 15711 30,060 34,440
Power consumption of facilities REFEEE
(KWh) (FELes) 2,055,061 2,776,492 1,720,148 2,342,757
Total GHG emissions RERBOIMEE - - 1,758,933 2,418,030
Production volume (piece) HEE(H) - - 193,120 694,439
GHG emission intensity RERBHERTE - - 9.1 348
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3.1.2 Use of Resources 312 BREA

The Group understands that the resources on the planet are limited,
therefore appropriate measures have been implemented to enhance the

efficiency of resources used, including:

Energy saving

In order to reduce energy consumption, the Group uses energy-efficient
products and equipment as much as possible, and actively plans to replace
equipment with high energy consumption, such as replacement of the
factory's traditional electric lights with LED lights in 2018. The air conditioning
system uses a central control to effectively manage the temperature of each
department and automatic shutdown is scheduled at a specified time to
reduce additional energy consumption caused by uncontrolled temperature
adjustments. In addition, an employee’s code for energy saving has been
formulated, which requires employees to tumn off electrical devices in office
and production when off work, in order to ensure all machinery are shut
down when out of working hours. The goal is to help employees nurture a

habit of “shutting down machinery when leaving workplace”.

Water conservation

In addition to re-use of treated wastewater, the Group has adopted
various administrative measures to enhance water consumption efficiency.
Wastewater is collected in daily operations and used for non-production
purposes, such as toilet flushing or floor cleaning. Inspection and timely repairs
for leakage are conducted on water-consuming equipment in the production
workshops and offices to avoid water wastage. Also, water conservation
slogans are posted on bulletin boards to enhance employees' awareness
of water conservation, and remind employees and visitors of water saving.
During meetings, bottled water is replaced by reusable water containers to

change the unfavourable employees’ habit of using bottled water at meetings.
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The Group's production site in Shenzhen has demonstrated the following
achievements in the reporting period through the implementation of the

aforesaid policies and measures for water conservation:

Sources/types of water used

BREEIA LS RKEER LB
SENFYEEEMERS
HARRI 2 BUS DA AL -

Volume of water saved

JiibiSTA Ve - 1 HEAKE
Re-use of treated production wastewater 3 cubic meters per month
TR AR IRR M EEREK 375K/ H
Wastewater used for flushing toilets and cleaning floors 3 cubic meters per month
BEZ /KRR RIS HAR 37K/ A
Bottled water replaced by reusable water container in meeting 20 bottles per meeting
A & AR B 7K 28 AR AR OK 207K &%

Saving of office resources

Electronic documentation is promoted in daily operation, hardcopies are
replaced by electronic files in computer and whenever possible paperless
office operation is implemented to reduce the use of paper consumables.
The Group sets targets on paper usage, setting out expectations on paper
saving for all departments. Employees are required to practice double-sided
printing. When copying or printing files, paper with only one side used should

be collected for re-use to save paper. The amount of paper used in 2020

FRIRAREER

ERBELEPREXMHEF L
R EREFRRERE X
BEETEMMMD - URDH
BEWARAMOER: URER
AENBRET HEEX
PIE TR A AHERE - ZRE
THRRAEEITED - BRI

decreased by 39.2% compared to 2019. DX R - B EmABENAR
EURERA - SRR - =

A summary of various key resources consumed by the Group's operations

during the reporting period is as follows:

Annual consumption (tons)

TEMRRER - NFRD
39.2%

EHREHA - SEEEEHRM
HRENSREEERBIIMT -

Intensity per production unit

2EEB(H) BEEBUNGRTE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—E0%% “ENEF —E0%% “ENF
HongKong  Shenzhen HongKong ~ Shenzhen HongKong  Shenzhen HongKong ~ Shenzhen
GHG emission sources  BER BB HR i) A Bl el i) R B A
Flectricity (K\Wh) EN(TRE) 193,197 1,862404 201852 257,640 | 9.64 0291 3,708
Water (cubic meters) K(LAK) 30 87685 0 117675 0 045 0 0.169
Packaging materials DEME(AH) N/A N/A N/A N/A
(paper) (piece) (MEE) TER 153908  TER 4720016  TEA 791 TiER 6798
Packaging matenials BENH(BH) N/A N/A N/A N/A
(plastic) (piece) (PAEETE) TER S MER 673077 TEA 411 MER 9692
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313 BEREALER

3.1.3 The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group understands the environmental concerns from both community
and customers. The Company promotes policy on green manufacturing and

green procurement policy:

Green procurement policy

Subject to fulfillment of the Group's operating and pricing requirements,
preference is given to suppliers who are able to provide environmentally
friendly products and/or services, including environmentally certified
materials or services (such as RoHS and REACH compliant materials), use
of products made of natural materials, products free of toxic and hazardous
substances, and other products/devices compliant with the relevant
environmental regulations. The Group has been actively promoting the
proportion of environmental suppliers (the proportion of suppliers providing
environmentally friendly materials to the total suppliers), with the goal that

the materials provided by suppliers are 1009% RoHS compliant.

Green manufacturing policy

Since the Group's business is the manufacturing of electronic products, the
main environmental impacts are electronic waste generation and resource
consumption during the production process. Therefore, a green manufacturing
policy has been implemented along with the green procurement policy
to provide customers with environmental compliant products, including
compliance with the local environmental laws for importing countries, such as
RoHS, REACH.

The Group is committed to the use of energy-efficient and water-efficient
equipment in the manufacturing process. Resource recycling process is
established to collect the reusable packaging materials for proper handling,
in order to reduce waste generation and wastage of various production
resources. A sewage treatment plant treats wastewater from production
to meet environmental standards, which is then is recycled to be used for
production or other purposes. This not only reduces wastewater discharge

but also decreases the total water consumption.
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3.2

64

The Group has formulated day-to-day management measures to reduce and
control the emissions of hazardous wastes. Annual environmental trainings
are provided to employees to enhance their environmental awareness and to

implement environmental management measures.

In addition, the Group regularly monitors its significant environmental
impacts to ensure compliance with local regulations. Regular environmental
investigations are conducted to ensure timely discovery of non-compliance

incidents and implementation of corrective and preventive actions.

Society

3.2.1 Employment

In addition to complying with local employment regulations, the Group has
also formulated a series of employment policies to ensure that employees are

treated in a fair and reasonable manner.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group recruits employees through the company’s website, email,
advertisements, etc., and gives equal opportunity to every job applicant.
The Group does not reject applicants out of gender, age, race, and other
physical conditions. Employment decisions are solely based on fulfilment of
the job requirements, and the Group does not discriminate against physically
disabled applicants. Besides local applicants, applicants of other ethnicities and
nationalities are also considered at the time of recruitment, including ethnic

minorities and expatriates.

Regarding the mechanism for employee’s promotion, the Group only refers
to the employee’s performance, experience and competence, and does not
consider other irrelevant attributes such as marital status, physical condition

and gender, etc.
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Wages and benefits

The Group enters into a contract of employment with its employees
in accordance with local laws to ensure employees’ legal rights in the
employment relationship, including the payment of legal minimum wage,
and employees' entitlement to paid holidays, vacation, sick leave and leave
for work-related injury. In addition to the purchase of social insurance for

employees according to local employment regulations, the Group also

purchases commercial insurance beyond the local regulations in order

to reduce employee's cost of seeking for medical services. In case of

work-related injuries and accidents, the Group will arrange reasonable

compensation for its employees and their families in accordance with laws.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover or receive any

violations or complaints regarding discrimination or recruitment. As of 3|

December 2020, the total number and distribution of employees within the

Group are as follows:

BB - g RERHRE

FrWE T

SEREBEHEPHETE
TREEGYN REEILERESD
REERETERR  BREERFEE
TEMSIM BIREZEFE
RS - ABRAIIERS - Bk
TREMNERGIAELIRE
HeRk ERAEIBEEMNE
RSN R - BRIEETE
BRERBGHOKAR - BIITES
BREIE  KRESHREHET
RERBLHEIEIEE -

ERERRN - SERAERAIW
HEAREE R BEREREY
&&*l?°@§ T_TF
A=+—8 £BRAMETL
%ﬁ ABLan T
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Number of employees

BEAH
2020 2019
—g-%f —hiF
Hong Kong Shenzhen Hong Kong Shenzhen
Gender 5 ] 3l A wI
Male i 3 143 4 148
Female it 5 277 325
Number of employees
EEAH
2020 2019
ko 43 —hF
Hong Kong Shenzhen Hong Kong Shenzhen
Job type TIEER i il BB R
Full-time g 420 10 473
Part-time B 0 0 0

Annual Report 2020 £ 65



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI - 4 ERERERE
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Number of employees

BEAH
2020 2019
—g-%5 e
Hong Kong Shenzhen Hong Kong Shenzhen
Age ETER i w3 ) sl
18-30 [8-30 0 25 0 45
31-45 31-45 4 264 5 315
46-60 46-60 4 131 5 3
> 60 > 60 0 0 0 0
Total B2 8 420 10 473
Average monthly employee turnover rate (%)
FHIBRAEERKE (%)
2020 2019
b St 223 —T-NF
Hong Kong Shenzhen Hong Kong Shenzhen
Gender Bl i w3 Bk il
Male i 5.56 0.87 12,5 3.15
Fernale g 1.67 1.8 417 297
Average monthly employee turnover rate (%)
FHIBREERKE %)
2020 2019
—z-%% —2-nE
Hong Kong Shenzhen Hong Kong Shenzhen
Age EIFR &g gl BB sl
18-30 18-30 0 2.67 833 1037
31-45 31-45 2.08 1.58 6.67 259
46-60 46-60 4.17 1.08 1.67 096
> 60 > 60 0 0 0 833
Total average BT 3.13 1.78 7.22 742
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3.2.2 Hedlth and Safety 322 REHEZE

The Group is committed to achieving the goal of zero work accidents
through different measures to prevent the occurrence of occupational

diseases and work-related injuries and fatalities.

Workplace Safety Management

The Group conducts annual safety monitoring to identify potential safety
hazards, and implement corrective and preventive actions in a timely manner.
The Group installed protective devices for the production equipment and
machinery in the workplace to ensure that employees are not exposed to
dangerous parts. The compliance of the workplace is monitored, including
the provision of adequate fire equipment and regular safety inspection. In
addition, suppliers are requested to follow safety practice within the Group's
premises. All vehicles within the premises must be limited to the speed of
10 km/hour with no horns allowed. Their driving routes shall follow the

instructions from the security team.

Employee Safety Training

The Group provides personal protective equipment to employees where
necessary, and arranges appropriate occupational health and safety trainings,
including the proper usage of protective equipment, awareness of safety
risks in the work place, content in the material safety data sheet and the
use, storage and emergency response to leakage of chemicals. The Group
also arranges fire and emergency drills regularly to train employees on the

evacuation routes at dangerous situations.

SR HERTIERINE
B AR EMEEHEE T
BERETXHETMRLE -

TIESHZ XL ERE

EEBTFELRENTE &K
HE2BE - RERTUERE
Difeie - HTIEGATRAERE
Rz REHELEE  BRE
THRBETIGRMIG0 - BEET
ESRE MR - BREEER
WEE M - WEH#ITES
BE oI BREERTEEER
HENETLRBRIE LEAR
AMEH—EZRRT/KIORE
VAR - RIS RWIN - 1TER R AR
ERERLTHRE -

B Tx2i53

SEELRERE TREEAR
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Work-life Balance

The Group never forces employees to work overtime, and regularly
organises recreational activities, psychological counselling and trainings to help
employees relief stress, including psychological health seminars, family days,
tug-of-wars, seaside walk, watching movies, hand-craft, and explores various

sport activities amongst employees.

In addition, the Group is very concerned about how employees view the
Company, therefore employees’ communication channels and suggestion
boxes have been set up. The suggestions collected from the employees are
followed up on a regular basis. Employee representatives are selected from
each department with the Group and they shall meet regularly for discussion

and sharing.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover any violations against
the local occupational health and safety regulations. Within the reporting
period, no work-related fatality and lost day due to work-related injury was

found.
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3.2.3 Development and Training

The Group has established a comprehensive training system. Apart from
general classroom trainings, the Group emphasises on-the-job exercises and
a mentor is assigned to every new employee. Through this apprenticeship
programme, the mentor gives hands-on guidance and supervises the new
employee in accomplishing his/her work, which enhances training efficiency
and the new employee’s performance. Adjustments could be made to the
apprenticeship program according to the new employee's competence and
experience. At the same time, based on the Group's strategies for product
and business development, career development plans are formulated for

employees to support the sustainable development of the Group's business.

During the reporting period, the monthly average percentage of employees
who have received training within the Group and the monthly average

number of trained hours received by each employee are as follows:

Monthly average percentage of

trained employees (%)

BB - g RERHRE

323 BEREH

SEEYTENRIER KT
—REREFIN - RERAT
FEE  BRHEETHREMHN
BT - LAIER{E IO AR & 15
BREBHEITHIE &
AR e #T B TR - [RD7s
{E ISEFIAT AR 3T B TH N RIgE
RABSEKFEHBERE - FE
ORI e 2 ) B B R TS PR R R
HETHTBRER;E - R
PREXBOFEER -

EHREHHE - KEAEZIE
WEENEAFHEILRESA
BEMEAFOEIEENAT

Monthly average number of

trained hours per employee

BEXEINEENEATYIEI BEEENEATIHIREY
2020 2019 2020 2019
b St 23 “ENF St 22 “TNF
HongKong  Shenzhen HongKong ~ Shenzhen HongKong  Shenzhen HongKong  Shenzhen
Gender 3l £l sl BE el B sl BE Vsl
Male St 0 6.l 04 146 3 51 00! 295
Fernale it 0 7. 04 173 0 55 00! 753
Monthly average percentage of Monthly average number of
trained employees (%) trained hours per employee
BRI ESNER TR BEERNEATEIIRE
2020 2019 2020 2019
St 22 “ENF it St 22 “Z-nE
HongKong  Shenzhen HongKong ~ Shenzhen HongKong  Shenzhen HongKong ~ Shenzhen
Employee level FESS B M B OB B R E W
Senior management aRERE 0 13 08 - 0 10 002 -
Middle management PREZE 8 8 08 9 8 I 002 024
Junior employee NRET 0 6 - 5 0 58 - 1136
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3.2.4 Labour Standards

The Group strictly prohibits the employment of child labour and will only
employ employees aged 18 or above. The Group follows the principle
of voluntary overtime to ensure that employees are willing to work and
employee’s personal freedom is protected. The Group is committed not to
force employees to work overtime nor to work in any form of forced labour,

including not using any bonded labours such as prison workers.

For effective prevention of child labour, the applicant’s identity document
will be carefully examined at the time of recruitment to confirm the age of
the applicant, and the application from an applicant less than |8 years of age
shall be excluded. In addition, the Group's personnel management system
set up an alert function to signal any applicant under the age of 8. With this
double gate-keeping mechanism, the risk of recruitment of child labour could
be avoided. Under the daily management, child labour will be terminated

immediately when he/she is discovered within the Group.

The Group has also set up measures to prevent forced labour. Employees
are required to submit working hours to their immediate supervisors. The
human resources department will review employees’ working hours, and
would investigate immediately and stop the relevant work assignment in case

of involuntarily overtime identified.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover any employment
of child labour nor any violation against the laws and regulations related to

forced labour.
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3.2.5 Supply Chain Management 325 HEEERE
The Group has developed supplier management policy for communication SEFETHEREERRRE
to the suppliers the expectations of the Group and the requirements that Ko RHtEEARSENREY
they need to abide by. The policy covers quality, environmental management, ERMPIREABET - BLE
health and safety, social responsibility, and anti-terrorism management, etc. BHRRBENSERRELZE &
and these aspects are also the criteria for supplier selection. The Group BEE BREZE HEREE-
has established a supplier selection and evaluation procedure, which RBEBELHE  M&FEAHE
conducted an initial review of new suppliers and an annual evaluation of MekEHEEmNER - £8=
key suppliers in the form of on-site audits or questionnaires. The contents VTHEREERTERF ¥
of the evaluation include product quality, delivery time, environment, use of M ERETE T E L E R
environmental friendly materials, and management of hazardous substances. f?ﬁf?ﬁi&ﬂir 8 AR
After the evaluation, results shall be recorded as monitoring evidence for the Vﬂz%ﬂ%%& HIT o FEANR
subsequent long-term partnership. E?‘EE £ REH RE-

fﬁ%%’%ﬁﬁ)ﬂ CHEDEER
HEEBBRIVKCHRIERBR
RHAEBHMEEKE -

Besides the aforesaid evaluation scope, procurement preference will be R EMFTESEEN  §EEERE

given to local suppliers over their non-local counterparts who demonstrated BRARGHENEBEER @ £)8

the same performance level from evaluation. Non-local suppliers shall be EEMNANMEEEES Rk

considered only when no qualified local supplier available. Currently, local KE - BRIAMMBERIEARD

suppliers account for approximately 73.1%. As of 31 December 2020, the 731% BE_T-_TF+_H

geographical distribution of the Group's suppliers is as follows: =t—HIE SEHEEMIE
DRI

Number of suppliers

Geographical locations 1 @i HEBYE
2020 2019
—E2-%HF —TNF
China F 14 177
Hong Kong BE 38 95
USA ES 7
Taiwan a8 5
Germany =6 - 3
Other Hith - B)
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3.2.6 Product Responsibility

72

All products of the Group are subject to strict quality inspection/testing
before shipping out of the factory, including the sampling and monitoring
of hazardous substances in incoming materials such as 201 1/65/EU the
management procedure for the Restriction of the Use of Hazardous
Substances in Electrical and Electronic Products, in-process quality control,

and safety verification of the final products.

For product promotion and selling, the Group will ensure that the product
information provided to the customer is true and accurate to avoid
misleading the customer at the time of purchase. The Group also has
designated customer service personnel responsible for responding customer

inquiries and initiating product recall when necessary.

The Group has formulated a complaint handling mechanism to analyse with
the quality control department any complaints received from customers, and
will report the results of analysis and follow-up actions to customers within

the specified time frame.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover any customer
complaint or violation against regulations related to product responsibility;
and no item among all products sold was recalled due to product safety and

health reasons.
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Quality Assurance Process

The Group starts the quality control of products at the source. Materials
from suppliers are verified for quality before production, alternatively the
supplier is requested to provide a quality verification report for raw materials.
During the manufacturing process, production lines are inspected and semi-
finished products are sampled for verification to assure the process meets the
specified technical requirements. Final verification shall be executed by the
quality control department at the end of production; only finished products

which pass the verification could be delivered and sold.

Upon identification of abnormal products through either external or internal
findings, the Group shall discuss amongst the relevant departments about the
need for identification, segregation and recall of the abnormal products when
necessary. Whenever product recall is necessary, the Group shall collect
the relevant batches of products from the customer, and implement the

procedure of nonconforming products for analysis and disposal.

Product Recall/Return Procedure

The Group has established a product recall/return channel that allow
customers to report product defects through telephone or email. Internal
staff in the Group shall then evaluate the decision on product return upon
receipt of customer’s report. Whenever product retum is deemed necessary,
the marketing department shall inform the customer to return the relevant
product. The warehouse department will record and track the returned
products, and notify the quality department to conduct cause analysis in order

to identify solutions and subsequent preventive measures.
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Intellectual Property Protection

All products sold by the Group are newly designed on our own. To confirm
intellectual property, products are regularly sampled to check if their designs
belong to the Group's own companies. Upon discovery of designs that

infringe copyright, the product will immediately be taken off shelves.

The Group only adopts products from its own design centre, and the design
centre does not plagiarize the design of other institutions. Design department
employees are prohibited by their employment contracts from any acts
of plagiarism and are required to undertake that all produced designs are
company property and to assume responsibility for the confidentiality of their

own produced designs.

Currently, the Group has 5 product patents registered in the USA, 4 product
patents registered in the European Union, 9 product patents registered in
the PRC, and | product patent registered in Hong Kong. For management of
information security, the Group has established a Knowledge Management
System (“KMS") through which information of the Group's own design and

product specifications from customers are encrypted to prevent data leakage.

The Group undertakes not to purchase any pirated office software, and such
software shall only be purchased from suppliers who have the appropriate
copyright; in addition, the IT Department conducts internal audit to monitor
any download of pirated software by employees. When employees are
discovered using pirated software, he/she will be instructed to delete the
pirated software immediately and issued a warning letter for prevention of

recurrence.
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Privacy Protection of Consumer Information

The Group has developed a policy for protection of consumer information
and privacy. Consumer information will not be used for publicity or
promotion without consumer’s permission. If business operations require
passing consumer data to contractors, the Group shall enter into a
confidentiality agreement with the contractor and require the contractor
to have a comprehensive information security management system for

preventing leakage and theft of customer information.

Anti-Corruption

The Group has established corporate governance policies in accordance with
the CG Code from the Stock Exchange. Also, the Group has formulated
an anti-corruption policy and prohibits the Company's Directors, managers,

employees and other representatives from giving or accepting bribes.

Internal Audit of Corporate Governance

The Group has established an AC which is responsible for developing internal
audit control procedures and annual audit plans for the Group. The AC
conducts audits in an ongoing and systematic manner in accordance with the
annual audit plan and the additional tasks delegated by the top management.
Audit reports are regularly communicated with the management and
disclosed to the AC. Corrective actions and subsequent follow-ups shall be

implemented in accordance with the time frame specified in the audit report.

Moreover, the Group engages an independent third party to audit the
Group's financial accounts, to ensure the Company's accounts are clear and
accurate for enhancement of internal financial control and supervision so that

the interests of shareholders are protected.
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Anti-Corruption Awareness Training

The Group declares its internal code of integrity at least once a year with an
emphasis on the awareness of corporate integrity; this includes the principle
that the Group never owes compensation, benefits and bonuses to its
employees and never owes payments to its suppliers. Also, additional effort is
made to strengthen the awareness of anti-corruption to key departments and
positions. The Group communicates anti-corruption and integrity through
hotline, website and posters, and has established investigation channel for
employees to report suspected fraud or corruption and other illegal incidents

such as extortion and money laundering.

Whistle-blowing Procedure

The Group has a whistle-blowing mechanism and communication channel for
employees, customers and suppliers to freely report any on fraud, corruption
and other illegal incidents. The reporting person may send a written message
to the mailbox of IA in confidence and with anonymity. Upon receipt, the |1A
shall conduct investigation with other relevant departments such as human
resources, legal, logistics and career development, and then return the

investigation results to the reporting person.

Anti-Corruption Measures

In addition, the Group has established anti-corruption measures for various
aspects, including the declaration of personal interests by new employees
upon commencing employment. Further, Directors are required to declare
according to the law their own interests including those in the competition
business; regarding procurement, evaluation from at least three suppliers is
required to obtain fair and reliable quotes for making procurement decision;
for approval of service contracts, different levels of personnel are authorized
corresponding to different levels of contract amount in order to ensure

adequate review.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover any legal cases or

complaints related to corruption.
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The Directors of the Company are pleased to present to the shareholders their annual
report and audited financial statements of the Group during the year ended 3| December
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its principal subsidiaries are engaged
in investment holdings, design, development, manufacturing, marketing and distribution of
lifestyle electronic products. Details of the principal activities of the Group are set out in

note | to the consolidated financial statements.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of revenue and segment information are set out in note 6 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 3| December 2020 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 96 and

further analysis is given in the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

The Directors do not recommend the distribution of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: nil).

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 200.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year ended 31

December 2020 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 99, and the
financial information of the Company in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements,

respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2020, the Company did not have reserves available for distribution as

calculated in accordance with the provisions of the laws of Bermuda.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group spent an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$0.3 million (for the year ended 31 December 2019: approximately
HK$1.0 million) on the acquisition of property, plant and equipment for the purpose of

business expansion.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are

set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the aggregate percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers in the year accounted for approximately
36.7% of the Group's purchases and the purchases attributable to the largest supplier

accounted for approximately | 1.3% of the Group's purchases.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the aggregate percentage of turnover
attributable to the Group's five largest customers was approximately 67.6% of the Group’s
turnover and the percentage of turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer was

approximately 27.8% of the Group’s tumover.
None of the directors, their associates or shareholders, who to the knowledge of the

Directors own more than 5% of the Company'’s share capital, had any interest in any of the

five largest customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the

date of this report are:

Executive Director:

Zhu Yongning (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Directors:

Song Rongrong (Resigned on 28 February 2020)
Wu Qing (Appointed on 31 March 2020, resigned on 16 July 2020)

Cui Xiao (Appointed on 25 August 2020)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Zhou Meilin
Zhou Rui

Xu Jinwen

In accordance with Bye-Law 89 of the Company's Bye-Laws, any Director appointed as an
additional Director or to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election but shall not
be taken into account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors who are to

retire by rotation at such meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange. The Company considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors as

independent.
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DIRECTORS BIOGRAPHY

Biographical details of the existing Directors are set out on pages || to |3 of this annual

report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years which can be terminated by either party giving a
three month’s written notice to the other party. Under such service contract, each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors is subject to retirement by rotation at the AGM of
the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, and is entitled to a fee subject
to such adjustments as the Board of the Company considers appropriate and the approval
of the shareholders at AGM of the Company. Remuneration shall be paid to a Director for

appointment as a member of a particular committee.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group

within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or in existence during
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

The Directors or chief executives of the Company or any of their associates had, as at
31 December 2020, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO")) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under the
provisions of the SFO) or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Name Nature of interests

i BEME
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No. of
shares held shared capital

FEROBE EERTRABIL

% of the issued

Zhu Yongning (Note )
AoKEMED)

The interests of the controlled corporation

gzt =0pnEdf: oL il
Note:

(1) Zhu Yongning holds 100% of the equity interests of China Huaneng Foundation Construction
Investment Ltd (“Huaneng"). Therefore, it is deemed to be interested in the interest in the

shares of the Company held by Huaneng through its subsidiary.

The letter “L"" denotes the shareholder's long position in the shares.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The effective share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by
the Company on 29 August 2012. During the period under review, no share was granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the 2012 Share Option Scheme. As at 31 December

2020, there was no outstanding share option of the Company.

753,997,995 (L) 29.00%
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

No share options were granted to or exercised by the Directors during year ended 31

December 2020 and there is no outstanding balance as at 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2020 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or
their respective spouse or children under the age of |8 to acquire benefits by means of the

acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (other than the Directors or the chief
executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

under section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company:

EEREROVEER 2ER

REE_Z-_ZF+_A=1+—-RLFEE
STHEERATEERERN T _ZF
TZA=t—BAERRITE 2 BAHE -

BREXMBEEEN  NEE FF+=
A=+T—HLEEE K2 ﬂﬁkﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ%g
AR ESEEMNLH  EEFREERNZE
BT \BEATZFRAEBEARAHAE
{ATEAMEABRR 2 B S EREE MES A

FERR

R-ZZE-ZF+-A=+—H8 BRAQAE
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B 3361578 T 17 < B e prac sk sk A M
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No. of % of the issued

shares held shared capital

FrERHEE HEBRITREABIL

Name £%

China Huaneng Foundation Construction B A ERIRE
Investment Ltd BRLTE

Zhu Yongning (Note 1) RAKE ()

Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology IHRE SRR D
Co. Ltd (Note 2) ARAB(PHE2)

Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology TEHEE SR (B R
(Hong Kong) Co. Limited (Note 3) ARAB(PHEE3)

Hongtu High Technology Int'l Inc. Hongtu High Technology Int'l Inc.
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Notes:

Zhu Yongning holds 100% of the equity interests of China Huaneng Foundation Construction
Investment Ltd (“Huaneng”). Therefore, it is deemed to be interested in the interest in the

shares of the Company held by Huaneng through its subsidiary.

Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology Co., Ltd. holds 100% of the equity interests of Jiangsu
Hongtu High Technology (Hong Kong) Co. Limited (“Hongtu (HK)"). Therefore, it is deemed
to be interested in the interest in the shares of the Company held by Hongtu (HK) through its

subsidiary (see note 3 below).

Hongtu (HK) holds 100% of the issued share of Hongtu High Technology Int!l Inc. (“Hongtu
(Seychelles)”). Therefore, Hongtu (HK) is deemed to be interested in the 556,898,770 shares
of the Company beneficially owned by Hongtu (Seychelles) by virtue of its shareholding of
Hongtu (Seychelles).

The letter "L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in the shares.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by any person (other than

the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions

in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 31 December 2020 which

were required to be disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO or which were

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the

SFO.
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
at 31 December 2020.

There was no issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar

rights of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Details of the Group's remuneration policy are set out in the section of “Management

Discussion and Analysis” from pages 22 to 23 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the “Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions”). This is on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10

to the Listing Rules, and has been updated from time to time.
Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had

complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and the Code of
Conduct for Securities Transactions throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Board members have been reminded of their obligation to comply with the Model

Code and the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group's corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 24 to 49 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-Laws or the laws
of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to

existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2020 as required under the
Listing Rules.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has established an AC for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the financial reporting process and internal controls of the Group. As at
the date of this report, the AC comprises all three Independent Non-Executive Directors

of the Company.

The audited financial results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 have
been reviewed by the AC.
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THE BOARD’S RESPONSE TO THE AUDITOR’S OPINION

Reference is made to the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2020 (“FY2020")
which was published on 30 March 2021 (the “2020 Annual Results) which contains,
among others, the sections headed "Disclaimer of Opinion™ and “Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion” on page 23 of the 2020 Annual Results, and the sections headed “Directors’
view on the draft independent auditor's opinion”, “The Board's Response to the Auditor's
Opinion” and "The Board's Response to “Disclaimer of Opinion — Going Concern” on
page 24 of the 2020 Annual Results.

The Board would like to provide further information with regard to the above as follows:

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

The auditor of the Company, being Mazars CPA Limited (the “Auditor”) issued a disclaimer
of opinion (the "Disclaimer of Opinion™) on the 2020 Annual Results in relation to going
concem in light of the fact that the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$200.2 million and net liabilities of approximately HK$221.3 million, and that the Group
incurred a loss of approximately HK$95.8 million in 2020.

With respect to the Disclaimer of Opinion, the directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and to meet its financial obligations for at least the next 12 months from the
date of approval of the consolidated financial statements, after taking into consideration of

the measures (the “Measures”) set out on pages 5-6 of the 2020 Annual Results.
However, as set out on page 23 of the 2020 Annual Results, the Auditor is of the view

that it has not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis

for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.
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Board’s Response to “Disclaimer of Opinion — Going Concern”

The board (the “Board”) of Directors would like to provide certain additional and update
information in relation to the section headed “the Board's response to the Auditor’s
Opinion” on page 24 of the 2020 Annual Results.

I. China Huaneng Foundation Construction Investment Limited (“Huaneng”), the
largest shareholder of the Company and its substantial shareholder, has committed
and has proved their ability to provide continuous financial support to the Group as
is necessary to enable the Group to meet its day-to-day operations and its financial
obligations as they fall due.

With respect to this, the Board and the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
Committee”) are satisfied that Huaneng has the financial ability to provide financial
support to the Company to enable it to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due on the following basis:

(@)  As disclosed on page 3 of 2020 Annual Results, while the net current
liabilities of the Group amounted to approximately HK$200.2 million as of
31 December 2020, it should be noted that it included, among others, a loan
from a shareholder (ie. Huaneng) which was classified as current liabilities
amounted to HK$121.5 million. Accordingly, the net current liabilities of the
Group, if the loan from Huaneng is disregarded, would be mitigated to a
lesser amount of approximately HK$78.7 million.

(b)  Mr. Zhu Yongning (“Mr. Zhu", chairman of the Company), the ultimate
owner of Huaneng, has provided, among others, valuation report of a real
property jointly owned by Huaneng as to 50%. Based on the valuation
report, the market value of the property amounts to RMBI36.1 million,
and accordingly the market value of 50% ownership of the property would
amount to approximately RMB68 million equivalent to approximately HK$8
million, which is a sum more than the above amount of current liabilities of
the Group (after deducting the sum owed by the Group to Huaneng) of
HK$78.7 million. It is also noted that the aforesaid real property is situated in
Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and is unencumbered.
The Board and Audit Committee take note of the Auditor’s view that real
property is not as liquid as cash and that there is no assurance that Huaneng
would be able to cash out by disposing of the property in the market.
However, the Directors and Audit Committee are of the view that, as
properties in Shanghai are comparatively liquid in the market as compared to
other cities in the PRC and the past transaction records of similar properties,
it is confident that Mr. Zhu would be able to cash out on the property and
provide the financial support to Huaneng and/or the Group if needed and
Mr. Zhu had expressed that he would be willing to do so.
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Huaneng has undertaken that the repayment of its loan to the Group of
approximately HK$121.5 million as at 31 December 2020 will not be requested
within 12 months from the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020, unless the Group has
obtained funding from other sources and is in a position to meet all repayment
obligations at that time.

With respect to this, the Board understood the Auditor's concern that Huaneng's
advance to the Company may still be repayable upon demand. However, the Board
considers that Huaneng, as the largest shareholder of the Company, will comply
with its undertaking and will not demand for repayment in breach of its undertaking
for the following reasons:

(@  Huaneng has demonstrated its commitment to providing financial support
and provided loan to the Company in the amount of HK$69.0 million in 2019
and HK$121.5 million in 2020. As such, the loan provided to the Company
by Huaneng was not a random one, but a commitment to the long-term
development of the Group by and as a substantial shareholder.

(b)  Huaneng, as the largest shareholder, would not be incentivised to demand
repayment from Company unless the Group has obtained funding from other
sources and is in a position to meet all repayment obligations at that time.

The Group continues to improve the operating efficiency by implementing measures
to tighten cost controls over various operating expenses in order to enhance its
profitability and to improve the cash flow from its operation in future.

With respect to this, the Board understood the Auditor's concern on the efficiency
of cost control measures. However, the Board is optimistic that such cost control
measures would be effective. To supplement the disclosure in the 2020 Annual
Results, the Board would like to draw the shareholders the attention of the
following:

(@)  As disclosed on page 24 of the 2020 Annual Results, the Board will appoint
a team, which will be led by the chief executive officer of the Company, to
monitor the daily cashflow so as to ensure the Group has sufficient financial
resources to settle the Group's financial obligation when fall due.

(b)  The Group's cost control measure has shown positive impact in 2020. For
example, general administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December
2020 had reduced by 19.1%.
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() The costs control measures already implemented by the Group since 2019
is expected to continue in 2021, which will include, without limitation,
improving the efficiency on the supply chain of the Group, with a view to
enhance the profitability and improve the cash flow of the Group.

The Group continues to negotiate with/seek opportunities from financial institutions
for the renewal of existing/inception of the new financing arrangement to meet
the Group's work capital and financial requirements in the future. On 27 March
2020, the Group had successfully renewed the outstanding borrowing and interest
payables with new maturity date on 31 March 2026, details of the borrowing are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements in the 2020 Annual Results.

With respect to this, the Board understood the Auditor's view that there is no
assurance of seeking new financing. However, the Board will make endeavours
to defer the repayment date, which has demonstrated by the Group successfully
negotiating to enter into a supplementary agreement with a financial institution to
extend the repayment of RMB30 million at a fixed rate of 8% per annum from 3|
December 2019 to 31 March 2026 at the same fixed rate of 8%.

The Group is actively exploring the availability of alternative source of financing.

With respect to this, the Board understood the Auditor's concern that there is no
definite legal agreement for securing alternative source of financing. However, the
Board will make endeavours to seek financing and is negotiating to seek bank loans
and possibly equity financing by issuing shares for cash.

The documents/information requested by the Auditor to assess the ability of the
Company to continue as going concem are: (1) a cashflow forecast of the Group; (2)
a letter of undertaking signed by Huaneng and Mr. Zhu; (3) an ownership certificate
and a valuation report of properties ultimately owned by Mr. Zhu; and (4) Mr. Zhu's
ownership proof for his shares in Jiangsu Nandasoft Technology Company Limited
(stock code: 8045) (“Nandasoft”), of which, among the 2,782,800,000 domestic
shares issued by Nandasoft, (a) 808,800,000 domestic shares were owned by Jiangsu
Keneng Electricity Technology Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Keneng Electricity”) in which Mr.
Zhu held 90% of its ownership; and (b) 11,983,735 domestic shares were owned by
Jiangsu Jintao Investment Company Ltd. (“Jiangsu Jintao”) which Mr. Zhu held 90%
ownership.

The Group is actively exploring the availability of alternative financing such as
additional bank loans and equity financing. As at the date of this annual report, the
Company has not entered into any legally binding agreements in this regard.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Directors’ Report

ESEHREE

© ZAEBEE-Z-AFREHEX
AgilfEm  HEHMSN _-F
——FRETE - ZERHERE
(BARRR) S AR E LR RN
KA R RAREE W RMEE S R
RIRERE -

AEBREERE /AT RE T
EEREREETER MREKES
ke tMEBAEERKREEES
L% ER RZE-_EF=A=-++
B AEEERNERREEERIE
B FRPEAE T - F=A
=+—B BFEBEHER_Z_TFF
EEBERAMERRWZEIO

REMEEMS  EFCEMEREME
BEARESKHRENER - Aff -
EEeRBOIHEEREE  A£E
KORR I ER  E—RBERBR L
WRBRULCHEEARE0EE T
BTFFREAE%(AE-_Z—NF+_FA
=t HEE-AF=A=1+—8%
AR 2 2 8%5T B.)

AEEERBRN EMBERR

ST E - EFSRRZHMEANY &
HECAE i A REIR EL (b B & SROIR 2 9B
B RM - EFSRBINSKEER
Em@EsRITER BB EITIRNE
BGR & URGAIREMIR AR

R E KRR AR D AR E R
ERENMXME/BRE  (NVAEER
EREEA  QEERKEEEEN
FGRE  Q)BRBEARETERROME
FIARERGBERS : ROREER
TEAAFHEBREBRNARDR (K
o RE5 - 8045) ([BAB R ) 2ty
ZITEREER  Hih - RNEAH=ER
Z41TH92,782,800,000/ 8 A& I -+ (a))T
R ELEE E R R D B R 2 A (flangsu
Keneng Electricity Technology Co., Ltd.)
([IT#FHREE 7 |) 5 4808,800,000/% A
B REERBEIOBNIERE &
(b)/L# £ F 1R E A R A Al (fiangsu Jintao
Investment Company Ltd.) ([T & &% )
BAH 1983735 AER - KEERA
HIO%H A

ALBEFEGBRTEMEE - flangsh
BITERIIRARE - RAFRALE
AREEBULET A BERARN
Z Wi

Annual Report 2020 £ 89



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Directors’ Report

ESEHREE

The Action Plan of the Group

[t is the plan of the Board to continue the Measures above in the year ending 31 December
2021. Moreover, subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2020, the following action
plans have been implemented to further improve the financial situation and cashflow of the
Group:

I. Provision of further loan capital by Huaneng to the Group Huaneng had further
made net advancements in the sum of approximately RMBI5 million to the Group
in April 2021. It is expected that Huaneng, being the largest shareholder of the
Company, will continue to provide financial support from time to time to the

Group.
2. Cost control measures

From the year end till today, the Company has strictly controlled its selling and
administrative expenses such as by closing local and overseas dormant companies

for saving administrative costs of the Group.

3. Marketing campaigns

The management noted that the customers of the Group are still loyal to the
brands of the Group, and hence believes that there will be a significant growth in
the Company's business once the economic activities go back to normal levels. A
series of marketing campaigns will be launched to acquire new customers and bring
back previous customers of the Group, plus the launch of the new products of the
Group which will be focused on wearable technologies in healthcare such as health
tracking smartwatches and smartwatches for cycling. The Group is in the course of
implementing the above measures and will continue to do so in the remainder of
the year 2021.

The Directors had reviewed the Group's cash flow projections prepared by the
management that covered a period of not less than |2 months from 30 March 2021,
being the date of approving the 2020 Annual Results. Having taken into account the
above-mentioned plans and measures, the Directors were of the opinion that the
Group would have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due within the next twelve months
from the date of the consolidated statement of financial position. Accordingly, the

consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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The Directors have explained the above plans to the Auditor that the Group is able
to operate as a going concern and will be able to have sufficient working capital
in the next twelve months from 30 March 2021 after taking into consideration of
the factors in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements in the 2020 Annual

Results.

Despite the evidences and explanations provided to Auditor in relation to the
Group's ability of going concem, Auditor still regarded that due to the uncertainty of
the Group's ability to maintain adequate future cash flows, it was unable to ascertain
whether the assumptions made by the Directors in preparing the consolidated

financial statements on a going concern basis were proper and appropriate.

The Directors have used their best endeavour to provide information and has
explained the situation of the Group to Auditor. In view of the financial performance
of the Group in FY2020 and the uncertainty of macroeconomic environment in
2020 due to the outbreak of COVID-19, the Directors understood the view of the
Auditor.

The Audit Committee understands the audit modification on going concern raised
by Auditor and has discussed it with the Management and Auditor. The Audit

Committee shared the same view with the Management.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period are set out in note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements.

AUDITOR

Pursuant to the shareholders resolution passed in the AGM held on 24 July 2020, Mazars
has been appointed as the auditor of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2020. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to

re-appoint Mazars as auditor of the Company.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company's Bye-laws, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as

a Director.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors' and officers’ liability insurance coverage

for the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the year.

On behalf of the Board
Zhu Yongning
Executive Director (Chief Executive Officer)

30 March 2021
Hong Kong

* For identification purpose only
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mazars
h H & K

TO THE MEMBERS OF IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of IDT International
Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 96
to 199, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.
In all other respects, in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material uncertainty related to going concern

As described in the “Going concern” section in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group reported a loss attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately HK$95.8 million for the year ended 3| December 2020 and, at 3|
December 2020, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
HK$200.2 million and approximately HK$221.3 million, respectively. These conditions,
along with other matters as set forth in the “Going concern’ section in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may

cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
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The validity of the going concern assumption is dependent on the successful and favourable
outcomes of the measures being taken by the management of the Company and the
development of the events as described in the “Going concern” section in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements. The management of the Company is of the opinion that
the Group would be able to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concemn basis, and do not include any
adjustments relating to the recognition of provisions or the realisation and reclassification of
non-current assets and non-current liabilities that may be necessary if the Group is unable

to continue as a going concem.

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the use of going
concern assumption in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. Should the
going concem assumption be inappropriate, adjustments may have to be made to reflect
the situation that assets may need to be realised at the amounts other than which they
are currently recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December
2020.

In addition, the Group may have to recognise further liabilities that might arise, and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current

liabilities, respectively.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations, or have no realistic altermnative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue
an auditor's report. However, because of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit

evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume

responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 30 March 2021

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is:
She Shing Pang
Practising Certificate number: P05510
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mEBRERAEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-TEI-A=t-HIFE

NOTES 2020 2019
(i —BIER —ENE
HK$ million HK$ million
BERETT BEEET
Revenue G 6 55.4 2704
Cost of goods sold SHEM AR (49.8) (239.9)
Gross profit E7 56 305
Other income HegA 16.2 164
Other losses, net HiEE - F8E (4.7) (77)
(Charge) Reversal of loss allowance on (H0kR) B R R AR KB R A
trade receivables 8 (18.2) 7.7
Research expenses MEFAS (273) (29.1)
Distribution and selling expenses DEREERY (14.7) (34.6)
General administrative expenses —MRAITERAX (49.5) (612)
Finance costs AR 9 (32 G
Loss before taxation BB AR 9 (95.8) (83.1)
Taxation HiA 12 - -
Loss for the year rEEEE (95.8) (83.1)
Other comprehensive (loss) income: Hitn 2 H (B8 W -
[tem that may be reclassified subsequently HER st B EF DI Z B R HY
to profit or loss: EH -
Exchange differences arising on translation of MERINRSEENER 25
foreign operations (0.4) 1.0
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEEXHERER (96.2) (82.1)
Loss for the year attributable to: DT RERGEEFERR
— Owners of the Company o YNGIE 7PN (95.8) (83.1)
— Non-controlling interests — IR - =
(95.8) (83.1)
Total comprehensive loss for the year UM REEEAFERE
attributable to: BEAE
— Owners of the Company . YNCIE 7PN (96.2) (82.1)
— Non-controlling interests — IR - =
(96.2) (821
Loss per share BREE
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EARREFBI) 3 (3.68) (320)
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,|v_\éﬂji%ﬂﬁjﬂ:§

At 31 December 2020
RZZ=ZTF+=A=+—-H

NOTES 2020 2019
B et —EBCRF —E-NE
HK$ million HK$ million

EREET BEEET

Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y ER 14 4.0 [1.8
Investment properties REMZ 15 3.1 =
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 29.2 48
Finance lease receivables mMEREREKE |7 13.8 =
Goodwill Bl 18 - -
Rental deposits Meke 34 34
53.5 20.0
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 7.1 168
Trade and other receivables R M B R % Lt Wi TR 20 6.3 47|
Finance lease receivables BEHERKE |7 1.7 =
Restricted bank balances SR FIRITEE R 21 37 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReMERBEEER 21 9.4 18.0
382 819
Current liabilities =N
Trade and other payables JE SRR TR B EL Ath e 5 3K TE 22 58.5 787
Lease liabilities HE&E 16 268 50
Tax payable R 12 12.9 1.8
Borrowings EEA 23 - 392
Contract liabilities BHERE 24 18.7 233
Loan from a shareholder BERER 25 121.5 69.0
2384 2270
Net current liabilities RBAEFEE (200.2) (145.1)
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Lease liabilities HE&E 16 29.8 -
Borrowings A 23 44.8 =
74.6 =
NET LIABILITIES BEFE (221.3) (125.1)
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IIV_\é/E\j-i%Hﬁ;‘Ri

At 31 December 2020
RZZ-ZTF+=A=+—8H

NOTE 2020 2019

PifaE —RCER —F-NF

HK$ million HK$ million

BEEET AERETL

Capital and reserves R R

Share capital ELZN 26 260.0 260.0
Reserves B (481.4) (385.2)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARBERAELER (221.4) (1252)
Non-controlling interests IR 0.1 0.1
NET DEFICIT &AL (221.3) (125.1)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 96 to 199 were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

17 YH FIIALTRREE

Zhou Rui

Director

RKE
EF

Zhu Yongning

Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

S A Joll <
mEERBER
For the year ended 3| December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-A=1-BLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARAARE
Non-
Share Share Other  Translation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
ERaE FER
k& RGEE HtRE W RAER it it st
HK$ milion ~ HK$ milion ~ HK$ milion ~ HK$ milion ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ milion ~ HK$ milion ~ HK$ million
B¥BEnL AYEEL BWAET AMAEn EWEEn A%oEn ANBER A%EER
(Note (3)) ~ (Note (b)) (Note (c))
(M)  (WEe) (W)
At | January 2019 R=Z-75-B-A 2600 1650 325 (1028) (3978) (#3.) 0l (430)
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - (83.1) (831) - (83.)
Other comprehensive income: 2 F K&
Exchange diferences arisngon ~~ BEBINEHEERNE 8
trandlation of foreign operations - - - 10 - 10 - 10
Total comprehensive loss rEEREFRAT
for the year = = = 10 (831) (82.1) = (821)
At 31 December 2019 R=B-NE+=B=+-R 2600 1650 325 (101.8) (4809) (1252) 0.1 (125.1)
At | January 2020 RZE-25-A-H 260.0 165.0 35 (101.8) (480.9) (125.2) 0.l (125.1)
Loss for the year TEEEER - - - - (958) (958) - (95.8)
Other comprehensive loss: Eft2EAEE :
Exchange diferences arisngon BB EELRE £
trandlation of foreign operations - - - (04) - (04) - (04
Total comprehensive loss AEEREERAT
for the year - - - (0.4) (95.8) (96.2) - (9.2)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-E2%+-A=1-H 260.0 165.0 325 (1022) (576.7) (221.4) 0.1 (2213)
Notes: BisE
(@)  The application of share premium is governed by Section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act @ KRhEBZEAXBREE-NN—F(AH
1981. EIFBARRE ©
(b)  Other reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies b) HtEEDRBEEAEERNBRARZAE
adopted for changes in the Group’s ownership interest in its subsidiaries which do not result R EBMI NEIR LB HIEPTRMZ
in a loss of control as set out in “Basis of consolidation” under note 4. GEHBOR (K4 T 4R a 22 IFED) &
SRR
() Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of (0 EX¥NEREDERESINEBMBREAE

the financial statements of foreign operations.

EZHBERER -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BEZ-ZF+-A-+-RALHEE

2020 2019
—BCRF —E-NE
HK$ million HK$ million

EEEET BEEET

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
Loss before taxation BRIRRIEE (95.8) (83.1)
Adjustments for: FHE
Finance costs AR 3.2 5.1
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment I - MERREITE 8.1 12.6
Depreciation of investment properties REWMENE 0.1 =
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEENE 7.3 203
Gain on derecognition of right-of-use assets R HER A SR R
relating to the head leases BENWE (1.3) -
Impairment loss on advances to suppliers AR ERTIA R ERR - 4.0
Charge (Reversal) of loss allowance on trade receivables Bk (B [E)) FE W BR SR S 1R B 18.2 (77)
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EEEH - 05
Amortisation of prepaid rental ERHE 2 BH - 0.l
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment HEME - BB RREZER - 4.2
Loss on disposals of intangible assets HEBFEEES - 2.1
Werite-down of inventories FEMOR 45 18.1
Provision for losses on litigations FEAEERE 33 =
Exchange differences BE R 28 (0.2)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital #EE LS B 2 EEHELHRE (49.6) (24.0)
Decrease in rental deposits Megerd - 3.
Decrease in inventories FERD 52 399
Decrease in finance lease receivables MEHERKFIERD 0.8 -
Decrease in trade and other receivables JRE LT B % L At P MR IE R 226 379
Increase in restricted bank balances X PR IR T 4SRRI N (3.7) =
Decrease in trade and other payables & 1~ BRI EL At PR AT RRIE DR D (23.5) (477)
Decrease in contract liabilities BRRERD (4.6) (26.3)
Cash used in operations and net cash used EEMAREREETEHMA
in operating activities BeFHE (52.8) (17.1)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MERERER

For the year ended 3| December 2020

HEZZ-ZEI-_A=1—BIFE

2020 2019
—BCRF —E-NE
HK$ million HK$ million

EREET BEEET

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH

Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  #HENR (0.3) (1.0)
Net cash used in investing activities RETBFARSFE (0.3) (10)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE

Proceeds of loan from a shareholder RRE G TIA 525 365

Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEEEE 8.9 (214)

Interest paid BEAFE - 09)
Net cash from financing activities METBDRERSTE 43.6 142
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReREFARSER 2R FHE (9.5) (39)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FOzRERERRLEE 18.0 223
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes INEFE R B 2 0.9 (04)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZBRERERRLER 9.4 18.0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-TEI-A=t-HIFE

102

GENERAL INFORMATION

IDT International Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries are
collectively referred to as the “Group”) was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. The shares of the Company are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange™). The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company is located at Block C, 9th Floor, Phase |, Kaiser Estate, 41 Man Yue

Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company while its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the design, development, manufacture, sales and marketing of

various consumer electronic products.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term includes
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
which is the same as the functional currency of the Company. All amounts have

been rounded to the nearest hundred thousand.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent
with the accounting policies adopted in the 2019 consolidated financial statements
except for the adoption/early adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant
to the Group and effective from the current year (except for any early adoption) as

set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in

note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Going concern

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in light of the
fact that the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$200.2 million at 31 December 2020, the Group's total liabilities exceeded its
total assets by approximately HK$221.3 million as of that date, and that the Group

incurred a loss of approximately HK$95.8 million for the year then ended.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations for at
least the next twelve months from the date of approval of the consolidated financial

statements, after taking into consideration of the following:

China Huaneng Foundation Construction Investment Limited (“Huaneng"),
the largest shareholder of the Company and its controlling shareholder,
has committed and has proved their ability to provide continuous financial
support to the Group as is necessary to enable the Group to meet its day-to-

day operations and its financial obligations as they fall due;

2. Huaneng has undertaken that the repayment of its loan to the Group of
approximately HK$121.5 million at 31 December 2020 will not be requested
within twelve months from the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements, unless the Group has obtained funding from other sources and is

in a position to meet all repayment obligations at that time;

3. the Group continues to improve the operating efficiency by implementing
measures to tighten cost controls over various operating expenses in order
to enhance its profitability and to improve the cash flow from its operation in

future;
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Going concern (continued)

4. the Group continues to negotiate/seek opportunities with the financial
institutions for the renewal of existing/inception of the new financing
arrangement to meet the Group's working capital and financial requirements
in the future. On 27 March 2020, the Group had successfully renewed
the outstanding borrowing and interest payables with new maturity date
on 31 March 2026, details of the borrowing are set out in note 23 to the

consolidated financial statements; and

5. the Group is actively exploring the availability of alternative source of

financing.

Having regard to the cash flow projection of the Group, which are prepared assuming
that the above measures are successful, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that, in the light of the measures taken to-date, together with the expected
results of the other measures in progress, the Group will have sufficient funding
resources to satisfy its future working capital and other financing requirements.
The directors of the Company believe that the aforementioned measures will be

successful, based on the continuous efforts by the management of the Group.

However, should the above measures not be able to implement successfully, the
Group may not have sufficient funds to operate as a going concern, in which case,
adjustments might have to be made to the carrying values of the Company's assets
to their recoverable amounts, to reclassify the non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively, and to provide for any

further liabilities which might arise.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/revised HKFRSs that are

relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKASs | and 8: Definition of Material

The amendments clarify the definition of material and align the definition used across
HKFRSs.

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 7 and 9: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase |

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting requirements to provide
relief from potential effects of the uncertainties caused by interest rate benchmark
reform (the market-wide reform of an interest rate benchmark, including the
replacement of an interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark). In
addition, the amendments require companies to provide additional information
to investors about their hedging relationships which are directly affected by these

uncertainties.

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Definition of a Business

The amendments, among others, revise the definition of a business and include new

guidance to evaluate whether an acquired process is substantive.
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APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS |6: COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

The amendments exempt lessees from having to consider individual lease contracts
to determine whether rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic are lease modifications and allow lessees to account for such
rent concessions as if they were not lease modifications. It applies to COVID-19-
related rent concessions that reduce lease payments due on or before 30 June

2021. The amendments do not affect lessors.

These amendments shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or after | June
2020 with earlier application permitted. The Group has elected to early adopt the

amendments in the current year.

The adoption of the above amendments does not have any significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs (continued)

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of the consolidated financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued the following new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the

current year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2!
HKFRSs 4,7, 9 and 16

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle?

Amendments to HKAS | Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current®

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
HKAS 28 its Associate or Joint Venture®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023
¢ The effective date to be determined

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the adoption of the new/
revised HKFRSs in future periods will have any material impact on the results and

financial position of the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESHBEX

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements is historical cost.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the

investee; and

J has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements

of control listed above.

In the Company's statement of financial position as set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements, an investment in subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment loss. The carrying amount of the investment is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis

of dividends received and receivable.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to

bring their accounting policies line with those used by other members of the Group.

Al intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein, which represent present ownership interests entitling their holders to

a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not larger than an

operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to that unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or

groups of cash-generating units).
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties that are held by lessee, to ean rental income.
Investment properties include leased properties which are being recognised as right-
of-use assets upon application of HKFRS 16 and sub-leased by the Group under

operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives and after

taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

If an investment property becomes a right-of-use asset because its use has changed as
evidenced by the commencement of owner-occupation, the carrying amount of the

property at the date of transfer is transferred to the right-of-use asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal. A leased property which is recognised as a right-
of-use asset upon application of HKFRS 16 is derecognised if the Group as an
intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as a finance lease. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss

in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which
it is incurred. Costs incurred on development activities, which involve the application
of research findings to a plan or design for the production of new or substantially
improved products and processes, are capitalised if the product or process is
technically and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources to
complete the development. The expenditure capitalised will be the outsourcing
costs. Other development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as an expense as
incurred. When the asset is available for use, the capitalised development costs are

amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in

the marketplace.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables without a significant financing component arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 5.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (the “FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial

liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at

amortised cost:

S the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect

contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair

value through other comprehensive income (the “FVTOCI"):

J the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved

by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that at the
date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income (the “OCI") if that equity investment is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business

combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term; or

J on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments

that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattem of short-

term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are required
to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so

eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial
assets measured subsequently at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for

financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B EER AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and interest income (continued)

For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting

period following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL") on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade
and other receivables, finance lease receivables and bank balances and cash). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk

since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events
over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (*I2m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within |2 months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables without significant
financing component. The ECL on these assets is assessed collectively using a

provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of

a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default

occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.

In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B EER AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

()

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing

whether credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results in a

significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes
that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has

reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

()

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant

increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the

Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

default criterion is more appropriate.

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-F-FFT-A=+-BLFR

FESHBEE)
SRMIAE)

THEE(E)

TREEZRIEE)

(i)

EERERAREIN(E)

AEBEFEHREERABSIEER
RABRNEEMOEEZ BN
- WERTARRE(ER) K
RrEEHESRBIATRRE
EREBAEEN -

ENTER

RABEERREENS - A&
ERR  BONFEHERRHIRIK
FERIIFRTBENBEBRREBA
PRABETHAERA(BREAE
) &R ORFT R AR B P (E
B BEAE -

EmLbBErOm  AEER
B HEREEADEROX
FIBEREENEN  KIEAKHE
ARERREBNEEETER
RRENREERAE

Annual Report 2020 £3f 119



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B EER AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-F-FFT-A=+-ALFR

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial

asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

J it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because

of financial difficulties.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over three years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or

loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is

determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate

determined at initial recognition.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B EER AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-F-FFT-A=+-ALFR

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases where

evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be available, the

financial instruments are grouped on the following basis:

. nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s trade and other
receivables are each assessed as a separate group);
0 past-due status;

. nature, size and industry of debtors; and

. external credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by the management of the Group to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk

characteristics.
Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the

financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case

interest income s calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception of
trade receivables and other receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either

financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual

arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets

of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group

entities are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, borrowing and loan from

a shareholder are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B EER AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 3| December 2020
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and, if applicable,
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash equivalents
represent short-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into

known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in

value, net of bank overdrafts (if any).
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the

particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods or
services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially

the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation

if one of the following criteria is met:

S the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by

the Group’s performance as the Group performs;

. the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that the customer

controls as the Group performs; or

S the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains

control of the distinct good or service.

The Group recognised revenue at a point in time when the control of the goods is

transferred.

A contract liability represents the Group'’s obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B EER AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, the contract is presented
as a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely,
if a customer pays consideration, or the Group has a right to an amount of
consideration that is unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service to
the customer, the contract is presented as a contract liability when the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is the Group's right
to consideration that is unconditional or only the passage of time is required before

payment of that consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either a net contract asset
or a net contract liability is presented. Contract assets and contract liabilities of

unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

For the business of Group, it is common for the Group to receive from the
customer the whole or some of the contractual payments before the services are
completed or when the goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition
for such transactions). The Group recognises a contract liability until it is recognised
as revenue. During that period, any significant financing components, if applicable,
will be included in the contract liability and will be expensed as accrued unless the

interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rate prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributable to

non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement
or an associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

On all other partial disposals, which includes partial disposal of associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control, the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, which
comprises all costs of purchase and, where applicable, cost of conversion and other
costs that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition, is calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period of the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the

reversal occurs.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised
into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level |, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets, other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order

to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets, other than goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are estimated individually,
or when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units

for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating

unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro-rata to the other assets

of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets, other than goodwill (continued)

The accounting policy for recognition of the impairment loss for goodwill is stated in

the accounting policy for goodwill in the earlier part of this note.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on the temporary
investment of the specific borrowings, that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing

costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. Expenditures for which
a provision has been recognised are charged against the related provision in the
period in which the expenditures are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the
effect of the time value of money is material, the amount provided is the present
value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. Where
the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as

a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities

unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over
the periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that
it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant asset and is
released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal

annual instalments.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at inception of
the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term leases and low-value
asset leases. Lease payments associated with these leases are recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components from lease
components, and accounts for each lease component and any associated non-lease

components as a single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease contract as a lease
separately. The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component

and, where applicable, the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a separate component are
considered to be part of the total consideration that is allocated to the separately

identified components of the contract.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the commencement

date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises:

(@)  the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any

lease incentives received;

() any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d)  an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the

lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis

over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If a property held by the Group as a right-of-use asset and occupied by the Group
as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property. The accounting
policy for investment properties is stated in the earlier part of this note. The Group
presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property as
a separate line item on the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-of-use
assets that meet the definition of investment property is presented within “Investment

properties”.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that

are not paid at the commencement date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the
following payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term

that are not paid at the commencement date:

(@) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease

incentives receivable;

(b)  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

() amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees;

(d)  exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to

exercise that option; and

(e)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the

Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or

where it is not readily determinable, the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the carrying amount to
reflect interest on the lease liability and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect

the lease payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate when there are
changes to the lease payments arising from a change in the lease term or the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a

purchase, extension or termination option.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original discount rate when there is
a change in the residual value guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or
the future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate (other than
floating interest rate). In case of a change in future lease payments resulting from
a change in floating interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using a

revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease
liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit

or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if:

(@)  the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use
one or more underlying assets; and

(b)  the consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the

particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, at the effective

date of the lease modification,

(@)  the Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract on the basis

of relative stand-alone price as described above.

(b)  the Group determines the lease term of the modified contract.

(c)  the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting the revised lease

payments using a revised discount rate over the revised lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

(d)

for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Group
accounts for the remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain or loss relating to the partial

or full termination of the lease in profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts for the remeasurement
of the lease liability by making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use

asset.

The Group has applied the practical expedient provided in Amendments to HKFRS

|6: COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions and does not assess whether eligible rent

concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic are

lease modification. The Group accounts for any change in lease payments resulting

from the rent concession the same way it would account for the change applying

HKFRS 16 if the change were not a lease modification.

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct

consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following conditions

are met:

the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease
that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease

immediately preceding the change;

any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 202 1; and

there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

The Group has applied the practical expedient consistently to all eligible rent

concessions with similar characteristics and in similar circumstances.

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance lease or an operating lease
at the inception date of the lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and
sublease as two separate contracts. The sublease is classified as an operating lease if
the head lease is a short-term lease to which the Group has applied the recognition
exemption. Otherwise, the sublease is classified as a finance lease or an operating

lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease contract as a lease
separately from non-lease components of the contract. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on a relative stand-alone

price basis.

As lessor — finance lease

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at
the amount of the Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on
the Group's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases. The Group applies
the derecognition and impairment requirements in HKFRS 9 to the net investment

in the finance lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessor (continued)

As lessor — finance lease (continued)

The Group accounts for a modification to a finance lease as a separate lease if both:

(@)  the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use
one or more underlying assets; and

(b)  the consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the

particular contract.

For a modification to a finance lease that is not accounted for as a separate lease,

the Group accounts for the modification as follows:
(a) if the lease would have been classified as an operating lease had the
modification been in effect at the inception date, the Group:
(i) accounts for the lease modification as a new lease from the effective
date of the modification; and
(i) measures the carrying amount of the underlying asset as the net
investment in the lease immediately before the effective date of the

lease modification.

(b)  otherwise, the Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 9.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessor (continued)

As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in HKFRS 9 to

the operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as a new lease from the
effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new

lease.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the services. All
short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS

requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and

salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme and state-managed retirement benefits scheme are recognised
as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred

tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit
differs from loss before taxation as reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of

goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary difference associated
with investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in

the foreseeable future.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable

profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@) A person ora close member of that person’s family is related to the Group if

that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iily is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of the

holding company of the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  Anentity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each holding company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other

entity is a member).

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity.

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.
If the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also

related to the Group.

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a

holding company of the entity).

(viily the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the Group or to the holding

company of the Group.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person's spouse or domestic partner; and

(c)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes subsidiaries of the associate

and a joint venture includes subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to Group's most senior executive management for the purpose
of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's various

lines of business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The Company's
executive directors and the chief executive officer, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the CODM that make strategic decisions.
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5.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 4
to the consolidated financial statements, the management of the Group is required
to make various estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experiences, and other factors that

are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and

future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and key sources of
estimation uncertainties at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial reporting period.

Going concern basis

As disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The
appropriateness of the going concem basis is assessed after taking into consideration
all relevant available information about future of the Group, including cash flow
forecasts of the Group and financial support from Huaneng and its controlling
shareholder. Such measures inherently involve uncertainties. The future outcome
of aforesaid events and conditions could differ significantly and hence render the

adoption of the going concem basis inappropriate.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to discount future lease
payments since interest rates implicit in the leases are not readily determinable.
In determining the discounts rates for its leases, the Group refers to a rate that is
readily observable as the starting point and then applies judgement and adjusts such

observable rate to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets at the end of the reporting period. Assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
assets group exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the fair value
less costs of disposal and the value in use. For property, plant and equipment, the
fair value less costs of disposal was determined by the management of the Group
using the depreciated replacement cost approach and/or market comparable
approach, as appropriate. Fair value which is determined by using depreciated
replacement cost approach requires an estimation of new replacement cost of the
assets from which deductions are then made to allow for physical deterioration and
all forms of obsolescence and optimisation. The fair value using market comparable
approach is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. For right-of-use assets, the determination of the fair value
less costs of disposal was based on income capitalisation approach which involves
estimations and assumptions in determining rental income derived from market

participant's perspective with appropriate capitalisation rate.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the ageing and conditions of the inventories
at the end of the reporting period and assess the adequacy of the impairment
provision for those inventories which are obsolete or/and slow-moving identified
as no longer suitable for use in production nor saleable in the market as a result
of change in the market conditions and technology. Estimation of net realisable
value of inventory involves judgement on the conditions and usefulness of items of
inventories. Where the expectation on the net realisable value is lower than the

cost for certain items, a write-off or write-down of inventories may arise.

Loss allowance for ECL on trade receivables

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables, using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. The
amount of the loss allowance based on ECL model is measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where the future flows
are less than expected or being revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise. In addition, trade receivables

with credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods sold by

the Group to outside corporate customers, net of sales related taxes. Revenue

represents mainly Oregon Scientific branded sales (“Branded Sales”) and original

equipment manufacturer and original design manufacturer sales (*“OEM/ODM

Sales™). The revenue is disaggregated below:
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Smart learning, Connected
and immersive home and Health and
technology ~ communications wellness Others Total
EHHE
HEE R RERRE Aft 2]
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
A¥RET AERET AERET BEEET ARAET
Year ended 3| December 2020 HE-B-%F
TZA=t-HLFE
Timing of revenue recognition Wi BT
Ata point in time REBRH 17 195 60 52 554
Year ended 3| December 2019 HE_Z-NE
TZA=t—RILFE
Timing of revenue recognition W R
At a point in time REBES 647 5.1 880 586 2704
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

Sales of goods (revenue recognised at a point in time)

The Group sells various consumer electronic products to corporate customers.
Revenue is recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been shipped to the customer's specific location (delivery). Following
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the manner of distribution and price
to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility when on selling the goods and bears
the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. The normal credit term

for customers is normally 30 to 90 days upon delivery.

During the years ended 3| December 2020 and 2019, all performance obligations
for sales of goods are for period of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15,
the transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations as at the end

of the reporting period is not disclosed.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be identified on the
basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the executive directors and chief executive officer, being the CODM, in order
to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance. The Group
operates in four operating and reportable segments, namely smart learning and
immersive technology, connected home and communications, health and wellness as

well as others.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by operating and

reportable segments:
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Wk o EBER(E)
il IS

Smart learning, Connected
and immersive home and Health and
technology ~ communications wellness Others Total
EHHE
HEE EHRE RERRRE Efts ik
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBER AREER BEEER BHEER BEEER
Year ended 3| December 2020 B2-E_EE
tZRA=1-HILFE
Segment revenue papil o
Branded sales A 47 60 - - 307
OEM/ODM sales RRERE/ Rkt
BUEHE - 135 6.0 52 2147
Total segment revenue AN AE 2147 19.5 6.0 52 554
Segment loss NHEE (99 (29.5) (12.1) (103) (61.7)
Unallocated income REAE WA 6.2
Unallocated expenses REAH LA (47.1)
Finance costs BERKA (32)
Loss before taxation BREtAIEE (958)
Smart learning, Connected
and immersive home and Health and
technology ~ communications wellness Others Total
B8R
BEE BHARE R RRRE Eft, it
HKS million HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
A¥RET AERET AERET AEEET A¥RET
Year ended 31 December 2019 HEZ-E-NE
TZAZT-RILERE
Segment revenue A HhE
Branded sales e 647 32 |4 - 893
OEM/ODM sales RRERE /R
RiERE - 359 866 586 181.I
Total segment revenue Pl e 64.7 59.1 880 586 2704
Segment loss HHEE (243) (187) (154) (40) (624)
Unallocated income REABZBA 6.4
Unallocated expenses AEPB X (320)
Finance costs RERKA &)
Loss before taxation BREtIEE (83.1)
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For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE 2 TF+-_A=+-HLEE

6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from external

customers. There were no inter-segment sales for both years.

Segment loss represents the loss incurred by each segment without allocation of
interest income, income from subleasing of right-of-use assets, other miscellaneous
income, unallocated expense such as central administrative costs, charge (reversal)
of loss allowance on trade receivables, provision for losses on litigations, depreciation
of right-of-use assets and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Group’s
CODM, for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

No segment assets and segment liabilities are presented as such amounts are
not reviewed by the Group’s CODM for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment or otherwise regularly provided to the Group's CODM.

Other segment information

Smart learning, Connected

and immersive home and

technology ~ communications
BHHE

REE ERRRE

HK$ million HK$ million

RREET ARERT

Wik 2 RER(E)
2B N R ()

EXFR2EZDHRERRAINEEF
HER W - MIEFEHED #BEZH

%o
=]

NEERESDHAELZBE T8
BMEMA - DEEAEEEZWA
HMBERA - REDRZFHX - 1
BRITIRACA ~ HBR (B ) R UK AR R B R
B RAABERRE  EREEENE
RRERAELADE o tRRAKE
TELERRANERD B RKRRNE
fESRE 2T

ARAEEZ A BEERDHBABELR
AAREZ T BLERRARHUDE
BREHERRSUEMTAETHER
REBTREERRA  BALEZT
SEER

HihmEBER
Health and
wellness Others Total
RERRE Hitr et

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET BEEER BEEER

Year ended 3| December 2020 HE-B-%%
TZA=T-HLEE
Amounts included in the measure of 72 ﬂ_klgﬁﬁ itA
segment profit or loss: ToIFE
Depreciation and amortisation REREH
— Property, plant and equipment % BERR 36 18
Write-down of inventories FEWR 20 1.6

0.9 08 8.l
0.5 0.4 45
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e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-F-FFT-A=+-BLFR

Wik 2 RER(E)

Other segment information (continued) P EER(E)
Smart leamning, Connected
and immersive home and Health
technology ~ communications and wellness Others Total
BHE
HEE BRERE SN Efth ks
HKS million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS million
AEBEL AEBEL BEBET BEART AEEEL
Year ended 3| December 2019 HE_Z-NE
TZA=T-BILERE
Amounts included in the measure of 734 %WEST’EW\
segment profit or loss: TIHE
Depreciation and amortisation Tﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁ
— Property, plant and equipment 0% BERRE 56 44 Ll 15 126
~ Intangible assets -BVAE - - - 05 05
Wirite-down of inventories &R 43 40 59 39 8.1
Impaiment loss on advances BNRERREZ
to suppliers HEER 10 09 13 08 40
Loss on disposals of property, HENE  WERREL
plant and equipment Bi 37 05 = = 42
Loss on disposals of intangble assets (B A 2 B8 - - - 2l 2
Geographical information HEEHR
The Group's operations are located in Asia Pacific, Europe and Americas AEBEZEBURDRE - BUMEEM

(representing the United States of America and Latin America). The Group carries

out its manufacturing and trading operations in Hong Kong and the People’s

Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Group also operates marketing offices in

Europe, Americas and other Asia Pacific countries.

(BEFNBERBRNTEN) - A5E
REBRFPEAREMBE([FEH])#E
TRERETE FER - NEBIMER
M EMREMTRRBRSREMHH
BERERE
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For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE 2 TF+-_A=+-HLEE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information (continued)

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers is presented based

on the location of customers are detailed below:

Wk o EBER(E)
WEER(E)

BREAKERBIAREF RENERTS
REXPHEMZY - FEAT

2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NF
HK$ million HK$ million

BEEEBT EEEET

PRC (country of domicile) HEI(EER) 7.0 1.0
Asia Pacific (excluding PRC) TFAR(MEEFH) 18.8 58.2
Americas EE 13.9 492
Europe M 153 149.4
Others Hith 0.4 26

55.4 2704

Over 95% (2019: 95%) of non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC.

Information about major customers

Revenue from a customer contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is

REE 2 895%( —F—N4F : 95%) 3F
mﬁﬁbé%ﬁﬁ’é* . °

FEEFEHR

RAEEERE %8N E 2 TP 2

as follows: W
2020 2019
— 7 —= ﬁE :g—ﬂi
% %
Customer “A” =R[A] = 26
Customer “B” ®F[B) 28 16
Customer “C" =FE[cC] 14 _*

Revenue from Customer “A” was generated from (i) health and wellness segment
and (ii) others segment; revenue from Customer "“B" was generated from (i)
connected home and communications segment, (i) smart leamning, and immersive
technology segment and (iii) others segment; revenue from Customer “C” was
generated from (i) connected home and communications segment and (i) others

segment.

& The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more of the total revenue of
the Group during the respective year.
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For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-F-FFT-A=+-BLFR

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER LOSSES, NET 7. HAWAREMER  F8
2020 2019
it et 23 —ENEF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET  BEEST
Other income HittW A
Finance income on the net investment HEMERBEFEREUA
in finance leases 0.2 -
Gain on derecognition of right-of-use assets RITER AR E BN ERE
relating to the head leases BENG 1.3 -
Income from subleasing of right-of-use assets REME ICERERRAME
which categoriesed under investment properties/ IET’\*EE’\J@'UEJ%EEE@
rented premises — under operating leases HHEBA 10.9 1.8
Subsidy income CETVON 1.5 2.8
Others i 23 18
16.2 164
Other losses, net HitE5E - FH8
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment &Y% « #2s R R E BB - (4.2)
Loss on disposals of intangible assets HERFEEER - 21
Impairment loss on advances to suppliers AR ERTIA R ERR - (40
Exchange (loss) gain, net EPL(E?TEMQ R (1.4) 26
Provision for losses on litigations (note 32) FAAEREE (PHE32) 33) -
4.7) (7.7)
(CHARGE) REVERSAL OF LOSS ALLOWANCE ON TRADE 8. (IR)BEE S EERE
RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
b St 222 —NF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEER AERET
(Charge) Reversal of loss allowance on trade (4R ) BB e W AR SR B 1R 8
receivables (18.2) 7.7
Details of loss allowance on trade receivables for the years ended 3| December BEEE_Z_EFNR_T—NF+=

2020 and 2019 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

A=1— Etirﬂguﬁ(ﬁ% RE R
AREN B M RR M -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-TEI-A=t-HIFE

9.

154

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

This is stated after charging:

BRBLAIEE
Bk I BIRZES

2020 2019
—BCERF —T-NEF
HK$ million HK$ million
BERETR BEEET
Finance costs MEA
Interest on borrowings fERFIR 2.6 38
Interest on lease liabilities MEEENE 0.6 1.3
32 5.1
Staff costs BTN
Directors' emoluments (note 10) E=Me (FHE10) 0.4 04
Retirement benefits scheme contributions Hith & TIRINBA 2R (FTET)
for other staff (Note) 3.8 13.7
Salaries and other benefits for other staff HMET 2 TEREAEF 63.2 909
Total staff costs* B TR A g 67.4 105.0
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESHEGIA
(included in “General administrative expenses”) [T ) - 05
Auditor’s remuneration ZERBE
— Audit services —Ei TR 1.2 12
— Non-audit services —3EB AT IR 0.1 0.1
Cost of inventories FEKA 46.6 2218
Write-down of inventories (included in “Cost of FEMRGTAIHERKZA])
goods sold”) 4.5 18.1
Impairment loss on advances to suppliers AR IR BEEE - 40
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (included in EREEENE
“General administrative expenses”) GTAI—RITHRX ) 73 203
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment* WIE - e NGR T E 8.1 12.6
Depreciation of investment properties (included in I EWEINE
“General administrative expenses”) GTAI—RITHRX ) 0.1 =
Rental expenses recognised under short-term BERHEERRA HEFAX
leases (included in “General administrative GtAI—RITHRX &
expenses’ and "“Cost of goods sold”) [SHEMA]) 16.7 0.2
& The amounts include staff costs and depreciation of property, plant and equipment * FHeEBERERNBRITN FE]

charged to profit or loss and capitalised in “Inventories”, as appropriate.

Note:

Starting from February 2020, the relevant PRC government authorities has given

certain temporary reliefs to entities incorporated in the PRC to exempt from payment
of certain amount of levies on the social security insurance.
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For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-Z-ZFEI-A=+-HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 0. EBRFETHAEHE
(@) Directors’ emoluments @ EEHe
The aggregate amounts of remuneration received and receivable by the ARAIEFEWHEKR M€ &
directors of the Company are as follows: R
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
RRER
wEe HFeREE HE L HEg

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million  HK$ million
BEEET A¥BER BYBEER BE¥BER

Year ended 3| December 2020 BE-—ZS-SF

tZA=+-BLFE
Executive director: HITEE -
Mr. Zhu Yongning RKERE - - - -
Non-executive directors: HPTEE -
Mr. Song Rongrong (note ) RERTHE (P - - - -
Ms. Wu Qing (note 2) L+ (Fit2) - - - -
Mr. Cui Xiao (note 3) EREE(FIE3) - - - -

Independent non-executive directors: B FFH7TEE -

Mr. Xu finwen REBEAE 0.2 - - 0.2
Mr. Zhou Meilin AFEMELE 0.1 - - 0.1
Mr. Zhou Rui Ak E 0.1 - - 0.1

0.4 - - 0.4
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0. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

0. EERFETHAEME(E)
@ EEMe(E)

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
RINREF
we  FellEi FTEIfR pck=d]
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET A¥KEET B¥EEr A¥EERT
Year ended 31 December 2019 EHZEZZT—N4F
TZA=+—HILEFE
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Xu Chiming (note 4) REFALAE(FIEE4) = - - -
Mr. Zhu Yongning RKERE = = = =
Non-executive directors: FHHITEE -
Mr. Song Rongrong (note ) RS A (FHeE1) - - - -
Ms. Wu Qing (note 2) REH+ (FitE2) - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: B 7 HFHTEE -
Mr. Xu Jinwen RIBEE 02 = = 02
Mr. Zhou Meilin EIEMEE 0.l - - 0.1
Mr. Zhou Rui Bk 0.l — — 0.l
04 - - 04
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0. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(@)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Note I:  Mr. Song Rongrong resigned as a non-executive director of the Company
on 28 February 2020.

Note 2:  Ms. Wu Qing was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company
on 3| March 2020 and resigned as a non-executive director of the

Company on 16 July 2020.

Note 3:  Mr. Cui Xiao was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company
on 25 August 2020.

Note 4 Mr. Xu Chiming retired as an executive director of the Company on 26
June 2019.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors shown above were for their services as directors of the

Company.

Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the directors of

the Company that were entered into or subsisted during the years ended 3|
December 2020 and 2019.

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-F-FFT-A=+-BLFR

0. EERTETHAEMES(ZE)

@

E=ME(E)

MizEl : REBEER-_ZT_ZTF
—AZTNBEEARAT
ERTESE -

a2 RBEXIR-T-_TF=
A=t—REZEREAR
AFATESE  IN_F
—TELATARERER
DAFHTES

MizE3: EREER-_ZE_ZFN
A-+hAEZAAARR
RIFEITES ©

Bizks . HEREER-_Z-NF
NAZTREREERRA
WITEE-

EXFRRTESOMESERN
REARERARRNAEEE
BRREMS °

FRTEERBUFRTESZ
e X ERREERARAES
RERNRBMS o

NEEAZBAZEN  BOE
REEMR S

BEZZ-_ZFR=-Z—NLF
+tZA=+—RHLEFEMETL
KFETRAUARNRAEST AT
AZEF - BUEFREMR S -
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10.

158

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS (continued) 10.

(c)  Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

After consideration, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that

no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to

the Company’s business to which the Company was a party and in which

a director of the Company, or connected entity of the directors of the

Company, had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 or at any time
during the years ended 3| December 2020 and 2019.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDVIDUALS

No director is included in the aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid
individuals during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The emoluments of the five (2019: five) highest paid non-director individuals are as

EERIETBAEMES(E)

(©

EERRS  ZYHSHZEKX
plEe

mERE  KADRAIEERA B
EETFERIT-NEFFZ
A=+ BLEFEFRINEBZE
—EITERZE-NEFFTZA
S+ —BUEFEAARRE - #BE
FEANBBALRRERBZR
5 THKERAH > TIHRA
RAIBARREE(IANAES
JEBER)ERIEEREEEX
Filzs o

hEREEHMAL
BE—_T-_TFR-_T—NF+=A
=+—HLFE  BEEEHALER
SEHMWA LSR5 -

BE(ZE-NF : BR)FEERSH

follows: AL ZBEmT :
2020 2019
“ECEHE “E-NEF
HK$ million HK$ million
BERET BEEET
Salaries and allowances 4 K2Ry 33 54
Retirement benefits schemes contributions RIKEF|FTEIHR R 0.1 0.5
34 59
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDVIDUALS (continued) I

The emoluments of the five (2019: five) highest paid non-director individuals are

within the following bands:

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-Z-ZFEI-A=+-HIFE

hEREHMALE)
BE(ZE-NF : BR)FEERSH
MALZBENFIATIRE :

Number of individuals

EEHE
2020 2019
“ECEF —E-NF
HK$500,001 to HK$ 1,000,000 75 #£500,00 1 JTE 7S 1,000,0007T 5 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 A5 1,000,001 7T E % 1,500,0007T - 2
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 75 #1,500,001 7T 27 #2,000,0007C - |

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the directors of the
Company or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019. There was no arrangement under which a director or
the five highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for the
years ended 3| December 2020 and 2019.

BHEZZ-_TFR-_T-AF+=A
=+—HIEFE  AEEHEIE
N TARRESHEEERTMA
THERBEMAREE K MAR &
dEERAES BIREEIAERES
SMATHE-_S_ZER_T-HE
+tZ A=+ —BLEFEREXRERE
EAM e 2 25k
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-TEI-A=t-HIFE

2.

160

TAXATION

No provision for income tax has been made as the Group entitles either had no
estimated assessable profits or incurred tax losses for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

The tax charge for the year is reconciled to the loss before taxation as follows:

12.

BiR

HRAEBREE T -_TFN_-F
—NEF+-A=1+—BLFEVEM
JERTUR RS EETIBEE - HULEE
HATS R

AR [E H A 52 ) ERR T Al 2 B IR R AR AN
T~

2020 2019

—EC%F —ENF

HK$ million HK$ million

BYEEER BEEET

Loss before taxation BR1 AT B 1R (95.8) (83.1)

Tax credit at the domestic income tax rate of 165% IEANMFTSFIE |6.5%5t HEFIER R (158) (13.7)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible RIS 2 B2

for tax purpose 0.8 [2

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose ~ BEMBUAZ TRIAF £ (0.3) =

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRATBER WA E 16.8 123
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries RREM B ERE R AL E B A Rl PR A

operating in other jurisdictions BERNR 8 (4.3) 07)
Tax effect of deductible temporary difference not ~ REHRAI M ERFZRE 2 HIELE

recognised 28 |7

Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised B F Al RIETER < TR IEEIE - (0.8)

AEERAX

Tax charge for the year

Entities incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong profits tax. On
21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland Revenue
(Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%.
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TAXATION (continued)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT Law") and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries is
25% for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

relevant jurisdictions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised tax losses of
approximately HK$550.5 million (2019: approximately HK$484.8 million) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of such losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams in the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2020. Included in the unrecognised tax losses were losses
of approximately HK$157.7 million (2019: approximately HK$105.4 million that
would expire in the years of 2020 to 2024) that will expire in the years of 2021 to
2025. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

The Group also has certain deductible temporary differences mainly related to loss
allowance and write-down of inventories amounted to approximately HK$83.3
million and available for offset against future profits at 31 December 2020 (2019:
approximately HK$63.8 million). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be

utilised.

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-Z-ZEI-A=t-HIFE

BIE(E)

BER(PEAREMBECEMEHZE)
Gﬁ%%gﬁ%D&aMM%'$EW

NAIZ EEMEHHERREFES
7,%25% o

B i R RE 2 BOA R A B AR
BT 2 BELHY -

RBEIR - REBB B ARBARIEES
BAABS0SEEBL(ZE—NE: 4
tk4g48 B Er) IEEERERT o
ARBE-T-—NFRZT-_TF+=
A=+—RB - F 5 # AT R R R & F
T MR ZEEEERELETIEE
E o AERVEBEBEIN S
FET-_AFHREEB 2 BERNER
I577BBL(Z2—NF : #R=T=
TE_T_MFHME 2 BERAER
1054B &) o EfhEE ] R HiAke -

RZEZZTF+-A=+—H &K
BhEEETUMREREELOES
833EEBL(ZE—NF : f1E%Ke38E
Br) FTEREBRBERFENRAE
B WA AREEAZER - ARTK
A] 85 FEER B A1 AT FA DA 5 AT FRED
RER  WHEREERNRERES
EREENIBEE ©
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e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-TEI-A=t-HIFE

2.

162

TAXATION (continued)

Exposures arising from income tax liabilities

Oregon Scientific Italy Limited (“OS ltaly”)

An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, OS ltaly, was involved in
a tax dispute with the Italian Tax Authorities. As disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 6 November 2018, there was a tax dispute between OS
ltaly and the ltalian Tax Authorities (“Tax Dispute”), and the tax charge judgement
in relation to the Tax Dispute from the Supreme Court of Cassation of Italy was
received. After seeking the independent legal advice, the directors of the Company
considered no further legal actions are possible for OS ltaly in relation to the Tax
Dispute. Based on tax notice received from the Italian Tax Authorities in January
2019, the Group provided a tax provision of approximately Euro (“EUR™) 1.4 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$12.3 million) in profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2018. OS ltaly was declared bankrupt by the Court in July 2019 and a
bankruptcy trustee was appointed to in charge of OS Italy's bankruptcy procedure.
After seeking the independent legal advice, the directors of the Company considered
that OS Italy was still at the earlier stage of bankruptcy procedures and the related
tax liabilities had not yet been fully discharged. Accordingly, the Group continued to
recognise the aforesaid tax provision of approximately EURI.4 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$12.9 million) as tax payable at 31 December 2020 (2019:
approximately EUR .4 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1 1.8 million)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TAXATION (continued)

Exposures arising from income tax liabilities (continued)

Oregon Scientific Brasil Ltda (“OS Brazil”)

An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, OS Brazil, was involved in
a tax dispute with the State of Sao Paulo, the Federative Republic of Brazil, which
may cause a maximum tax payment including penalty and interest of approximately
Brazilian Real 3.7 million (equivalent to approximately HK$5.6 million) (2019:
approximately Brazilian Real 3.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$7.0
million)). After seeking the independent legal advice, the directors of the Company
consider that the outcome and the amount of final payment, if any, are uncertain but
the expected value of liability is insignificant to the Group. Therefore, no provision

has been made in the consolidated financial statements.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the owners of the

Company for both years is based on the following data:

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-Z-ZFEI-A=+-HIFE

BIE(E)
FERaEEENER(E)

Oregon Scientific Brasil Ltda (/" OS Brazil /)

ARRINEEZ2ENB A FOS Brazi
E e A ME BRI B ETRBA
B AREBAMNERNR(RESE
EFB)AR7TAEEAETREER
HBES6RBIL)(Z2—NE : DNA
36EBEAEERM(BERLEE0R
E)) c EEGABEREERE AR
AEERABREFRENR 2B (WE)
VAT - BHBEEYASEm S
WAERX o Ft I ERERE B HRKE
REE -

BRER
RREFEADAEE ARGEERER
BRDETBETE

2020 2019
-85 -2 hF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEENL  BMEST
Loss for the year attributable to owners of AT EBRERBEZ AT
the Company for the purpose of BEANEL 2 REFEER
basic loss per share (95.8) (83.1)
2020 2019
—Z-%F —T K
Number of ordinary shares: L ERE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ARG ESREREEZ TER
for the purposes of basic loss per share IHETIIE 2,599,993,088 2,599,993,088

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share as there was no potential

ordinary share in issue for both years.

BhEEERESRANERER -
AMEFEOECBITET LK -
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B EER AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-TEI-A=t-HIFE

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 4. W% - BEERRE
Furniture,
fixture and Motor Plant and
equipment vehicles machinery Total
B £8
RRE RE EERSER k]
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
AEaET AMEErT  AEERT  BKEER
COST R
At | January 2019 RZZ—-NE—A—H 2632 2 2585 5238
Additions NE 08 = 02 1.0
Disposals HE 7.7) - - (7.7)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE+-A=+—H 256.3 21 2587 5171
Additions AE a - 03 03
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-EF+-A=1+—H 2563 2 259.0 5174
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ BitifE
At | January 2019 RZZ—-NE—-A—H 2526 20 2116 4962
Charged for the year AEEEHR 29 0l 9.6 126
Eliminated on disposals H E R (35) - - (35)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NF+-A=1+—H 2520 21 2512 505.3
Charged for the year REFFHR 22 = 59 8.l
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-EF+-A=+—H 2542 21 257.1 5134
NET CARRYING AMOUNT REFE
At 31 December 2020 W_E-ZF+-A=1+—H 21 = 19 40
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NF+-A=1+—H 43 = 75 138
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14.

Depreciation is provided to write-off the cost of property, plant and equipment, less

their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method,

at the following rates per annum:

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-Z-ZFT-A=+-HLFE

M - HEBERREE)

W - MR RREDAERE - Ribat
ATRFERERIREERTE - AW
WA - BEZFTERMT -

Furniture, fixture and equipment 10%-25% B~ HERR 10%-25%
Motor vehicles 10%-20% JRE 10%—20%
Plant and machinery 10%-33% 1 2s KR 281k 10%-33%
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES I5. REYE
Leased
properties
HEME
HK$ million
BEESTT
COST 2%
At | January 2019 and 3| December 2019 RZZE-nE—A—BAK
—E-hE+-A=1t—H -
Additions NE 32
At 3| December 2020 R-ZE-ZEF+-HA=+—H 32
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 2EE
At | January 2019 and 31 December 2019 RZZE-NE—A—AK
—Z-hF+-B=+—H -
Charged for the year REER 0.l
At 3| December 2020 RIE-ZEF+-HA=1+—H 0.1
NET CARRYING AMOUNT BREFE
At 3| December 2020 RIE-ZEFE+-HA=+—H 3.1
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+=-A=+—H =
FAIR VALUE A¥E
At 3| December 2020 RIEZZEF+-HA=+—H 35

At 3| December 2019

R_F-NFt+_H=t—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-TEI-A=t-HIFE

5.

166

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. BREYFEE)
Leasing arrangement — as lessee HEZRHE-EREEA
The Group's investment properties are leased properties in relation to operating AEENRENFEREEHERNIE
lease used for sub-leasing purpose and the lease terms are two years. AENEEYE  HHAME -
The management of the Group is of the view that the Group’s investment AEEERERR  AEENREME
properties, which are only included leased properties under operating lease ERREEEMER T EHARNEE
with sub-leasing purpose. By using the cost model would provide more relevant Mm% - BREAKARR - IRAEE
information about the Group's financial position and performance. R RRRIREE ZEAER -
At 31 December 2020, the management of the Group assessed the fair value is RZZZZF+=-A=+—H ' F5H
under level 3 of the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined under HKFRS 13 BEEh T ATE  HEREBUBER
which is estimated using income capitalisation approach by capitalising the rental EEANE BRI 2 ATE=BEER
income derived from the existing tenancies over the existing lease term at an PERE=R  ZATERRARAER
appropriate capitalisation rate. &t BREBAHREBHEBARA
EENHERAREEENMEXETE
$ o
Leasing arrangement — as lessor HERHE-ERHEA
The investment properties are leased to a number of tenants for a terms ranging REMXDHHETETER - B8N T
from two months to two years, in which the lease term is cancellable (without MEAZME - HPATR—ZEMEAD
compensation) with a notice period of one to two months by the tenants with fixed BAHARERA(EE) - YREREE
monthly rental charges and the tenant also bears the management fees. The details A BEPTTEEERSE - REKE
of the lease income from operating leases are set out in note 7 to the consolidated HENHEEWAFESTINEGRE T BT
financial statements. RMTEET ©
Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments to be received from the THRA/EREMEREHUI 2 REEH
leasing of investment properties. HERFEZIEADAT -
2020
b i -3
HK$ million
AERET
Within | year | A 1.8
More than | year but within 2 years B I FERER 1.8
More than 2 years but within 3 years BEFERIFA 0.2
Undiscounted lease payments to be received RUKER 2 RBER A ST 38
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-Z-ZFT-A=+-HLFE

LEASES le. HE
The Group as lessee FEBEREHEA
Right-of-use assets RAREE

Buildings

BF
HK$ million
BERET
Reconciliation of carrying amount — REHEHE-BZ-_F-—1F
year ended 31 December 2019 TZR=t+—HLEE
At | January 2019 — upon adoption of HKFRS 16 RZZ-NF—A—B-RATENE
HELEAE | 6571R 25.1
Depreciation e (20.3)
At 31 December 2019 R_B—NF+-HA=t—H 48
Reconciliation of carrying amount — REEHERE-BZ-2-2F
year ended 3| December 2020 TZA=+—HLEFE

At | January 2020 RZZE-TF—-H—H 48
Additions B 59.9
Derecognised at inception of finance lease arrangements BB EZT B R R EHER (25.0)
Redlassified to investment properties BN OREREME (32)
Depreciation E (7.3)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-ZF+-A=+-H 292

Buildings

BF
HK$ million
L

At 31 December 2019 R=-ZB-AF+=-RA=t—-H
Cost ZZN 25.1
Accumulated depreciation 2itine (20.3)
Net carrying amount FREHE 4.8
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-Z2F+-A=+-H
Cost BEN 31.7
Accumulated depreciation RiHnE (25)
Net carrying amount REFE 29.2
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e SRR

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE 2 TF+-_A=+-HLEE

6. LEASES (continued) 16.

The Group as lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

HE#E)
FEBEARBAE)
HEAE
2020 2019
HK$ million HK$ million

EEEER AEEET

Lease liabilities HEEE

Current portion BNHAER > 268 50

Non-current portion FEENEAER 29.8 =
56.6 50

The Group leases various office and factory premises for its daily operations and
the lease terms are two years (2019: two to five years). The total cash outflow for
leases was approximately HK$25.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: approximately HK$21.6 million).

At 31 December 2020, the weighted average effective interest rate for the lease

liabilities of the Group was 8.2% per annum (2019: 8.0% per annum).

Commitments under leases

At 31 December 2019 and 2020

The Group had no significant commitment for short-term leases.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered into finance lease
arrangements as the lessor for certain of its right-of-use assets, which have a lease
term of two years. The leases do not include purchase, extension or termination

options.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the lease
arrangements, as all leases are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB" ), the functional
currency of the group entities involved in the lease arrangements.

Below is a maturity analysis of lease payments receivable and the reconciliation of

undiscounted lease payments to the present value of minimum lease payments:

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-Z-ZFEI-A=+-HIFE

BMEHERWIR

REBE-_Z-TF+_A=1+—HILF
BN ARBERHBEAREETER
REEURMERERY  HEHAR
F-HETBERE  THHRILEE
o

ARMEREHAARK(TARE]
BRHEELRH cEEERNIEER)
AHE - BAREYERNBELHEMER
SNEE R o

TRABYHEERNKWE DT KA
BHEMNRASEEAENRRECH
s -

2020 2019
—g-®F  —2-NF
HK$ million HK$ million

BEEER BREET

Finance lease receivables comprises: BEHEERREESE !
Within | year IR 13.3 -
More than | year but within 2 years i FER2FA 133 =
More than 2 years but within 3 years HBEFERIFR 1.2 -
Gross investment in the lease (Note) MEZREEE () 27.8 -
Less: Unearned finance income R AREREGELE A (2.3) =
Present value of minimum lease payments HEHENFRE 25.5 =
Current portion BIERER 2 1.7 =
Non-current portion FERNEIED 7 138 =
25.5 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-TEI-A=t-HIFE

17.

170

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. MEHRERKBFEE)
The finance lease receivable at the end of the reporting period are neither past due RBEIR - BERERKFIET &8
nor impaired. The weighted average effective interest rate contracted was 8.2% per HisRIE - AT A I BRFMER
annum. 8.2% °
Note: The gross investment in the lease represents the total undiscounted lease payments fiar - HECRERBREASERERE
to be received by the Group under the finance lease arrangements. There was no METHBIIMAORUREENTLE
unguaranteed residual accruing to the Group. B o ANEE VWM RERBME o
GOODWILL 18. HE
2020 2019
bt St 222 —TNF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET BEBEET
COST B
At | January and 3| December R—HA—BREt+-A=+—H 338 338
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES RETRERR
At | January and 31 December R—A—BE+-A=+—H 338 338

NET CARRYING AMOUNT BREEE
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of business in prior years were allocated to
two individual cash generating units (“CGUs"), comprising the health and wellness

segment and the connected home and communications segment.

During the year ended 3| December 2018, having considered that some products
had been loss-making and the relevant operations were either terminated during
the year or planned to be terminated in the foreseeable future, the directors of
the Company had consequently performed an impairment review for these CGUs
and the recoverable amounts were determined from a value in use calculation. As
a result of the impairment tests, full impairment losses of approximately HK$17.5
million and approximately HK$16.3 million, respectively, in relation to goodwill of
time and weather consumer electronic products unit in healfth and wellness segment
and telecommunications consumer electronic products unit in connected home
and communications segment were charged in profit or loss for the year ended 3|
December 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-F-FFT-A=+-BLFR

INVENTORIES 9. F&
2020 2019
bt St 22 —EB-NF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET BERET
Raw materials JRE} 33 109
Work in progress E&m 0.3 03
Finished goods S 35 56
7.1 16.8
During the year ended 3| December 2020, there was a decrease in the net BE_Z_ZTHF+_A=1+—HL#F
realisable value of certain raw materials and finished goods (2019: raw materials B aRmARRNESEREFERE
and finished goods) due to obsolescence and diminishing marketability as a result RAHEREZR AR - ETRE RS
of changes in the market condition and technology. Therefore, a write-down K (ZF—NF : REREMKm)Z
of approximately HK$4.5 million (2019: write-down of approximately HK$18.1 SRFEFMAL - At - ERERE
million) has been recognised in profit or loss. At 31 December 2020, the carrying RMRKEE4SAET(ZE—NEF:
amount net of allowance of inventories of approximately HK$50.9 million (2019: WORAER 181 BETT) - RZZE_TF
approximately HK$49.6 million) amounted to approximately HK$7.1 million (2019: TZA=+—H REEHREFER
approximately HK$ 6.8 million). EHRBES09BBIT(ZE—NE : 498
BeBET))NRERTIBBT(Z
TNF : A% I168BET)
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. FEWCRFR E bR KRR

2020 2019
—8-%% T NE
HK$ million HK$ million

BEEET ERAET

Trade receivables FEUAR TR 332 430
Less: Loss allowance for ECL W TEEEEEREE (324) (142)
0.8 28.8
Other receivables Hofth e W R IE 5.5 183
Total trade and other receivables FEURBR T R EL b PR GRTE 4258 6.3 47.1
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e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-TEI-A=t-HIFE

20.

172

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The following is the ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss allowance
for ECL) presented based on the invoice date which approximate the respective

revenue recognition date at the reporting date:

P Bk I EL At PR WK TR (42

RBERE - BURRINGESREEES
BEEE  REEAH(ZEHEEH
e iR B EARE) 25 2 Bk 2T 0
T~

2020 2019

—_ 7 —=F ﬂ:‘ :g_ﬂﬁ

HK$ million HK$ million

BEBEER BEEETT

0 to 30 days 0&30H - 211
31 to 90 days 3IHZE90H - 47
Over 90 days 90R A L 0.8 30
Trade receivables JE U BR 3R 0.8 28.8

In 2020, the Group normally requests its customers to make advance payment,
except for certain customers for which the credit terms are generally up to 45 days.
In 2019, the Group normally allows credit period of 30 to 90 days to its customers.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to
minimise credit risk. Before accepting any new customers, the management of
the Group will base on the credit quality of the potential customers to define
credit limits. Credit limits to customers are reviewed annually. In determining the
recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group considers any change in the credit
quality of the trade receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to the

reporting date.

At 31 December 2020, included in the Group's trade receivable balances are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$0.8 million (2019:
approximately HK$3.0 million) which are past due at the end of the reporting

period. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

20.

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-F-FFT-A=+-BLFR

P Bk I EL At PR WK TR (42

Other receivables Hi W E
2020 2019
—BCRF —E-NE
HK$ million HK$ million
BERET BEHET
Advances to suppliers (Note) TR RE R A (B e ) 2.0 39
Other taxes recoverable H AT el Fi Rk 2.3 10.8
Others Hi 1.2 36
5.5 18.3

Note: The Group had made advances to various suppliers for the procurement of raw
materials. At 31 December 2020, the unutilised advances to suppliers amounted to
approximately HK$2.0 million (2019: approximately HK$7.9 million). The directors
of the Company reassessed the recoverability of the unutilised advances based on
all relevant information available to the Group. No impairment loss was recognised
in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2020. During the year ended 3|
December 2019, due to the continuing downturn of the Group's business operation
and the status of negotiation with the suppliers, the directors of the Company
considered that there was significant uncertainty on the ability of the Group to recover
certain part of the advances through either utilisation from future purchases or refunds.
As a result, approximately HK$4.0 million was recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Included in trade and other receivables are the following amounts denominated

in currency other than the functional currency of the group entities to which they

Wizt

AEBE ARERMRE THERE
HENRE - RZT_ZTF+ A
=+—A ' XBHABNEEEREE
WEBLBBT(ZE—NE : (8K
T9BET) c RAREEREREE
B TR B 2 A B R E TR R B
HﬂEHrAIEZTMZE%iT HE-ZT

SFETZA=+—BLEFELRR
T@ sHERAERE BE=T—N
F+-_A=+—HLFE BEFXEE
ERBERE MIRASE B ER
ZEBRR  AREEERRBBR
REBEDAIRAEAREE R EE T
HHERNFKIE e NFEEATHBA
Hx-Alt #E=T-NF+=A
=T BIEFERBRRRNEB40
BET-

B B 0 B ot PR MR TR B2 18 51 AR
AEEER 2SI EBEE

relate. Pk S
2020 2019
ZE-EE —T-NE
HK$ million HK$ million
EREET EEBET
RMB AR 2.2 10.9
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables for the years ended BE_E-_ZEFER-_FT—-—hhFE+_A
31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial =+— Em:E}'“ZﬁLlﬁzEE K Eo A FE LR

statements.

SRR ERHEF FEN RS M RRH

329 e
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e SRR

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-F-FFT-A=+-ALFR

21. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND CASH 21, ZREBRTESRBEERERES
EQUIVALENTS 1EH

2020 2019

i —FNF

HK$ million HK$ million

BEFER BEHET

Bank balances and cash RITESRNES 13.1 18.0

Less: Restricted bank balances B XIRFIRITE (3.7) -

Cash and cash equivalents ReMERBEEER 9.4 18.0

Bank balances and cash comprised cash held by the Group and bank deposits which
carried interest at prevailing market rates.

At 31 December 2020, restricted bank balances of approximately HK$3.7 million
(2019: Nil) were frozen by the order of the Courts in the PRC pursuant to the legal
claims as set out in the note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts denominated in
currency other than the functional currency of the group entities to which they

RITHESRLIRSBRARERA RS
RIS - BREFEBITH SR
E-I_/%\ °

RZZBZZF+-_A=+—H ' XRH
BITEBRAORBEITABL(ZZE—N
FD)RBHEIINGES M BMKRME
DIERFALZ P EERE SR ©

ROBEBREREBRENIINEREEE
RZIBEER NN BREHEZ TR |

relate:
2020 2019
it St 222 —F-NF
HK$ million HK$ million
BETHER BEHET
EUR BT 0.4 40
RMB AR 47 6.
United States dollars (“US$") E(l%Emn]) 5.0 4.6
22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. ENERIRREMENSTE

The following is the ageing analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period:

RBEMR - BFNRFRERAHZ5)
ZEREAITINT -

174

2020 2019

i —E-NF

HK$ million HK$ million

BYEER AERETL

0 to 30 days 0&30H 38 14.8
31 to 90 days 3IHE90H 1.7 17.1
Over 90 days 90R A 29.1 255
Trade payables FERTBRR 34.6 574
Other payables H A e I8 23.9 213
Trade and other payables FENTBR AR e E Ath JE < 5X0B 58.5 78.7

Annual Report 2020 £



22.

23.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-F-FFT-A=+-BLFR

22. BNRIREGESTRE)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Other payables H At e AT RRIE
NOTE 2020 2019
P&t — —E-NF
HK$ million HK$ million
BYEER BEEET
Payable for staff costs FERT B IR 8.2 8.1
Payable for audit services it lRGENIAE 2.1 1.9
Other tax payables HipfEHHIE 25 1.8
Provision for losses on litigations FAEBEREE 32 33 =
Others HAh, 78 95
Total other payables Hh N FIBEE 23.9 213

Included in trade and other payables are the following amounts denominated in

FERRRAR N E M e FIR B 48 R 5 A

currency other than the functional currency of the group entities to which they FAEETR N EE N B8 E
relate: ZE0A
2020 2019
it St 22 —E-NF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET BEEET
RMB AR 38.0 36.0
BORROWINGS 23. &R
2020 2019
it St 22 —E-NF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET BEEET
Unsecured borrowing EIARER 35.7 332
Interest payable FERFIR 9.1 60
448 392
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e SRR

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE 2 TF+-_A=+-HLEE

23. BORROWINGS (continued)

B (&)
2020 2019
ZE-EE —E-NF
HK$ million HK$ million

BEEET BERET

Analysed by: BIATEE A
Non-current Liabilities ERBEE 44.8 -
Current Liabilities mEaE - 392
44.8 392

On 8 December 2017, a subsidiary of the Group, & B & 7 OX ) AR A

entered into a loan agreement with a financial institution to borrow appro><|mately
RMB30.0 million at a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum for one year. The
borrowing was overdue at 31 December 2019 and subject to a fixed interest rate

of 8.8% per annum.

On 27 March 2020, & B E F (R IJIl) B[R 2 7 entered into a supplementary
agreement with the financial institution to extend the repayment date of the
borrowing including the interest payable with maturity date on 31 March 2026 at a

fixed interest of 8% per annum.
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e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-F-FFT-A=+-BLFR

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 4. BHARE
The movements (excluding those arising from increases and decreases both BE_Z_ZER_Z-NF+ZA
occurred within the same year) of contract liabilities from contracts with customers =t—HILFEREBEMBRE ER
within HKFRS |5 during the years ended 3| December 2020 and 2019 are as FISHAEZEPEANERNEREED
follows: (NEREHRN R —F AL ER
DRTELEE)MT
2020 2019
—EC%F —ENF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET AEEET
At | January ®n—HA—H 23.3 58.2
Receipt of advances LS EINp 6.6 233
Recognised as revenue R RN (11.2) (49.6)
Transfer to other payables R (R FUR - (8.6)
At 31 December RTZA=1—H 18.7 233
At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the advances from customers are expected to be RZZE_ZTFR-Z-NF+_HA
recognised as revenue within | year, =t+—8R- HQHXE)E E’\JTEHMIET‘E,H\EEQ
— G R AN -
Unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied performance obligations AEMAIBE RTERNEBNEE
All the performance obligations that were unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) at 31 ZE-TFEFA=+—H AKX
December 2020 are part of contracts that have an original expected duration of 7_5)36(@2 HARTK)WBHEEARR
one year or less. Given that the Group applies the practical expedient in paragraph M RE—FAERNBAEH - &
121 (a) of HKFRSI5, the transaction price allocated to these performance obligations RS EERE BB RELERF 155
is not disclosed. FNRI@BAKATERE 25 - MIAR
RENREZSENEENRHER -
LOAN FROM A SHAREHOLDER 25, RRE

The balance represents loan advanced from a shareholder, Huaneng, for working

capital purpose. The loan was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Huaneng has confirmed in writing that it will not demand the partial or full
repayment of the shareholder's loan until such demand or withdrawal has no
significant adverse impact on the Group's going concern and the sufficiency of

working capital.

HARIEE — AR (R BXNME
REEEES - AERREER 28
FRZRBIAT o

ERCUNEEHER - B TEBRE D
FBHEERRET  EEAMERK
BETHASESELE RBRARE
EELABATNEE -
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. BRAK
Number
of shares Amount
R EE &5
HK$ million
BEEET
Authorised: AT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREERR0. 10T T B R
At | January 2019 and 31 December E’\\:?—ﬂi—ﬂ —HUEZE-NF
2019 and 2020 —EEF+-A=1—H 20,000,000,000 2,000.0
Ordinary shares of US$0.10 each H&E@o [0ETTHY & AR
At | January 2019 and 31 December RZZE-NF-A-BURZZ-NF
2019 and 2020 ;KZZE_ZTF+_A=1+—H 10,000 —
Issued and fully paid: BETREAR -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREERRK0.107TH L B K
At | January 2019 and 31 December EC_%E jli_ﬁ] —BURZZ-NF
2019 and 2020 —ZEF+-A=1—H 2,599,993,088 2600
27.  SHARE OPTION SCHEME 27. BREGE

The Group share option scheme (the "“Scheme”) was approved for adoption on 29

August 2012 to attract, motivate and retain key employees who contribute to the

growth of the Group. The Scheme has a maximum of ten years in operation from

the date of adoption.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company offered to grant

options to selected eligible participants, including full-time employees and full-time

executive directors of the Company or employees or any of its subsidiaries.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The limit on the total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised, together with all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company, must not exceed 30% of the number of the Company's issued
shares from time to time. Subject always to the aforesaid overall 30% limit, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted,
together with all options to be granted under other share option scheme(s) of the
Company, must not exceed 0% of the issued share capital of the Company on
the adoption date. Such 10% limit may be refreshed or exceeded if approved by
shareholders in general meeting subject always to the aforesaid overall 30% limit.

The total number of the Company's shares issued and which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted to a participant in any |2-month period immediately
preceding the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue as
at date of such grant. If the grant of options is offered to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company or any of their respective
associates, the total number of the Company's shares issued and which may be issued
to such participant upon exercise of all options granted in any |2-month period up
to and including the date of grant shall not exceed 0.1% of the number of shares
then in issue and having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000.

The subscription price for an option granted shall be the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company's shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of
the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share.

The vesting period of the share option is from the date of grant until the
commencement of the exercisable period.

An option may be exercised during a period to be determined by the Company’s
board of directors in their absolute discretion and in any event such period shall not
exceed 10 vears after the date of grant of the option.

No share option has been granted under the Scheme during the year ended 3|
December 2020 (2019: Nil). No share option was outstanding at 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil).

27.
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For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-Z-ZFT-A=+-HLFE

fEIRmERTEI ()

BB MARITE 2 FIABIRE - LR
BAR A AR 23R 1B
RITE 2 FIB EREM AT 8 31T 2 R 1D
BY  RETEBRAALRER ER
TR BB Z30% ° XI5 £ At
BEE0%MRBRHIT - BITEMA BER
12 AR - ARMBEBA DRI EMER
RIS 2 B AR M Al g 34T
ZIRNBE - TS HBBERERTE 2 K
B2 B BITIRARA10% © (M ERRR
RIRR ARS8 + 321 0%R B T E 5
o AR LR B R A SR - 1R
X b AT B 30% R BE R ]

REER H B #eER+ =8 A B -
AITERTER—R2EEZMEER
BT RAREEITZIARAIRGE
g TNEEARLEEREERZEEA
BROBE 1% WEREARBRZEE
BRESKBLIFNTEZTIRESBZE
AMEATREETERE  BREZE
it B A+ @ A BE (B EZ
B) RIIFEERT2RABREMSE
IRARERITTRAR2RE ZARAR
REg - MEEAEREEITRNEE
0.1% + B#B{ETFEEA50000007T ©

REvBBREs REBHER T&
2% ()VARARORIFLB#zkm
B (ROREER L BB A%
BZFHERmE  Rilkpm 2 mE o

BRgEs RERARLAHRG  BE
T HRFER AL -

BREAIRARREZS2RNBETE
ZBEATUAITE - HeER I ]
TEBERIEREERRTHF -

HE-_Z-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HItE
ERERENEREBERE(ZZE—A
FE) RZEZTF+A=1—
B BEERERETE(ZZE—N
Fm|E) o
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28.

29.

180

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 28. EXREBERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to AEBEREREERRAEEAZ
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through FIEERONRELSE  REBREL
the optimisation of debts and equity balance. In order to maintain or adjust the (S EN -V S S yNEEE
capital structure, the Group may raise loan from shareholders and issue new shares REFIHBRERERE - AEERER
to reduce debts. BRREEERRBEITHRUBDER
The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to owners of the ARBZEAREBERRAEE AR
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and loan from a shareholder. hER(BEEETRAE  FERER
B
The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on a regular basis. As FAEBEEETHERELERE - ER
part of this review, the management of the Group considers the cost of capital and BERZ B FEEEREZREE
the risks associates with the capital, and takes appropriate actions through raising AZBRARERZ B - WEREES
debts to adjust the Group's capital structure. EBRIE R E AR R EE 2 ERR
% o
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29. EMTH
Categories of financial instruments ERMIAER
2020 2019
—BC%F —T-NF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET AREET
Financial assets at amortised cost WEEN AR S REE 44.0 538
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HREERAYR s eRAE 278.9 190.1

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include rental deposits, trade and other
receivables, finance lease receivables, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, lease liabilities, borrowings and loan from a shareholder. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures to

ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk

Currency risk

Certain of the Group's rental deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
receivables, finance lease receivables, trade and other payables, borrowings and loan
from a shareholder are denominated in RMB and US$ which are exposed to foreign

currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to HK$.

The Group currently has not entered into any contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risk exposure. The management of the Group monitors foreign exchange
risk exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currencies denominated monetary

assets and liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:
Assets
BE
2020

HK$ million

2019
—g-%F -2 hE
HK$ million

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-F-FFT-A=+-BLFR

SMIAE)
PREAREEBERBEE)

-7
g T

AEEETHEES  ROBHEEA
& YRS B A RAGUR - BETH
ERWRIE - AR R E i B 3R
B ERERREFTAARS KETA
B UBAEEEERSBERRAR(E
EEAK) sl RHINER R o

AR B AT RT LA A KA A

HERE - AEBRERESEFRIMNERR
FEFBEREEEHENINERR

REBDSNEEBECEREERBER

HREBHBRABENT
Liabilities
=L
2020 2019
—B-2F —T-NEF
HK$ million HK$ million

BEEET ERAET BEEER BRAET

Us$ ey 50
RMB AR 10.3
EUR BT 0.4

46 1215 69.0
204 828 752
40 - -
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29.

182

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2019: 5%) increase and
decrease in the functional currency of the respective group entities against the
relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2019: 5%) sensitivity rate represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currencies denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the period-end for a 5% (2019: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates. The analysis has excluded US$ denominated monetary items
as HK$, the functional currency of the group entity holding these monetary items,
is pegged to US$. The management of the Group considers that the currency risk
in this regard is minimal. A positive number below indicates an increase in post-
tax loss for the year where functional currency strengthens 5% against the relevant
foreign currencies. For a 5% weakening of functional currency of the respective
group entities against the relevant foreign currencies, there would be an equal and

opposite impact on the post-tax loss and the balances below would be negative.

29.

SMIAE)
PREREEEEREE(E)

TEEE ()

HEEAT

E

TRVNARASEHEEHEEER
ZINEEE M B BEINE AHE RRES%
(Z2—NEF : 5%) 2BRE < 5%(=F
—NE : 5%)MBRERKERELI
BEERSE A AL ZE) 2T - BIRE
HITEBIEREUINEEENEEEIE
g mﬁﬁzﬁﬂiﬁz%(:?—ni : 5%)
RINESBRABESHRER - ZOH
ﬁ$a%%xtﬁ2§%ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁ%
BRAENSEYHIBEE v REEB 26
f%%mﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%o$§lﬁﬁﬁ
REENBEEERRBHTRE -
THESRRMIAEE R GREINEF
ES%EHZFE NIRRT BB
Mo MEBRAEEERB MEERLE
BAINERZ(ES% « 1SS HRT B EEBIEK
BERERZZE M ERKEAE
o

Effect on post-tax result

for the year

HEERBIRXECFE
2020 2019
—EC-EF —NE
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET BEEHET
RMB N 3.0 23
EUR BT - 02)

In management’s opinion, the analysis is used for reference purpose and is
unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk as the period end exposure does not

reflect the exposure during the years ended 3| December 2020 and 2019.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on bank balances. The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Benchmark Borrowing Rate of the People’s Bank
of China.

The Group will continue to monitor the exposure on cash flow interest rate risk and
will consider hedging the interest rate should the need arise. In the management's
opinion, the Group does not have material interest rate risk exposure and hence no

sensitivity analysis is presented.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group is arising from the amount of each class of financial assets as disclosed
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its

financial assets.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits and credit approvals. Before
accepting any new customer, the Group uses an intemal credit scoring system to
assess the potential customer's credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed at least twice a year. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances based on
provision matrix. In this regard, the management of the Group considers that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

29.

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
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FIEEE
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. @WMIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) BERBEEEEREEE)
Credit risk (continued) EEmE(E)
Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers (continued) EEBEFPEHZ EREF(E)
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following ARB 2 AEME B Rk S R a A
categories: TR
Internal
credit rating  Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
REREEFR HPB JE R HtteMEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and  Lifetime ECL — [2m ECL
does not have any past-due amount not credit-impaired
1R ez HFHERENEREYETMBHE 2HENEESE- t+-EARREEER
WEELEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL — [2m ECL
usually settle after due date not credit-impaired
BR5E EFARERBHRRE PHRHEEER - +-EARREEER
BERERIBAREE WEELEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit ~ Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

risk since initial recognition through information  not credit-impaired

developed interally or extemal resources

AJ&E EBAIFE L BIBELINBERSH - EHRMEEEE - *HREEER -
EERR B NI HERBIARAIEE N Y EELEERE WEELEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-  Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired
impaired credit-impaired
EiE AEBRAEEELEERE EHEMEEEE - 2HRPEERR -ELERRE
ELFERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor isin  Amount is written off Amount is written off

severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

isH AEBERABBABARESNEEE - SRR SRR
BARKE Y Y R AT R
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. @WMIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) BERBEEEEREEE)
Credit risk (continued) EEmEE(E
Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers (continued) EEBEFPEHZ EREF(E)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial assets, TRAMASESHEE (FETRY
which are subject to ECL assessment: EERRL) 2 EEREAE -
Gross Total gross
External Internal [2m or carrying carrying
2020 NOTES credit rating  credit rating  Lifetime ECL amount amount
T=EAx BIREE
—RCER e SMBEETR AREETR 2HRHEEER BIREE #st

HK$ million HK$ million
BERERT BEYBEER

Financial assets at

amortised cost

BRERAIIRcEMERE
Rental deposits N/A (Note 2) [2m ECL
MeEe TE R (BfEE2) T-REARMEERE 34 34
Finance lease receivables |7 N/A (Note 2) [2m ECL
BMEMEERKE THEH (FEE2) T-EARMEERR 25.5 25.5
Bank balances and cash 21 N/A (Note 1) [2m ECL
RITEBR LIRS TiE A (BaE1) T-—EARMEEEE 13.1 13.1
Other receivables 20 N/A (Note 2) [2m ECL
H iR TE R (BraE2) T—EARMEEESE 1.2 1.2
Trade receivables 20 N/A (Note 3) Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired
(provision matrix)
FEUER K TER (Bft&E3) EHEREERE -
WRELFEERE
(Rfarer) 1.9
N/A (Note 3) Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired
TE R (BfH&E3) 2HRMEERR-
ELEEERE 213 332
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29.

186

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers (continued)

29. £WMITAEE)
BEEREEBERBEEE)

EEmR ()

ELHEFENZ EWEF (E)

Gross Total gross
External Internal [2m or carrying carrying
2019 NOTES  credit rating credit rating Lifetime ECL amount amount
TR ABRRmE(E
—T-NEF . IMNBEERR ANEENR 2HEHEEER BEREE a5t
HK$ million HK$ million
ERRET BREET
Financial assets at
amortised cost
RBERAR EHEE
Rental deposits N/A (Note 2) [2m ECL
HeEe TEH (Ff5E2) T EARHEERHE 34 34
Bank balances and cash 21 N/A (Note 1) [2m ECL
BITEGRAE TER (BI&E1) T EAABRBEERE 180 18.0
Other receivables 20 N/A (Note 2) [2m ECL
H i EKIE TEH (ftaE2) +_AABHREERHE 36 36
Trade receivables 20 N/A (Note 3) Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired
(provision matrix)
FEUHRTR TER (Ff3E3) 2HRHEEEE -
WEELEERE
(Bp%emE) 334
N/A (Note 3) Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired
NER (FfH&E3) EHREERE-
ELEERE 9.6 430
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers (continued)

Notes:

For bank balances and cash, the management of the Group considered the credit risk
has not increased significantly since the initial recognition. According to the historical

observed default rates of bank balances and cash, the average loss rate is immaterial.

For finance lease receivables, other receivables and rental deposits, the management of
the Group individually assessed whether the credit risk increased significantly since the
initial recognition. Based on the assessment, the management of the Group considered

the credit risk has not increased significantly since the initial recognition.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for credit-impaired debtors, the
Group determines the ECL on these items by using a provision matrix, grouped by

interal credit rating.

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. @WMIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) BERBEEEEREEE)
Credit risk (continued) EEmEB(E)
Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers (continued) ELEEFENZ ENRFES(E)
As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applies internal credit ERARBRFERRER 2 —Hn K
rating for its customers. The following table provides information about the %@ﬂﬁ%}iiﬁﬁw BEETHR - T&
exposure to credit risk and loss allowance for trade receivables which are assessed RUEEHEEREAERERERTER
collectively based on provision matrix at 31 December 2020 and 2019 within BBz EF  EHEREAN_T_F
lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired). At 31 December 2020, the credit-impaired ERZZ-NFTA=+—A&:
debtors with gross carrying amounts of approximately HK$21.3 million (2019: H\ﬁfﬁiﬁﬁﬁggﬂé(iﬂFiﬁ,lﬁﬁ)
approximately HK$9.6 million) were assessed individually. IRIR R A R L (R T T -

;TEJr_H:wL—EI v%@?&ﬁfﬁ%@%%
3BEL(ZE—NF : 95¥96R
BL)ZEEEERBEZEBHATER

R THRAE -

2020 —EEF
Gross Impairment
Average carrying loss
Internal credit rating loss rate amount allowance
RERE EFPAR FHERE REEE  REBRRE
HK$ million HK$ million

BEEET EREER

Low risk linE * - -
Watch list BREE 25.3% 0.5 0.1
Doubtful Bl 96.4% I1.4 11.0

.9 I
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. @WMIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) BERBEEEEREEE)
Credit risk (continued) EEmE(E)
Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers (continued) ELEEFAAZ EWR(E)
2019 —E-hE
Gross Impairment
Average carrying loss
Intemal credit rating loss rate amount allowance
MEREERT AR THEER BEEE  OREBERE
HK$ million HK$ million
AEBETL AERETL
Low risk VN * [.6 =
Watch st BERE 103% 272 28
Doubtful Al&E 39.1% 4.6 1.8
334 4.6
& According to the historical observed default rates of the expected life of the low risk & BEERREBABRFHZBAR

debtors, the average loss rate is immaterial.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by the management of the Group to ensure relevant information about

specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group provided a charge of
approximately HK$8.6 million loss allowance (2019: a reversal of approximately
HK$4.6 million loss allowance) for trade receivables which are not credit-impaired,
based on the provision matrix and a charge of loss allowance of approximately
HK$9.6 million (2019: a reversal of approximately HK$3.I million) were made
on credit-impaired debtors, which have either been paced under liquidation or in

financial difficulties.

BEENE  THBRZETEA -

fEEBREEREEARPFH B
EEBRENRME - LRBBARED
ERASIE BRI B2 AR 1B RIETT
HE - AEEEEETHENDBA
HEREEEEEBAZHEENEAE
e

HE-_Z-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HItEF
B AEEEREBBEERERLEE
ERECEYERGTRBEREER
HAESCEBT(ZE—NGF : BEE
BEREENEB6EET) YEREE
FERBECEBA(HETRAEME R
EVHRE) MREBREOEE.E
BL(ZZE—NF : BENAKI BB
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B EER AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-F-ZFRT-A=+-HLFR

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. @WMIAE)
HERREEEERIEK(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued) EEmE(E)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised Ti‘%?ﬁ?*ﬁﬁ??ﬁflﬁﬁtﬂﬁfﬁ&ﬁﬁ KB
for trade receivables under the simplified approach: R PEREEEREZE
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit- ECL (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2HEY 28
FEER AHEE
(LEEE BR(EE
FERE) FERE) B
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET  BEEET  SMEET
At | January 2019 R-ZZE-NF—H—H 92 15.0 242
Changes due to financial instruments R 2 @RI TAES
recognised: 22
— Write-offs — s - 23) (23)
Credited to profit or loss STAERE (4.6) €1)) (7.7)
At 31 December 2019 and | January RZZ—NF+-_A=+—H
2020 E=—ZF-FF—-H—H 46 9.6 14.2
Changes due to financial instruments TR &R T REL 2 E8)
recognised:
— Transfer to credit-impaired —BREELEERNE (2.1 2.1 -
Charged to profit or loss BB kR 8.6 9.6 18.2
At 31 December 2020 R_F_FTFEF_HA=1—H .1 213 324
At 31 December 2020, the Group had a concentration of credit risk as approximately R-E-_ZEF+-_A=1+—H" Z}K‘i l

26.6% (2019: approximately 32.5%) of the total trade receivables was due from the

BASTEERR - HERERN

Group's largest trade debtor, and approximately 71.7% (2019: approximately 50.7%)

of the total trade receivables was due from the Group's five largest trade debtors,

respectively.
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29.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-Z-ZFEI-A=+-HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. @WMIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) BRRBEEERREEKE)
Liquidity risk HEEL/EE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of REBRPECRRIE  ERERA
cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management of the Group to AEBRERREREN R RER
finance the Group’s operations and mitigates the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. ReBAKF  UREREELEEK
The management of the Group monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures BB RRERERERBZE
compliance with loan covenants. 2. . EEEREEERESEZERBR
R ERER T RRL
The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its financial TRFAFIERRGEOETIGR  ~NEE
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative financial liabilities, EMBBZHARTEHNIEA - BITE
the table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial FREEMNS - ZRIBREERAEER]
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. WEREBE REANHE EHEE
The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on agreed ZAMBRRERERY - HMETES
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. MEECRHBREBEERR %
REREFERAENRERE -
Liquidity and interest risk tables BB 7 R EEfRE
Weighted
average  Ondemand  Over | year  Over 2 years Total  Total carrying
effective or within but within but within  undiscounted amount at
interest rate | year 2 years 5 years cash flows year end
mEPS  EERY -FUE BENRE  KRERERS £X
BRNZ -7 EWFA BEFA  RERE  AKEE
% HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
% BEEAT BMEAT SMEAT SMEAT  SHEAR
At 31 December 2020 R=F=-%%
TZA=t-H
Non-derivate financial liabilties FTEERAR
Trade and other payables ERES R E R E - 56.0 - - 56.0 56.0
Borrowings fEi 80 - - 59.5 59.5 448
Lease liabiltes HERR 82 304 313 - 617 566
Loan from a shareholder RRER - 121.5 - - 121.5 121.5
207.9 313 59.5 298.7 2789
At 31 December 2019 R=B-1%
TZA=t-H
Non-derivate financial liabilities FiEeRaE
Trade and other payables RS REM BT = 769 = = 769 769
Bormowings &k 80 392 - - 392 392
Lease labltes HERE 80 50 - - 50 50
Loan from a shareholder BREH - 690 - - 69 69.
190.1 - - 190.1 190.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE 2 TF+-_A=+-HLEE

29.

30.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. @WMIAE)
Fair value AHE
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost are REEKAGTE eREERSRAE
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on ZRTHEIRBUARRREERES TR
discounted cash flow analysis. EMHAREBRIERE -
The management of the Group considers that the carrying amount of financial AEBEBERRNRATHREF U
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial BHEpATH s eREERERARZ
statements approximates to their fair values. REEEEATERS
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING 30. BMEFEBAELREHK
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing TREFIAEEERETHMELEE
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing ZEH(PERE LIRS EH)FE -
activities are that for which cash flow was, or future cash flow will be, classified in the E MEEBMEENABAREENE
Group's consolidated statement of cash flow as cash flow from financing activities: RengRkPBERBMEZDAER S
muiE’\]fﬂﬁhmiﬂﬂixfﬁimi :
Loan from Lease
a shareholder Borrowing liabilities Total
BRRER e HEAE ot
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
B¥aEr  ARAEn  B¥%aEr  ARAER
At | January 2019 RZE-NE—HA—H 325 374 = 699
Upon adoption of HKFRS 16 EREBIMGREERE 651 - - 25.1 25.1
Financing cash flow RERENE 365 09) (21.4) 14.2
Exchange differences bEHZHE = (1.1) = (1.1
Finance costs BEMA = 38 13 5.1
At 31 December 2019 and R-F-NF+-_A=t—-AK
| January 2020 —E-TF-A—H 69.0 392 50 1132
Additions of investment properties RERENZEREREELE
and right-of-use assets - - 599 599
Financing cash flow BRERSHE 525 — (89) 436
Exchange differences b H EHE - 30 - 30
Finance costs BEKAK - 26 06 32
At 31 December 2020 —F-BF+-A=1+—H 1215 448 56.6 229
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31.

32.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the years ended 31 December 2020 and

2019, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting periods.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES/LITIGATIONS

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was a litigation initiated by
a supplier of the Group in Hong Kong claiming the allegedly due and unpaid
balance of purchase orders against a subsidiary of the Group in Hong Kong
in view of unilateral cancellation of purchase orders by the subsidiary of the
Group for a sum of approximately US$334,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2.6 million). In respect of the aforesaid due and unpaid balance of
purchase orders amounting to approximately HK$0.3 million which had
been recognised in “Trade payables” at 31 December 2019 and 2020,
the management of the Group having consulted the legal advice from an
independent legal counsel, estimated that the Group will likely be liable to
pay for the total and, therefore, the Group further recognised a provision for
loss of approximately HK$2.3 million in profit or loss for the year ended 3|
December 2020. Subsequent to the 31 December 2020 and up to the date
of approving these consolidated financial statements, the litigation is still in

process.

31.

32.

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-Z-ZFEI-A=+-HIFE

=N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-F-ZFRT-A=+-HLFR

32.

194

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES/LITIGATIONS (continued)

()

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received a notice
from a Court of Arbitration in the PRC stating that a service provider of the
Group in the PRC has initiated legal action against a subsidiary of the Group
in the PRC by claiming the allegedly due and unpaid balance of services
fees from the Group. Pursuant to the judgements made by the court in the
PRC, the Group was ordered to make immediate payment amounting to
approximately HK$0.2 million and therefore a provison for loss of HK$0.2
million was made in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Subsequent to the 31 December 2020 and up to the date of approving
these consolidated financial statements, the Group has settled approximately

HK$0.2 million in respect to the settlement of this case.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received a notice
from a District Court in the PRC stating that a supplier of the Group in the
PRC has initiated legal action against certain subsidiaries of the Group in
the PRC by claiming the allegedly due and unpaid balance of subcontracting
fees from the Group. In respect of the aforesaid due and unpaid balance of
subcontracting fees amounting to approximately HK$5.5 million which had
been recognised in “Trade payables” at 31 December 2020. Based on the
legal advice obtained from an independent legal counsel, the management
of the Group considered no further provision for litigation was required
to be made for the year ended 3| December 2020. Subsequent to the 31
December 2020 and up to the date of approving these consolidated financial

statements, the litigation is still in process.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES/LITIGATIONS (continued)

(d)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received a notice
from a District Court in the PRC stating that a former employee of the
Group in the PRC has initiated legal action against a subsidiary of the Group
in the PRC by claiming the compensation of the dismissal of labour contract
in view of breach of the terms in employment agreement by the Group.
Pursuant to the judgements made by the court in the PRC, the Group was
ordered to make immediate payment amounting to approximately HK$0.8
million which had been recognised in “Provision for losses on litigations™ in
"“Other losses, net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 3| December 2020. Subsequent to the 31 December 2020 and up to
the date of approving these consolidated financial statements, the Group has

settled approximately HK$0.8 million in respect to the settlement of this case.

Other than the disclosure of above and elsewhere in the consolidated financial

statements, at the end of the reporting period, the Group was not involved in any

other material litigation or arbitration. As far as the management of the Group was

aware, the Group had no other matenial litigation or claim which was pending or
threatened against the Group. At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group was the

defendant of certain non-material litigations, and also a party to certain litigations

arising from the ordinary course of business of the Group. The likely outcome of

these contingent liabilities, litigations or other legal proceedings cannot be ascertained

with reasonable certainty at present, but the management of the Group believes

that any possible legal liability which may be incurred from the aforesaid cases will

not have any material impact on the financial position or results of the Group.

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
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For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-F-FFT-A=+-ALFR

33.

196

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the transactions and the balances with related parties disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group also entered into

the following significant transactions with related parties during the years ended 3|1

December 2020 and 2019:

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group:

33.

Loy

PR UL AR & B 265 3 2R FLAth 35 6 o L L R
AR5 RERI FEERBE-TF
“EFRIF-NAFTZA=tT—RL
FEERAMIETATEARS

AEBFEEEASHH :
2020 2019
—8-%% T NF
HK$ million HK$ million

BEEET BERET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R REMER 3.7 6.2
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIKEFETEIfR 0.1 0.6
38 6.8

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.
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34.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 34.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company's principal subsidiaries are all
indirectly wholly-owned by the Company. Details of the Company's principal

subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Nominal value

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-Z-ZFT-A=+-HLFE

TEMBEAT

R-B-_EEFR-_FB-NE+=A
=+—B  ARRATEHNBRRHAK
DAFK2ERR - AREEBHEBEA
AR_F_FFER-_F-NFtTZA
=+—BHZHENT

Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary share/
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital Principal activities
AR, ERITEE
B B BB PR 3 %6 ROEE SEMEx TEXH
IDT Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of consumer electronic products
BRI ARAF BB BT RHETHEEM
BEEF(RINEBRAF (Note) The PRC HK$35,000,000 Manufacture of consumer electronic products
BEEFRIDERAR (M) H 75#35,000,0007T and plastic parts and provision of surface
mount technology assembly services
SUEETRBERNRERBR MRHRE
RamMm
Oregon Scientific Global Hong Kong HK$2 Marketing and distribution of consumer
Distribution Limited o BT electronic products

B IRIRAR AR
Note: This is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their respective place of

incorporation/establishment.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affect the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities outstanding at the end of the

reporting period.

HEERDHET HEEM
e - MBI 2R BB -

THAAHB ARG REEEMAK
3/ PRILEAEE o

FRRVNHESRREARERERKE
FEEE%§Z$ATW%“ﬂ°§$
RATASAE MM BRR 2 ERHG B
RILEK °
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e SRR

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-F-FFT-A=+-ALFR

35. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Financial information of the Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

DRIWMEEER

35, A
RRERR - AR AIHSEERBIE -

2020 2019
—EBCRF —E-NE
HK$ million HK$ million

EEEER AEEET

Non-current assets

Interest in subsidiaries

FRBEE
NGIE PNk

Current assets REEE

Other receivables H b fEUGRIE - -

Bank balances and cash RITEHR RS 0.1 =
0.1 =

Current liabilities REEE

Other payables H e 3008 3.0 09

Amounts due to subsidiaries FERT BB 2 AR IE 9.4 7.
12.4 8.0

Net liabilities BEFE (12.3) (80)

Capital and reserves IR K

Share capital [N 260.0 2600

Reserves (Note (a)) () (2723) (2680)

Net deficit B4R (12.3) (80)

The statement of financial position was approved and authorised for issue by the

Board of Directors on 30 March 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Zhu Yongning

Director
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36.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-F-FFT-A=+-BLFR

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY (continued) 35. RATMMBERE)

(@)  Reserves of the Company

@

KT

Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
R&RE 25 B8R R
HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million
BEBET BEBET BEBET
At | January 2019 RZZ-hF—A—H 165.0 (430.6) (265.6)
Loss and total comprehensive loss AEEERERZEEEEE
for the year - (24) (24
At 3| December 2019 RZZT—NF
and | January 2020 TZA=1T—Hk
—T_FTF-HA—H 165.0 (433.0) (268.0)
Loss and total comprehensive loss AEEEREREZEBRER
for the year - (4.3) (43)
At 3| December 2020 R-Z_FF+_H
=+—H 165.0 (437.3) (272.3)
EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD 3. MEMARERSBR

Save and except the entering into of the lease agreements for leases of certain
properties of the Group in the PRC as disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 14 January 2021, there is no important event of the Group after the end of

the reporting period.

BRARRBHA-Z-_—F—A+HMA
MR KT R B A S E R R B S T
MENOBE LB E BRI - AEER

REMRRLBEAEREE -
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Group Financial Summary

SEMHEHE

For the year ended 3| December 2020
BE-F-FFT-A=+-ALFR

Year ended 3| December

BET-A=t-HLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
-t 2.2 —ZNE —ZN\F “T+F “ZRF
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEEEL BERET BERET BEBRET BEEET
RESULTS ES |
Revenue Wega 554 2704 4332 5166 5650
Loss before taxation AR R (95.8) 83.) (2033) (857) (620)
Taxation R - = (123) = (20)
Loss for the year TEEER (95.8) 3.1 (2156) (857) (640)
Attributable to : ATALHER :
Owners of the Company KARHEAA (95.8) (831 (2156) (85.7) (640)
Non-controlling interests MR - - - - =
(95.8) (83.1) (2156) (85.7) (640)
Loss per share BRER
— Basic and diluted (HK cents)  —EAREF (L) (368) HK cents ~ (320) HKcents  (829) HKcents  (330) HK cents  (2:46) HK cents
A Bl A A el
As at 3| December
Rt=A=+-AH
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
St 23 “ENEF —TN\E S a3 —ERF
HK$ million HK$ million HKS million HKS million HKS million
BEEEL BEREL BEREL BEBEL BEREL
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets mEE 91.7 1019 2152 408.1 4145
Total liabilties BeE (3139) (2270) (2582) (2284) (145.1)
(221.3) (125.1) 430) 1797 269.4
Equity attributable to owners ~ AREHEBA
of the Company FElhHER (221.4) (1252) (43.1) 179.6 269.3
Non-controlling interests RS 0.1 0.1 0. 0.l 0.l
(221.3) (125.1) (430) 1797 269.4
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